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(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originalljssued in Turkish)

T!RK TELEKOM! NKKASKMNK KARKOENTK AND | TS SUBSI DI AR
CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

I ES

(Currencyin thousands of Turkish lar( A TL 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosed, a

thousands)
Current period Prior period
Audited Audited
Notes 31 December 201¢ 31 December 2015
Assets
Current assets 10.936.213 10.566.394
Cash and cash equivalents 4 4.494.536 4.100.204
Tradereceivables
- Due from related parties 8 10.489 23.707
- Trade receivables from third parties 6 5.140.127 4.792.834
Other receivables
- Other receivables from third parties 9 67.434 57.894
Derivative financial instruments 15 200.921 557.712
Inventories 10 248.852 203.978
Prepaid expenses 13 307.877 343.332
Current tax related assets 94.803 33.884
Other current assets 12 333.813 415.488
10.898.852 10.529.033
Assets held for sale 17 37.361 37.361
Non-current assets 25.262.298 18.582.141
Financial investments 14 11.995 11.840
Trade receivables
- Trade receivables from third parties 6 128.182 91.197
Other receivables
- Other receivables from third parties 9 38.480 33.837
Derivative financiainstruments 15 36.481 59.006
Investment property 18 20.194 22.376
Property, plant and equipment 19 14.254.053 9.115.520
Intangible assets
-Goodwill 16 44.944 44.944
-Other intangible assets 20 9.738.095 8.437.536
Prepaid expenses 13 71.927 68.935
Deferred tax assets 11 896.513 660.707
Other norcurrent assets 12 21.434 36.243
Total assets 36.198.511 29.148.53¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originalljssued in Turkish)

T!RK TELEKOM! NKKASKNNK KARKOENTK AND | TS SUBSI DI
CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ARI ES

(Currencyin thousands of Turkish lar( A TL 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosed, a
thousands)
Current period Prior period
Audited Audited
31 December 31 December
Notes 2018 2017
Liabilities
Current liabilities 13.496.359 8.661.581
Financial liabilities
- Bank borrowings 5 52.216 66.714
Short term portion of long term financial liabilities
- Bank borrowings 5 4.106.293 2.395.531
- Obligations under finance leases 7 631 617
- Bills, bonds and notassued 5 2.601.235 23.800
Trade payables
- Due to related parties 8 110 2.326
- Trade payables to third parties 6 3.845.124 4.066.558
Employee benefit obligations 12 166.317 175.712
Other payables
- Due to related parties 8 204.792 T
- Otherpayables to third parties 9 898.957 844.592
Derivative financial instruments 15 648.934 192.052
Deferred revenue 13 453.114 226.864
Income tax payable 33 6.465 24.344
Short term provisions
-Short term provisions for employee benefits 21 230.191 162.906
-Other short term provisions 21 246.173 433.238
Other current liabilities 12 35.807 46.327
Non-current liabilities 15.248.548 15.931.867
Financial liabilities
- Bank borrowings 5 10.882.47C 10.270.506
- Obligations under financkeases 7 1.963 1.982
- Bills, bonds and notes issued 5 2.276.610 3.732.588
Other payables
- Due to related parties 8 170.164 T
- Other payables to third parties 9 57.428 375.233
Derivative financial instruments 15 84.004 117.389
Deferred revenue 13 655.314 367.201
Long term provisions
-Long term provisions for employee benefits 21 907.172 813.393
-Other longterm provisions 21 8.167 8.035
Deferred tax liability 11 205.257 245.540
Equity 7.453.603 4.555.087
Paidin share capital 22 3.500.000 3.500.000
Inflation adjustments to paid in capita) ( 22 (239.752) (239.752)
Share based payment} ( 22,23 9.528 9.528
Other comprehensive income / expense items not to be reclassified to profit ol
-Actuarial loss arising fronemployee benefits (628.350) (526.583)
-Increase in revaluation of property, plant and equipment 4.283.816 T
-Gains due to change in fair value of financial liability attributable to change
credit risk of liability 64.852 T
Other comprehensiviacome/expense items to be reclassified to profit or loss
-Hedging reserves (886.488) (299.552)
-Foreign currency translation reserve 417.238 218.920
Restricted reserves allocated from profits 22 2.355.969 2.355.969
Other reserves 22 (1.320.942) (1.320.942)
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) 1.288.993 (278.033)
Net loss / (profit) for the period (1.391.261) 1.135.532
Total liabilities and equity 36.198.511 29.148.535

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

T! RK TELEKOM! NKKA SKYNDNK KARNKOENT K AN D

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

TS SUBSI

DI ARI ES

(Currencyin thousands offurkish Lira( i TL 0 ) unl es s lloothér eurrencies are alsoliactosedn,
thousands)
Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
1 January - 31 1 January - 31
Notes December 2018 December 2017
Sales 3,27 20.430.900 18.139.554
Cost of sales-| 28 (11.249.445) (10.029.082)
Gross profit 9.181.455 8.110.472
General administrativexpenses-{ 28 (1.784.341) (1.706.962)
Marketing, sales and distribution expensgs ( 28 (2.409.985) (2.404.461)
Research and development expenses ( 28 (147.779) (124.737)
Other operating income 30 231.369 291.123
Other operating expensg ( 30 (492.474) (540.970)
Operating profit 4.578.245 3.624.465
Impairment (losses) / gains in accordance with TFRS 9, net (268.034) (468.115)
Income from investing activities 31 130.288 130.398
Expense from investing activities ( 31 (12.960) (5.610)
Operating profit before financial expenses 4.427.539 3.281.138
Financial income 32 1.422.499 722.307
Financial expense)( 32 (7.872.319) (2.525.118)
Profit / (loss) before tax 3 (2.022.281) 1.478.327
Tax income /(expense)
- Current tax expense 33 (20.480) (696.792)
- Deferred tax income 11,33 651.500 353.997
Profit / (loss) for the year (1.391.261) 1.135.532
Earnings / (losses) per shares attributable to equity holders of the
parent from (in full Kur uk) 22 (0,3975) 0,3244
Earnings / (losses) per diluted shares attributable to equity holde
the parent from (in full Kur uk 22 (0,3975) 0,3244

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience translation ofa report and financial statemens originally issued in Turkish)

T, RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARKOINT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Currency in housands of TurkishLirae i TLO) unl es s llothehamrenciesaee alsdiscoseeird , a
thousands)
Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
1 January- 31 1 January - 31
Notes December 2018 December 2017
Profit/(loss) for the period (1.391.261) 1.135.532
Other comprehensive income items not to be reclassified to profit / (loss):
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss: 4.430.008 (32.593)
Gain from revaluation of property, plant and equipments 19 4.758.000 T
Actuarial loss from employee benefits 21 (126.172) (40.417)
Change in fair value of financial liabiligttributable to change in credit risk of
liability 309.949 T
Deferred tax effect of other value increase funds not to be reclassified from OCI 11 (511.769) 7.824
-Tax effect of actuarial loss from employee benefits 24.405 7.824
-Tax effect ofevaluation of property, plant and equipment (474.184) T
-Tax effect of change in fair value of financial liability attributable to change in
credit risk of liability (61.990) T
Other comprehensive income items to be reclassified to profit or loss: (388619 65.527
Change in foreign currency translation differences 198.318 119.515
Cash flow hedgesffective portion of changes in fair value 11 (121.269) 31.566
Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation (173.643) (99.051)
Change in value dfme value of options (438759 T
Tax effect on other comprehensive income items to be reclassified to profit or los 146.735 13.497
-Tax effect of cash flow hedgeffective portion of changes in fair value 24.254 (6.313)
-Tax effect of hedge okt investment in a foreign operation 34.729 19.810
-Tax effect of hedge of time value of options 87.752 T
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 4.041390 32.934
Total comprehensive income 2.650.29 1.168.466

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statemestoriginally issued in Turkish)

TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASYON ANONKM kKRKETK AND I TS SUBSI DI ARI ES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Currencyin thousands of TurkishLira A TLO) wunl e s s llotheharenciesaee alsdiscosegirdthousands)
Other comprehensive income items not to be Other comprehensive income items to be reclassified to profit ol Retained earnings /
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods loss in subsequent periods (losses)
Gains/(losses) on revaluation ande-measurement Reserve of gains/(losses) on hedging
Gains /
(losses) due|
to change in
fair value of
financial Gains /
Gains/(losses), liability Gains or losses (losses) on Restricted
Inflation Share on revaluation Actuarial loss attributable | on hedges of net change in Foreign reserves
Paid-in  adjustmen based of property, arising from to change in investmentin  value oftime Cash flow currency allocated Retained  Net profit /
share ttopaidin | payment Other gains/ plant and employee| credit risk of foreign value of hedge| translation from earnings (loss) for
capital capital reserve (losses) equipment benefits liability operations options reserve reserve profits /(losses) the period Equity
Balance at 1 January 2017  3.500.000  (239.752) 9.528 (1.320.942) 1 (493.990) 1 (131.944) ] (113.620) 99.405  2.355.969 446.307  (724.340) 3.386.621
Transfers T 1 T T T T T 1 T T 1 T (724.340) 724.340 1
Total comprehensive income T T T T T (32.593) T (79.241) T 25.253 119.515 T T 1.135.532 1.168.466
Profit for period 1 T 1 1 1 1 1 1 T T 1 T T 1.135.532 1.135.532
Other comprehensive
income T T T T T (32.593) T (79.241) T 25.253 119.515 T T 1 32.934
Balance at 31 December
2017 3.500.000  (239.752) 9.528 (1.320.942) 1 (526.583) 1 (211.185) T (88.367) 218.920  2.355.969  (278.033)  1.135.532 4.555.087
Balance at 1 January 2018  3.500.000  (239.752) 9.528 (1.320.942) 1 (526.583) 1 (211.185) ] (88.367) 218.920  2.355.969  (278.033)  1.135.532 4.555.087
Adjustments in accounting
polices (net of taxjNote 2.3) 1 1 1 1 1 1 (183.107) 1 1 1 1 1 431.494 1 248.387
Adjusted balance at 1
January 2018 3.500.000  (239.752) 9.528 (1.320.942) 1 (526.583) (183.107) (211.185) ] (88.367) 218.920  2.355.969 153.461  1.135.532 4.803.474
Transfers T 1 T T T T T 1 T T 1 T 1.135.532 (1.135.532) 1
Total comprehensive income T T T T 4.283.816 (101.767) 247.959 (138.914) (351.007) (97.015) 198.318 T T (1.391.261) 2.650.129
Loss for period T i 7 T 7 T 7 T 7 7 T 7 T (1.391.261)  (1.391.261)
Other comprehensive
income T T T T 4.283.816 (101.767) 247.959 (138.914) (351.007) (97.015) 198.318 T T T 4.041.390
Balance at 31 December
2018 3.500.000  (239.752) 9.528 (1.320.942) 4.283.816 (628.350) 64.852 (350.099) (351.007) (185.382) 417.238  2.355.969  1.288.993 (1.391.261) 7.453.603

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

T!'RK TELEKOM! NKKASKNNK KARKOENTK AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O F CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lir@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are asdisciosedi,

thousands)
Current Period Prior Period
Audited Audited
1 January - 31 1 January - 31
Notes December 2018 December 2017
Net profit/(loss) for the period (1.391.261) 1.135.532
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash provided by operating activities:
Adjustments for depreciation amahortisation expense 29 3.717.763 2.906.444
Adjustments for impairment loss / (reversal of impairment loss) 290.649 608.257
- Adjustments for impairment loss of receivables 6,9 394.175 468.115
-Adjustments for i mpairment | oss of &n 5.483 27.354
- Adjustments for impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 29 17.431 112.788
- Adjustments for other impairment loss (126.440) T
Adjustments for provisions 439.587 561.221
- Adjustments for provisions related with employee benefits 21 356.790 324.368
- Adjustments for reversal of lawsuit and/or penalty provisions 21 82.665 236.705
- Adjustments for other provisions 21 132 148
Adjustments for interest expenses and income 698.733 318.865
- Adjustments for interest income (390.996) (287.637)
- Adjustments for interest expense 1.040.703 556.450
- Deferred financial expenses from credit purchases 49.026 50.052
Adjustments for unrealised foreign exchange losses 5.760.9&@ 1.506.495
Adjustments for fair value losségain) 32 308.200 (27.620)
- Adjustments for fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 32 439.738 (27.620)
- Adjustment for gins on change in fair value of bills, bonds and notes issued (131.538) T
Adjustments for tax expenses 33 (631.020) 342.795
Adjustments for gains arised from sale of tangible assets 31 (117.328 (124.788)
Other adjustments for which cash effects are investing or financing cash flow 115.735 57.412
Other adjustments for nezash items 25 (88.715) (81.027)
Operating profit before working capital changes 9.103.305 7.203.586
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for increase in trade receivable (781.840) (1.151.197)
Adjustments for increagg(decreasein inventories (50.357) 29.932
Adjustments for increadg(decreasein trade payable (339.332) 415.372
Decreasén otherassets related with operations 117.714 134.657
Increasen other payables related with operations 396.888 158.096
Cash flow from operating activities:
Interest received 120.449 105.850
Payments related with employee benefits 21 (323.680) (337.799)
Payments related with other provisions 21 (370.588) (68.166)
Income taxes paid (99.278) (534.115)
Other outflows of cash 25 (184.346) (12.031)
Net cash from operating activities 7.588.935 5.944.185
Investing activities
Financial assets (155) T
Payments related to liabilities arising from acquisition of-nontrolling interests (205.000) (205.000)
Proceeds from sale of property, plaguipment and intangible assets 144,511 151.001
Purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (4.065.306) (4.223.530)
Net cash used in investing activities (4.125.950) (4.277.529)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 831.049 1.560.795
Repayments of borrowings (3.222.944) (1.854.449)
- Loan repayments (3.222.944) (1.854.449)
Payments of finance lease liabilitjiest 25 (826) (71)
Cash inflows /(outflows) from derivative instruments, net 25 (1.572) 18.788
Interest paid (1.062.115) (456.516)
Interest received 270.547 181.787
Other cash outflows, net 25 (115.735) (57.412)
Net cash used in financing activities (3.301.596) (607.078)
NET INCREASEIN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSBEFORE CURRENCY TRANSLATION
DIFFERENCES 161.389 1.059.578
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN FOREING EXCHANGE RATES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 48.599 12.229
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 3.688.104 2.616.297
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 4 3.898.092 3.688.104

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolfiteiadial statements.
6



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Tée¢rk Telekomgni kasyon Anonim kirketi (ATegr k Te
company incorporated in Turkey. The Company has its history in the Posthardenirane

(Department of Post Office) which was originally established as a Ministry @t@der 1840. On

4 February 1924, under the Telephone and Telegraph, the authorization to install and operate
telephone networks throughout Turkey was given to the General Directorate of Post, Telegraph and
Tel ephone (APTTO) . The Apdli99% asya resul of thé split ofdhed o n
telecommunication and postal services formerly carried out by the PTT. All of the personnel, assets

and obligations of the PTT pertaining to telecommunication services were transferred to the
Company, the shareg which were fully owned by the Prime Ministry Under secretariat of Treasury

- as of 2018 Republic of Turkey Ministry of Treasury and FinafcBt he Tr easurvyo) .

On 24 August 2005, Oger Telekom¢gni kasyon A. k. (
with the Turkeyds Privatization Authority for
Shareholders Agreement and a Share Pledge Agreement for the block tbaleCompany were

signed on 14 November 2005 and then after, OTAEKk

Ou't of TL 3.500.000 nominal amount of capital .
Treasury corresponding to a nominal amount of TL 525.006 baen issued to the public through

an initial public offering with the permission of Directorate of Istanbul Stock Exchange on 15 May
2008. Since then Company shares are traded in E

As per the regulatory disclosure deaby Tirk Telekom on 15 August 2018, within the scope of the
processwhi ch is carried out in relation to takeove
Tel ekom, by a special purpose vehicle (ASPVO0)
shareholdes, a notification was made to our company by some of the creditor banks.

Transfer of the Group A shares, which constitutes 55% of the Company's capital, to the afore
menti oned SPV | Levent Yapélandérma Y°%°neti mi A
notified to the Company in accordance with Article 198 of the Turkish Commercial Code. Pursuant

to Article 499 of the Turkish Commercial Code, LYY has been registered as a new shareholder in
the Companyds sharehol der s’ |l edger .

As at 31 December 2018he parent company and controlling party of the Company is Levent
Yapél andérma Y©°net i mi A. k. (31 December 2017: {
in Oger Telecom).

A concession agr e Agerrete mefttlbe Qvarsc essisgincend by t he
Telecommunication Authority (now named the Information and Communication Technologies

Aut hority (Al CTAO0) as at 14 November 2005. The
kinds of telecommunicain services, establishment of necessary telecommunications facilities and

the use of such faciliies by other licensed operators and the marketing and supply of
telecommunication services for 25 years starting from 28 February 2001. The Concession Agreemen

will terminate on 28 February 2026 anith the conditions where the Concession Agreement is

expired or not renewed, the Company shall transfer all equipment that affects the operation of its
systems in full working order and the real estates in its imgaesmhese equipment are deployed to

the ICTA or to an institution designated by the ICTA.

The Concession Agreement will expire at the end of its time period. However, the Company may
apply to the ICTA and request for extension thereof no later than Jpyieato the expiry of the
duration of the Concession Agreement. The ICTA may decide to renew the Concession Agreement
at the latest before 180 days of the date of expiration taking into account new conditions and within
the scope of the legislation arftetregulations of the ICTA.



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

1. REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)
The details of the QGbDgaenbey 2088nd8LDesemisei 201dieass as a

follows:
Effective ownership of
the Company (%)
Place of 31 31
incorporation Functional December December
Name of Subsidiary and operation Principal activity Currency 2018 2017
TTNet Anonim kirketi (ATTNet o Turkey Internet service provider Turkish Lira 100 100
TT Mobil Kletikim Hizmetleri Turkey GSM operator Turkish Lira 100 100
Argela Yazéléem ve Bilikim Tek
kirketi (AArgel ao) Turkey Telecommunication solutions Turkish Lira 100 100
Il nnova Bilikim ¢°z¢mleri Anon Turkey Telecommunication solutions Turkish Lira 100 100
Assi sttt Rehberl ik ve M¢gkteri Turkey Call center and customer relations  Turkish Lira 100 100
Sebit Hiiltgiim Tveek nol oj i | er i A . k Turkey Web Based Learning Turkish Lira 100 100
NETSIA Inc. USA Telecommunications solutions U.S. Dollar 100 100
Sebit LLC USA Web based learning U.S. Dollar 100 100
TT International Holding B.V.("TT International”) (*) Netherlands Holding company Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International AG ("TTINT Austria")(*) Austria and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International Hu Kft (TTINT Hungary)(*) Hungary and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
S.C. Euroweb Romania S.A.("TTINT Romania") (*) Romania and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekominternational Bulgaria EODD ("TTINT Bulgaria”)(*) Bulgaria and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/dataervices, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International CZ s.r.o ("TTINT Czech Republic”) (*) Czech Republic and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
TTINT Telcomd.o.0 Beograd (“TTINT Serbia") (*) Serbia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
TTINT Telcomunikacijed.o.§"TTINT Slovenia") (*) Slovenia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/dataservices, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International SK s.r.o ("TTINT Slovakia") (*) Slovakia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
TT International Telekom¢gni ka Internet/data services, infrastructure
("TTINT Turkey") (*) Turkey and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International UA TOV ("TTINT Ukraine") (*) Ukraine and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/dataervices, infrastructure
Turk Telekom Internationaltaly S.R.L. (TTINT ltaly) (*) Italy and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
TTINT International DOOEL Skopje("TTINT Macedonia") (*) Macedonia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekominternational LLC (“TTINT Russia") (*) Russia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Turk Telekomunikasyon Euro Gmbh. ("TT Euro") (*) Germany Mobil service marketing Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekominternational d.o.o.(*) Croatia and wholesale voice services provid Euro 100 100
Internet/data services, infrastructure
Turk Telekom International HK Limited (*) Hong Kong and wholesale voice services provid H.K. Dollar 100 100
Net Ekran TV ve Medya Hiz. A. Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
TTES Elektrik Tedari k Sat ek A Turkey Electrical energy trading Turkish Lira 100 100
TT Euro Belgium S.A. (*) Belgium Mobile service marketing Euro 100 100
TT ¥deme Hizmetleri A.Kk. Turkey Mobile finance Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl TV ve Medya Hiz. A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran2 TV v(efi Nvetd yBak rHa rz2 0 )A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran3 TV ve Medya Hiz. A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran4 TV ve Medya Hiz. A Turkey Televisionand radio broadcasting Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran5 TV ve Medya Hiz. A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran6 TV ve Medya Hiz. A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ TurkishLira 100 100
Net Ekran7 TV ve Medya Hiz A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran8 TV ve Medya Hiz A Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekran9 TVveMe dya Hi z. A. k. (ANet Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl0 TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranll TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl2 TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl3 TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radibroadcasting Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl4 TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl5 TV ve Medya Hiz Turkey Television and radio broadcasting ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
Net Ekranl6 TV ve Medya Hiz. Turkey Television and radio broadcasting  Turkish Lira 100 100
11818 Rehberl ik ve M¢kteri Hi Turkey Call center and customer relations ~ Turkish Lira 100 100
TT Satéek HMe nmeajlétram Anoni m ki r Turkey Selling and Distribution Services Turkish Lira 100 100
TT Ventures Proje Geliktirme Turkey Corporate Venture Capital Turkish Lira 100 100
(*) Hereinafter, will be referred as TTINT Group
*)The title of Avea Kletikim Hizmetleri A.k. was announced o



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

1 REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)
The detail s @ihtopetatoraCatBhipeeemlyet2618nd31 December 201&re as

follows:
Effective ownership of the
Company (%)

Place of

incorporation Functional 31 December 31 December
Name of Joint Operation and operation Principal activity Currency 2018 2017

Internet/data services, infrastructure

TTMobi-Vodaf one Evrensel Turkey and wholesale voice services provid Turkish Lira 51 51

Hereinafter, Turk Telekom and its subsidiaré®l joint operationtogether will bereferred to as
ithe Groupo.

The Groupbs principal activities include the p
telecommunication services, internet products and services, as well as callarehtustomer
relationship management, techogy and information management.

The Companyds registered office address is Turc

The number of personnel subject to collective agreement 8% Becember2018 is 10.798(31
December 20Z: 11.770) and the number of personnel not subject to collective agreemetlas at
December 2018 is 22.6131 December 2017: 22.73Z)he total number of grsonnel as at 31
DecembeR018 and 31 December 2017 &8.417and 34.502respectively

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of presentation of the consolidatedrfancial statements
a) Statement of compliance with TAS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are based in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards (ATASO) i ssued by Public
Aut hori ty of) a3 setroktenythe Cannanigoé serial I, No: 14.1 announcement of
Capital Mar kets Board (ACMBO) dated 13 June 20
Principles Regarding Financi al Reportingo (ACorl
no 28676. TAS is composed of Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards, appendixes and interpretations

b)  Preparation of financial statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes are presantetdance with the
illustrative financial statements published by CMB on 7 June 2013.
The accompanying consolidated financi al statem
Directors on30 January 2019General Assembly and related legal institagidhave the right to
correct these financial statements and statutory financial statements.
The Group has initially adopted TFRS 15 and TFRS 9 with a date of initial application of 1 January
2018. The comparative information has not been restated acctvdhmgtransition period.
c)  Correction of financial statements during the hyperinflationary periods

CMB, with its resolution dated 17 March 2005, announced that all publicly traded entities operating

in Turkey was not obliged to apply inflationary accougtieffective from 1 January 2005. In
accordance with this resolution, TAS 29 AFinan
not applied to the consolidated financial statements since 1 January 2005.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statemenfsontinued)
d) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been pikparthe historical cost basis except for the

property, plant and equipmenther than landsnd investment property acquisitions prior to 1

January 2000 for which the deemed cost methodappked in accordance with TAS9 fA Fi nanci a
Reporting in Hyper lamd§deravative dinarcial ynstrincentills, indnas sl |

notes issuedhich have been reflected at their fair values. Investment properties and tangible assets
other than lands/hich are recognizedith deemed cost method are valued with fair values as of 1
January 2000ands accounted as property, plant and equipndenivative financial liabilitiesand

bills, bonds and notes issuark valued with fair values as of balance sheet date.

The methodsised to measure the fair values are discussed further in Notg 2.4 (
e) Functional and presentation currency

Excluding the subsidiaries incorporated outsi o
included in consol i dadthepmainiais thelr baoks bf adtourtt inlain ( A T L ¢
accordance with Turkish Commercial Code, Tax Legislation and the Uniform Chart of Accounts
issued by the Ministry of Finance.

Functional currencies of the subsidiaegelCo mpany 0 s | are preseredip Moted.t i on

The consolidated financial statements are based on the statutory records, with adjustments and
reclassifications for the purpose of fair presentation in accordaitbethe Turkish Accounting
Standards published by the POA and are presémfed.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English:

The accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards) to the accompanying consolidated financial statemenfeodiffer

I nternational Financi al Reporting Standards (1
Standards Board (Al ASB0) with respect to the a
some income statement items and also for certain disekseguirement of the POA

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the parent company Turk;Telekom
its subsidiariesand joint operation The financial statements of the entities included in the
consolidatimn have been prepared as at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

a) Subsidiaries
As at 31 December 281the consolidated financial statements include the financial results of Tirk

Telekom and its subsidiaries that the Group has controlitsséinancial and operational policies
which are listed at Note 1.

Control is normally evidenced when the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company

has all the following; a) power over the investee b) exposure, or rights, to variable fietorris

involvement in the investee and c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount

of companyé6és returns. The results of subsidiar:i
of income from the effective date of adsjtion as appropriate

When necessary, adjustments are m@adéhe financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by the Group. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared using uniform accounting policies for similar transactions and events and are pritpared

the same chart of accounts of the Company.

10
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
b)  Business combinations

From 1 January 2010 the Group has appliedrevigeRS 3 A Busi ne standd@bdThéi nat i
change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively and had no effect on business
combinations completed during prior periods.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, meehati acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any nowontrolling interest in the acquirer.

The consideration transferred is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisitiondate fair values of the assets transferred byGhmup, the liabilities incurred by the

Group to former owners of the entity and the equity interests issued by the Group. When the

agreement with the seller includes a clause that the consideration transferred could be adjusted for
future events, the acugition-date fair value of this contingent consideration is included in the cost

of the acquisition. All transaction costs incurred by the Group have been recognized in general

administrative expenses.

For each business combination, the Group elects wh#tmeasures the namontrolling interest in
the acquirer either at fair value or at the proc

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appr@riate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquirer.

Acquisition method requires allocation of the acquisition cost to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at their fair values on the date of acquisition. Acquired assets and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed according T6-RS 3 are recognized at fa@lues on the date of the acquisition.
Acquired company is consolidated starting from the date of acquisition.

If the fair values of the acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities or cost of the
acquisition are based on provisabrassessment as at the balance sheet date, the Group made
provisional accounting. Temporarily determined business combination accounting has to be
completed within twelve months following the combination date and adjustment entries have to be
made beginmg from the combination date.

) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statddmertdized
gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent of
the Groupbs interest in the investee. Unreal i ze
gains, but only to the extent that thés no evidence of impairment.

d) Foreign currency

i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are transl&gtie functional currencies of the Group entities at
the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exateange
ruling at the datd~oreign currency differences arising on translation of foreign currency transactions
are recognized in the income statemertept for differences arising on qualifying cash flow hedges
to the extent the hedge is effective, whigh recognized in other comprehensive income.

11
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
d) Foreign currency (continued)

i) Foreign currency transactiongcontinued)

Norr-monetary assets and liali#is denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Nofmonetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based oithistost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

ii) Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translatamreporting currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are translated to reporting currency at average exchange rates in
the related periods.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other ceim@msive income, and presented in the
foreign currency translation reserve (translation reserve) in equity.

The Group entities use USD, Euro or TL, as functional currency since these currencies are used to a
significant extent in, or have a significant iagb on, the operations of the related Group entities and
reflect the economic substances of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to these entities.
All currencies other than the functional currency selected for measuring items in the financial
statements are treated as foreign currencies. Accordingly, transactions and balances not already
measured in the functional currency have beangasured to the related functional currencies. The
Group uses TL as the reporting currency.

The financial staments of subsidiaries that report in the currency of an economy formerly accepted
as hyperinflationary (Turkey) are restated to the unit of currency effective at the reporting date until

1 January 2005. As stated above, with the resolution dated 17 RI208Ho end the hyperinflation
accounting for the periods starting after 31 December 2004, TL is not assessed as a currency of a
hyperinflationary economy effective from 1 January 2005

The foreign currency exchange rates as of the related periods allews:f

Average Period end
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
Euro/TL 5,6789 4,1159 6,0280 4,5155
UsD/TL 4,8301 3,6445 5,2609 3,7719

iif) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation

The Company acquires foreign currency bank loans in order to hedge its net investment in a foreign
operation. Foreign exchange gain and/ or | oss r ¢
of this loan is reclassified to other comprehensive ireeoRoreign exchange gain and/or loss
resulting from the subsidiaryds net investment
income will be transferred to profit and loss in case of disposal. Tax effects of foreign exchange gain
and/orloss esul ting from the subsidiaryds net i nvest
other comprehensive income as well

12
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies, comparative information and e st at ement of prio
financial statements

Except for the changes below, the accounting policies applied in these consolidated financial
statements are the same as those applied in th
for the yeaended 31 December 2017.

a) TFRS 15Revenue from contracts with customers

TFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaced TASR&venueTAS 11 Construction Contractand related
interpretation.

The Group has initially adopted TFRS R&venue from Contracts with Customensth a date of
initial application of 1 January 2018. As a result, the Group has changed its accounting policy for
revenue recognition as detailed below.

The Group has applied TFRS 15 using the cumulative effect methpecognizing the cumulative

effect of initially applying TFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information presented for 2017 has not been restated and continues
to be as previously reported under TAS 18 and TAS 11 aatbdeinterpretations. The details of the
significant changes and quantitative impact of the changes are set out below.

i) Sales of equipment and other telecommunication services in bundled packages

For equipment sold in bundled packages, the Group prdyitmsted revenue to the amount that

was hot contingent on the provision of future telecommunication services. Under TFRS 15, the total
consideration in the contract is allocated to all products and sefivieas. equipment, mobile
telecommunication selses, and connection feésbased on their staralone selling prices. The
standalone selling prices are determined based on the list prices at which the Group sells those
products and services on their own in separate transactions. For items thatale separately the
Group estimates staradone selling prices using the expected cost plus a margin approach.

For those contracts including sales of a distinct equipment or distinct connection fee, a lower
proportion of consideration is allocated to gpent or connection fees and therefore revenue is
recognized later under TFRS 15 than under TAS 18. The impact of these changes on items other than
revenue is a decrease in income accruals.

Previously, the Group recognized revenuefminection fees imnaiately when connection services
wereprovided and the cost of connectimasalso recognized immediately as an expense. Under
TFRS 15, connection fees that are assessed as distinct are recognized as revenue. Connection fees
for activities that are an imprv e ment t o or an extension of the C
transfer of goods or services to the customers are determined as not distinct and no separate revenue
is recognized. For distinct connection fees revenue recognized is measured bdssd siand

alone selling pricesThe stanealone selling prices of connection fees are estimated based on
expected cost plus a margin approach. For connection fees that are not distinct, no portion of
consideration is allocation to ndafistinct connectiorfiees, and therefore revenue is recognized later

under TFRS 15 than under TAS 18. The impact of these changes on items other than revenue is a
decrease in income accruals.

13
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. Changes in accounting policies, comparative i

financial statements(continued)
a) TFRS 15Revenue fromcontracts with customers(continued)
ii) Subscriber acquisition and retention costs

Subscriber acquisition costs include commissions and premiums incurred for acquisition and

retention of subscribers.

The Group previously recognized commissions and premiums incurred for acquisitions/reiention
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year they are indundel. TFRS 15, the
Group capitalizes these commission and premiifirtieese costs aricrementalwith obtaining a
contract with a customer and if they are expected toebevered.Under TFRS 15, udbscriber
acquisitionand retentiorcosts areapitalized as intangible assets are amortized in marketing, sales
and distribution expenses. Subscriber acquisition costs are amaaizeidtently duringubscriber
life cycle andsubscriber retention costs are amortized consistently during the the renewal period.

iii ) Significant financing component

To estimate the transaction price in a contract, the Group adjusts the promised amount of

consideration to reflect the time value mbney if the contract contains a significant financing
component. Significant financing component exidtise timing of payments agreed to by the parties
to the contract (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a signific

benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. The discount rate used is the
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer

at a contract inception.
Indefeasible right of us¢ il RUO ) contracts of the

Group

ar e

component. The Group previously was not adjusting for significant financing component under TAS
18. Under TFRS 15, consideration is adjusted to reflect the financing component ahffzetion
and related financing component is recognized as interest expense in financial expenses and

presented separately from revenue from customers in profit or loss.
iv) Impacts on the consolidated financial statements

The following table summarizéke impact, net of tax, of transition to TFRS 15 on retained earnings

at 1 January 2018:

Impact of adopting TFRS 15
at 1 January 2018

Retained earnings

Sales of equipment in bundled packages and connection f (204.412)
Subscribeacquisition/retention costs 843.203
Significant financing component (45.607)
Related tax (43.406)
Currency translation difference 2.468
Impact at 1 January 2018 552.246
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.
2.3.

a)

Changes

i n

account i

financial statements(continued)
TFRS 15Revenue fromcontracts with customers(continued)
iv) Impacts on the consolidatedinancial statements (continued)

The

f ol

owi

ng

tabl es

unl ess

ng

I' TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

lloothdr eurremcies are asdiscliosedh,

policies,

summari ze

comparative

a

t h e cdnsoljdaedt s
financial statements as 3t December 2018r each of the line items affected.

i. Impact on theconsolidatedstatement of financial position

Impact of changes in accounting policies

Balances

without

adoption of

31 December 2018 As reported Adjustments TFRS 15
Intangible assets b 9.738.095  (1.024.338) 8.713.757
Trade and other receivables a 5.384.712 18.165 5.402.877
Def. tax &set 896.513 (13.430) 883.083
Other 20.179.191 T 20.179.191
Total assets 36.198.511 (1.019.603) 35.178.90¢
Deferred tax liabilities 205.257 (64.910) 140.347
Deferred evenue a,c 1.108.42¢ (289.935) 818.493
Other 27.431.22% 1 27.431.22¢
Total liabilities 28.744.90¢ (354.845) 28.390.06%
Retahed arnings 1.288.993 (552.246) 736.747
Foreign currency translatioriférence 417.238 10.583 427.821
Net profit (1.391.261) (123.095) (1.514.356)
Other 7.138.633 T 7.138.633
Total equity 7.453.603 (664.758) 6.788.84%

a.Sales of equipment and other telecommunication services in bundled paakadgesnection fees
b. Subscriber acquisition and retention costs
c. Significant financing component
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. Changes in accounting policies, comparative
financial statements(continued)

a) TFRS 15Revenue fromcontracts with customers(continued)

iv) Impacts on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
ii. Impact on theconsolidatedstatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Impact of changes in accounting policies

Balances
without
adoption of

31 December 2018 As reported Adjustments  TFRS 15
Sales a,c 20.430.90C 29.794  20.460.694
Marketing, sales and distribution expenses b (2.409.985) (181.135) (2.591.120)
Financial income / (expensegin c (6.449.820) 17.510 (6.432.310)
Tax expense 631.020 10.736 641.756
Other (13.593.376 T (13.593.376
Profit (1.391.261) (123.095) (1.514.356)
Total comprehensive income 4.041.39 (123.095) 3.918.2%

a.Sales of equipment and other telecommunication services in bundled paakagmsnection fees
b. Subscriber acquisition and retention costs
c. Significant financing component
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3. Changes in accounting policies, comparative nf or mat i on and restatement
financial statements(continued)
a) TFRS 15Revenue fromcontracts with customers(continued)

iv) Impacts on the consolidated financial statements (continued)

iii. Impact on theconsolidatedstatement of cash flows

Impact of changes in accounting policies

Balances
without
adoption of
31 December 2018 As reported Adjustments  TFRS 15
Profit for th e period (1.391.261) (123.095) (1.514.356)
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash
provided by operating activities:
-Depreciation and amortisation expense b 3.717.763 (480.139) 3.237.624
-Tax expenses (631.020) (10.736) (641.756)
-Other 7.407.83 T 7.407.83
Changes in workingcapital:
-Increase in other payabledated with operations 396388 (47.303) 349.585
-Other (1.053.815) T (1.053.815)
Cash flow from operating activities (857.443 T (857.443)
Net cash from operating activities 7.588.9% (661.273) 6.927.6@
Purchases of property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets b (4.065.306) 661.273 (3.404.033)
Other (60.644) T (60.644)
Net cash from investing activities (4.125.950) 661.273 (3.464.677)
Other (3.301.596) T (3.301.596)
Net cash from financingactivities (3.301.596) 1 (3.301.596)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents before currency translation
differences 161.389 T 161.389
Effect of changes in foreing exchange rates ir
cash and cash equivalents 48.59 T 48.59
Cash andatash equivalents at the beginning of
the period 3.688.104 T 3.688.104
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period 3.898.092 T 3.898.092

a.Sales of equipment and other telecommunication services in bundled paakadgesnection fees

b. Subscriber acquisition and retention costs
c. Significant financing component
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies, comparative informatoand r est at ement of pri
financial statements(continued)

b) TFRS 9Financial instruments

The Group has initially adopted TFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 with a date of
initial application of 1 January 2018. TFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some contrackayoor sell norfinancial items.

The following table summarizes the impact, net of tax, of transition to TFRS 9 on retained earnings
and other comprehensive incortel January 2018:

Impact of adopting TFRS 9 at 1
January 2018

Retained earnings/(losse$
Recognition of expected credit losses under TFRS 9 (263.230)
Changes in carrying amount of liabilities measurec

FVTPL at initial apllication in accordance with TFRS ! 156.390
Related tax (13.912)
Opening balance under TFRS 9 (1 January 2018) (120.752)

Impact of adopting TFRS 9 at 1
January 2018

Other comprehensive income

Changes in carrying amount of liabilities measurec (228.884)
FVTPL at initial apllication in accordance with TFRS !

Related tax 45.777
Opening balance under TFRS 41 January 2018) (183.107)

i. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

TFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized
cost, fair wvalue through o @ndfirvalgedhnopgh préfitoniess ve i n
(AFVTPLO) . The classification of financi al ass
model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. TFRS 9
eliminates the previauTAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available

for sale. Under TFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the
scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid finanaiahénstas a whole is

assessed for classification.

The adoption of TFRS 9 has not had a significeé
financial liabilities except for bills, bonds and notes issued.

As at 1 January 2018, the Group has useaptien to reclassify its bills, bonds and notes issued on
initial application as measured at fair value through profit or loss as allowed in transition
requirements of TFRS 9 which is permitted when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measuremenor recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and measures bills, bonds and notes issued and
acmounts for related gains and losses under TFRS 9, see Note 2.4.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies, comparative information and restatement of prior peyid s 0
financial statements(continued)

b) TFRS 9Financial instruments (continued)

i. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilitig®ntinued)

The effect of adopting TFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 Januas}£2638
solely to the new impairment requirements, as described further below.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and measures financial assets and accounts for related
gains and losses under TFRS 9, see [¥ate

ii. Impairment of financial asets

TFRS 9 replaces the O6incurred | ossd model in TA
The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and contract assets,
but not to investments in equity instruments. The dedéilse new model under TFRS 9 is disclosed

in Note 2.4.

Impact of the new impairment model
As at 1 January 2018, the effect of impairment allowance under TFRS 9 is as follows:

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2017 under TAS 39 (2.864.484)
Additional impairment recognized at 1 January 2018 on:
- Trade receivables (24.876)
- Other assets and receivables (17.568)
- Provision for expected credit losses on loan commitments (220.786)
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 under TFRS 9 (3.127.714)

iii. Hedge accounting

When initially applying TFRS 9, the Group may choose as its accounting policy to continue to apply
the hedge accounting requirements of TAS 39 instead of the requirements in TFRS 9. The Group has
not elected to adopt the new general hedge accounting madeiRS 9. Accounting policies applied

in preparation otonsolidatedinancial statements as at 31 Decenf#l7 have not changed.

As at 1 July 2018, the Group has elected to adopt the new general hedge accounting model in TFRS
9. This requires the Group ensure that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk
management objectives and strategy and to apply a more qualitative and fawkang approach

to assessing hedge effectiveness.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contractedgéd the variability in cash flows arising

from changes in foreign exchange rates relating to foreign currency borrowings and bill and bond
issuance. The Group uses cross currency swaps that are used as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge transactiormnly in the fair value changes of the spot value in the hedging relationship. The
effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments is accumulated in a cash flow hedge
reserve as a separate component of equity.

Under TAS 39, time value ofption contracts were recognized in profit or loss at the time of change

in fair value. However, under TFRS 9, time value of options are accounted for as a cost of hedging;
they are recognised in OCI and accumulated in a cost of hedging reserve as a sepgrahent

within equity.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23 Changes in accounting policies, comparative inf
financial statements(continued)

b) TFRS 9Financial instruments (continued)
iii. Hedge accountingcontinued)

Under TAS 39, for all cash flow hedges, the amounts accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
were reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustmehné isame period as the hedged
expected cash flows affected profit or loss. The same approaches also apply under TFRS 9 to the
amounts accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve.

Hedge Ineffectiveness

The Group monitors source of ineffectiveness over thiese of the hedge relation period. The
change in the fair value of the hedged item will be calculated using the hypothetical derivative
method.

The entire fair value of the participating cross currency and cross currency swap including currency
basis waglesignated as the hedging instrument. The hypothetical derivative is modelled to exclude
the currency basis. Hedge ineffectiveness is determined by comparing the actual derivative which
includes currency basis to the hypothetical derivative which doésahlatle currency basis.

There is O6an economic relationshipd between th
underlying of the hedging instrument matches, and aligned with, the hedged risk so that the hedging
instrument and the hedged item arpexted to move in opposite directions as a result of a change

in the hedged risk.

The effect of credit ri sk does not 6domi nat e
relationship. The impact of changes in credit risk are not magnitude suddivainates the value
changes, even if there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument.
The hedge ratio, between the amount of hedged item and the amount of hedging instrument is 1:1.
Effect arising from application of TFR9 hedge accounting requirements

The application of hedging approach in accordance with TFRS 9 does not have any impact on
retained earnings.

iv. Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 (2014) have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below.

- Comparative periods have not been restated for prior periods. Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of TFRS 9 are recognized in
retained ealings as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not
reflect the requirements of TFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for
2018 under TFRS 9.

- The following assessments have been made on #ie dfethe facts and circumstances that existed
at the date of initial application.

- The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

- The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for tradatg as
FVOCI.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
23 Changes in accounting policies, comparative inf
financial statements(continued)
b) TFRS 9Financial instruments (continued)
v. Classification of financial assets and liabilities on the date of initial application
The following table shows the original measurement categories under TAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under TFRS 9 foreathass of t he Groupbs financ
liabilities as at 1 January 2018:
Original
carrying New carrying
Original classification New classification ~ amount under  amount under
Note under TAS 39 under TFRS 9 TAS 39 TFRS 9
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 Loans andeceivables Amortisedcost 4.100.204 4.100.204
Trade and other receivables
(including related parties) 6,9 Loans andeceivables Amortised ost 4.999.469 4.974.93
Changes in fair value
attributable to other
Financial investments 14 Assets held for sale comprehensive income 11.840 11.840
Other assets 12 Loans andeceivables Amortisedcost 194.669 177.101
Financial liabilities
Other financial Other financial
Bank borrowings 5 liabilities liabilities 12.732.751 12.732.751
Other financial Fair value through
Bills, bonds and notes issued 5 liabilities profit or loss 3.756.388 3.828.882
Other financial Other financial
Financial leasing liabilities 7 liabilities liabilities 2.599 2.599
Interest ratewans Fair valuei hedging Fair valuei hedging
P 15 instruments instruments 117.389 117.389
Trade payables argtovisions Other financial Other financial
(including related parties) 6,9 liabilities liabilities 5.369.485 5.148699
The Groupbs accounting policies on the classifi

out in Note2.4. The application of these policies resulted in the reclassifications set out in the table
above and explained below.
- Trade and other receibbes that were classified as loans and receivables under TAS 39 are
classified at amortized cost under TFRS 9. An increase of TL 42.444 thousand in the
allowance for impairment was recognized in opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 on
transition toTFRS 9.
- In accordance with TFRS 9, expected credit losses are recognized for the guarantees given
for borrowings of distributors which are utilized in financing of equipment purchases that

wi ||

be

s ol

d

to

Groupds

cCust atmelansary 2318, par t

provision amounting to TL 220.786 is recognized in consolidated financial statements.

- Financial investments that were classified as available for sale financial assets under TAS
39 are now classified at FVOCI under TFRS 9. Those aasetsomprised of 6,84 % share

of

t he

Groupods

share

i n

Cet el

Tel ekom Kl et

Cost of Cetel is used as a measure for its fair value since management has insufficient recent
information to measure fair value.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23 Changes in accounting policies, comparative inf
financial statements(continued)

b) TFRS 9Financial instruments (continued)
v. Classification of financial assets and liabilities on the date of initial applicgtiontinued)

- Bills, bonds and notes issued that were classified as other financial liabilities under TAS 39
are classified as FVTPL under TFR@®permitted in transition requirements. Timrease
in carrying value of bills, bonds and notes is recognized imexaearnings amounting to
TL 156.390and in other comprehensive income amountingegativeTL 228.884as at 1
January 2018.

C) Property, plant and equipment

Group has commenced measuring its lands using the revaluation model compliant with TAS 16
starting from 31 December 2018 which have previously been measured under the cost model. In
accordance with the methods in TAS 16 related ap@rty, plant and equipment, since there is a
change in accounting policies to carry the assets with their revalued values, initial application of this
policy change is applied prospectively in accordance with the requirements of TAS 8. The details of
the accounting policy change regarding the measurement of lands are disclosed in Note 2.4. The
effect of the change on consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2018 is disclosed in
Note 19.

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attbiutable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assefs Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, FeqQ@Y
investment, or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes
its business model for managing dircial assets in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following casnditic is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose obijective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the inyv
This election is made on an investmbégtinvestment basis
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTI NUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued
The Group holds 6,84 % of shares of Cetel as equity investment and has elected to present changes

in fair value of Cetel in othesomprehensive incom€ost of Cetel is used as a measure for its fair
value since management has insufficient more recerniafiton to measure fair value.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets @$pt@nd equity investments
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otheanise

Financial assets: Business model assessimniealicy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the wayusiadss is managed and information
is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whet lesening codtraciug e me nt (
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is eval

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed,;
- how managers of the business are compen$ategl whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, thesreas
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales.
Financial assets that are managed and whose performanceuatedabn a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interesti Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
OPrincipal déd is definedsasstt ben fiaiirt ivadl we coofg ntihte
as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing tiigether
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

2.
2.4
a)

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual kagh dre solely payments of principal and

interesti Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms
features).

t hat l'imit the Groupds cl ai-necourse

a

cash

A prepayment feature is castent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensatiohyftemmaination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual parcaamt plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial retoaq.

Trade receivables and other receivables meet solely payments of principal and interest test since
principal is the present value of the expected cash flows. Those receivables are managed in line with
the held to collect business model.

Financialassets: Subsequent measurement and gains andild3sksy applicable from 1 January

2018

Financial assets at
FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are comprised of derivatives. These asse
subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and lossesdjnigctuny interest, ar
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are comprised of cash and cash equivalen
receivables, other receivables and other assets. These assets are subg
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortiz
is reducd by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss -saadgnition
is recognized in profit or loss.

Equity investments
at FVTPL

Equity investments at FVTPare sthsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or Ig

Equity investments
at FVOCI

Equity investments at FVOGlnc |l ude t he Gr o u fekekThese
assets are bgequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as ir
in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of th
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and ar

reclassified tgrofit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial asset®olicy applicable before 1 January 2018

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognized loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they were
originated. Allother financial assets were recognized initially on the trade date at which the Group
became a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Non-derivative financial assets were comprised of loans and receivables and cash and cash
equivalents anfinancial investments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables were financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not
guoted in an active market. Such assets were recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
atributable tranaction costsSubsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables were measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables were comprised of cash and cash equivalents, and trade arwkivihigles,
receivables from related parties and financial investments.

Receivables from customers in relation to a component of revenue were recognized as trade
receivables in financial statements. Receivables that were not classified as trade recaidabéze
not financial investments were recognized as other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents were comprised of cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignifi¢aot dsanges in their
fair value, and were used by the Group in the management of itaatmrtommitments.

Cash and cash equivalents were comprised of cash, cash at banks and other cash and cash equivalents.

Project and reserve accounts were inclughedther current assets. The use of project and reserve
accounts were subjected to the approval of the lender in accordance with the financial contracts.

Financial investments

As of 31 DecembeR017, the Group accounted its 6%4shareholding in Cetel asnéincial
investments in the consolidated financial statements. As of 31 December 2017, Cetel was carried at
cost after deducting impairment, if any and accounted under financial investments in the consolidated
financial statements because the Company dithaee significant influence at Cetel.

25



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statementsriginally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)
ii. Classification andsubsequent measurement (continued)
Financial asset$20licy applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cé3tTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as h#édd-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, iading any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. The Group does not have
any financial liabilities at FVTPL except for derivativesd bills, bonds and notes issued

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cogtthsieffective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initiallyrecognized debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they
were originated. All other financial liabilities were recognized initially on the trade date, which was
the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual pnsvigithe instrument.

The Group classified nederivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category
except for bills, bonds and notes issu8dch financial liabilities were recognized initially at fair
value less any directly atbutable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
liabilities were measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabities were comprised of loangade and other payables, payables tdedla
parties and other payables.

Bills, bonds and notes issed are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amount of change
in the fair value of the bills, bonds and notes issued that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liabilityis recognized in other comprehensive income and the remaining amount of change in
the fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

Trade payables were payables to third parties in relation to their capacity as suppliers. Payables
stemming from transactionsith parties that were not suppliers or customers which were not
classified as trade payables and were not a result of financing operations were recognized as other
payables.

When a financial instrument gave rise to a contractual obligation on the plagt@foup to deliver

cash or another financial asset or to exchange another financial instrument under conditions that were
potentially unfavorable, it was classified as a financial liability. The instrument was equity instrument

if, the following were me

a) The instrument included no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity; or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that were potentially unfavorable to the@ro

b)lrf the instrument would or might be set-tl ed i
derivative that included no contractual obligation for the Group to deliver a variable number of its

own equity instruments; or a derivative that wouddgettled only by the Group exchanging a fixed

amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

26



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statementsriginally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)
iii. Derecognition
Derecognitiori” Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Financial assets

The Group derecognized a financial asset when the contractual rights to thewa$tom the asset
expired, or it transferred the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset were transferred. Any
interest in such transferred firdal assets that was created or retained by the Group was recognized
as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Groaso derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the maodified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognitiorof a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any +oash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognitiori Policy applicable before 1 Jaary 2018

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards ofr@sship of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest

in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate
asset or liability.

The Group derecognized a financial liability when its contractuabatidbns were discharged,
cancelled or expired.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable sgt off

the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

v. Impairment

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Group recognizsloss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- contract assets (as defined in TFRS 15).
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accountingpolicies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)

v. Impairmen{continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 20@®ntinued)

Financial instruments and contract ass@tentinued)

Under TFRS 9, loss allowances are measareéither of the following bases:

- Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected

life of a financial instrument; and

- 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible

within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following,
which are measured as-tr#onth ECL:

- bank balances for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for tradeceivables, other receivables, other assets and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimatiigCL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information

that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
gualitative information and analysis, debised on
assessment and including forwdedking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers bank balances to haweddit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to the globally understood definition of &inves

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over

which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

12-month expected credit losses are that result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date.

The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is expogectredit risk.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a)  Financial instruments (continued)

v. Impairmen{continued)

Policy applicable from January 2018continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probabilityveighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls.

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

For trade receivables, other receivables, other assets and contract assets the Group applies the
simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed in TFRS 9, which requires the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all tradesivables The Group performed the
calculation of ECL rates separately for individual, corporate, public and wholesale customers. The
ECLs were calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the past years.

Exposures within each group were segmeii@sed on common credit risk characteristics such as
delinquency status.

Actual credit loss experience was adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during

the period over which the historical data was collected, current conditions @dtGr oup 6s Vvi e\
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivablgsreFcollection performance of
receivables are estimated by considering general economic conditions to incorporate forward looking
information to the expected credit lasaculations.

Creditimpaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
crediti mpai r ed. A f i nainmp ail r eadsbs ewh eins odncer edari t mor e
detrimental impacbn the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is cradipaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such adefault or being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financiatganization; or
- the dimppearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of impairment in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amountof the assets.

Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables, including contract assets, are presented
separately in the statement of profit or loss. As a result, the Group reclassified impairment losses
amounting to TL468.115 recognized&under TAS 39, from d6dgener al ad
dmpairment (losses) / gains in accordance with TFRS 8, nett tondolldaedtatement of profit

or loss for period endegll DecembeR017.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Financial instruments (continued)
v. Impairmen{continued)
Policy applicable before 1 January 2qt8ntinued)

| mpairment | osses on other financi al assets ar
similar to the presentation under TAS 39, and not presented separatelgongbidatedstatement

of profit or loss dud¢o materiality considerations.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent

that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines

that the debtor does not have assetoarces of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the wofé However, financial assets that are written off could still

be subject to enforcement activitiescavarlyobrder t
amounts due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. Where trade receivables, other receivables,
other assets and contract asbetge been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in
profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date, The Group assessed whether a fingetiat geoup of financial assets

were impaired. When an objective evidence existed which represented that an impairment loss
occurred in the receivables and loans stated as its amortized cost or the investments held until their
maturity, amount of the lossas been determined as the difference between the current value
calculated by discounting the estimated cash flows (excluding unrealized loan losses in the future)
in the future based on the original interest rate (the effediiteeest rate calculatedhen initial
accounting occurred) of the financial asset and the carrying value

Carrying value of the asset was decreased directly or by using a provision account. The related loss
amount was recognized in income statement.

In the subsequent term, if the impairment loss decreased and the related decrease was objectively
associated with a case (such as improvement at the credit rate of the obligator) occurred after the
impairment loss had been recognized/accounted, the reeaginipairment loss had been reversed
directly or by using a provision account. The reverse could not cause carrying value of the related
financial asset to be higher than the amortized value which arose as at the date of the reversal of
impairment if the impairment was not recognized/accounted. The reversed amount was
recognized/accounted in income statement.

Reserve was provided for the overdue uncollectible receivables. Also portfolio reserve was provided
for the not due receivables based on certaiteria. The carrying amount of the receivable was
reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts were derecognized when they were
assessed as uncollectible.
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2.
2.4
a)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

vi. Derivative financial instruments

Cash flow hedges

The Group has adopted TFR&i@ancial Instrumentsreplacing TAS 39 in accordance with the risk
management strategy and objectives as of 1 July 2018. Thdekiglhaim of the new hedge
accounting model is that financial reporting will reflect more accurately how an entity manages its

risk and the extent to which hedging mitigates those riSkecfically, the new model aims to
provide a better | ink between an entityds ri sk
impact of hedging on the financial statements.

The Group enters into participating cross currency swap transactions irtotamige the changes

in cash flows of floating and fixed rate financial instruments. While applying cash flow hedge
accounting, the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument is
accounted for wundernrc oinoet/heexrp ecrosnep rietheemmss itvoe be r ec
in equity, and the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss. The changes recognized in equity

is removed and included in profit or loss in the same period when the hedged cash flowhesffec

profit or loss. In addition, time value of options included in participating cross currency swaps are
accounted for cost of hedging and recognized under other comprehensive income.

Under IFRS 9, a hedging relationship is discontinued in its entiuteéy as a whole it ceases to meet

the qualifying criteria after considering the rebalancing of the hedging relationship. Voluntary
discontinuation when the qualifying criteria are met is prohibited. Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the risk managemembjective for the hedging relationship has changed, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, there is no longer an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging instrument or when the effect of credit risk stamtidg

the value changes that result from the economic relationship.

When the Group discontinues hedge accounting for a cash flow hedge it shall account for the amount
that has been accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve in accordance as follows;

-if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur, that amount shall remain in the cash flow
hedge reserve until the future cash flows occur.

-if the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, that amount shall be immediately
reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. A
hedged future cash flow that is no longer highly probable to occur may still be expected to occur.
The amount recognized in OCI prior discontinuation will béassified from OCI to Profit and

Loss, in accordance with the contractual cash flow of the hedged item.

The new hedge effectiveness testing model is prospective only and can be qualitative, depending on
the complexity of the hedge. Effectiveness range-8@%%6 in TAS 39 is replaced by an objectives

based test that focuses on the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, and the effect of credit risk on that economic relation
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
b)  Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and measurement

Property, pl ant and e g uothernhamands i§¢ GaRi€dBtocpst less t he
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The Group elected to measure
property, plant and equipment of the Company on a deemed cost basis in the first period of
applicationoffAS 29 AFinanci al R eopnoarrtyi nEgc oinno nH/yop esri nlcnef |0
of the acquisition date and costs of items of PPE were not available for the Company prior to 1
January 2000. The deemed cost values for buildings as at 1 January 2000 were appraised by CMB
licensed reakstate valua&n companies. The network equipment and vehicles values were appraised

by Detecon International GmbH (a subsidiary of Deutsche Telecom AG). Other than the PPE for
which cost was determined on a deemed cost basis, the cost of PPE generally comprisbass pu

price, including import duties and neefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs

of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. PPE that are
recognized at deemed cost basis or at cost area@$tatthe effects of inflation until 31 December

2004 in accordance witfhAS 29.

Lands accounted as property, plant and equipment are measured at revalued amount. Revalued
amount for lands is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any sulbsemuenulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are performed in regular intervals depending on the changes in fair values of the items

of lands being revaluedlhe increase in carrying amount of lands as a resutewdluation is

recognized in components of other comprehensive income compdfere.n | andds carryir
declines as a result of a revaluation, this declined amount is recognized in profit or loss. However,

the decline shall be recognized in other poelmensive income to the extent of any credit balance

existing in the revaluation surplus. Thus, the relevant decline reduces the accumulated amount in
equity under the heading of revaluation surplus.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor costs are located and capitalized
borrowing costs. Purchased software that is natlelp the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized net
within Aincome |/ (expensobtprlofsrom i nvesting acti v

i) Subsequent cost

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Group and itsast can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of the dayday servicing of property and equipment are recognized in
consolidated statement pfofit / (loss)as incurred.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
b)  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
iif) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated effective from purchase or replacement date to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values using the ktigdhdis over
their estimated useful lives. Land is not depatail.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Property plant and equipment Useful life (years)
Buildings 21-50 years
Outside plant 5-21 years
Transmission equipment 5-21 years
Switching equipment 5-8 years
Data networks 3-10years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Settop box and satellite receiver 4 years
Other property, plant and equipment 2-8 years
Useful lives and residual values are reviwed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
The remaining useful lives of the PPE of the Company are limited to the concession periods.
Considering the Concession Agreemthigtremainingiseful lives otangible fixed assetwe8 years
at the most
Leased assets are depreciated by the same methofbupeaperty and equipment over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives
C) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
The Group measures goodwill at the acquisitiate as:

9 The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

I The recognized amount of any noontrolling interests in the acquiree; plus

1 If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of thgigtiag equity intezst

in the acquiree; less

1 The netrecognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recdgnizediately in profit or loss. The
consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlementeafstimg
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. Transactions costs, other than
those associated withalissuance of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection
with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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2,
2.4
c)

i)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCI AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measuraaitial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costsare not capitalized and expenditure is charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year when the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. The Group does not
have any intangiblassets with infinite useful lives. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized

on a straight line basis over the shorter of their useful economic lives or remaining concession period.
Whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset maya&red it is assessed for
impairment. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed each financial year end at least.

Changes in the expected useful lives or the expected pattern safneption of future economic

benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognizedni the consolidated income statement. The amortization periods for
intangible assets are between 3 and 25 years. The remaining useful lives of the intangible items are
limited to the concession period. Considering the Concession Agreemeaetnidiaingusdul lives

of intangible assets arey@arsat the most

iii) Research and development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is
recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate the ltéeasilogity of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to compéethe asset and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during development.

Impairment test is performed periodically in order to identify whether there is any impairment in the
development stage. After initial recognition, development costs ecegnized at cost less
amortization and impairment. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and
the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. Periodic
impairment tests are applied to tresets in order to foresee any probable impairment on the assets
in the period that they are not ready for utilization yet.

iv) TV contents

Rights to feature contents such as films, TV shows etc. acquired under license agreements along with
related obligatins are recorded at the contract value when a license agreement is executed or the
license period has begun. The amounts recognized are amortized on the licensing period or a per play
basis over the licensing period. To the extent that it is determinedhth@ontent has no future
programming usefulness and will no longer be exploited, the unamortized cost of the content is
written off.

34



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statementsriginally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

2.
2.4
d)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties, which are propertiedd to earn rent and/or for capital appreciation are
measured initially at cost plus all direct transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the ttenogni
criteria are met; and excludes the costs oftdagay servicing of an investment property. The Group
decided to measure investment property on a deemed cost basis in the first period of application of
TAS 29, since detailed records of the acquisitiate and costs of items of investment property were

not available prior to 1 January 2000 and restated these deemed cost basis for the effects of inflation
until 31 December 2004.

Investment properties are transferred from/to property, plant and equiginen their utilization
purpose is changehen investment properties are disposed, the difference between sales revenue
and the carrying amount is charged to the consolidated income statement.

Market values of the investment properties at 1 January 2@0€ determined by CMB licensed
independent reastate appraisers. Following initial recognition, investment properties are carried at
costs less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged to investmenoperties excluding land, over their estimated useful
economic lives, using the straigiie method. The useful lives of buildings that are owned by the
Group range between %0 years. The remaining useful life of the investment property is limited

by the concession agreement, except for the exception of the concession agreement. When
considering the Concession agreement the remaining useful lives of investment property is 8 years
at the most.

Assets held for sale

The Group classifies a namrrent asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the
asset (or the group of assets held for sale) must be available for immediatésalesent condition

subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly
probable. For the sale to be highly probable management must be committed to a plan to sell the
asset (or the group of assets Heldsale) and an active program to set the buyers and complete the
plan must have been initiated. Furthermore, the asset (or the group of assets held for sale) must be
actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its fairlaadddition, the sale

should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification and actions required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the plan wik made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

In case the period to complete sale of assets is extended due to circumstances which are not under
the control of the Group, the assets will continue to be classified as assets held for sale provided that
the Goup has still an active sales program.

The Group measures assets held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. The Group does not depreciate a-amment asset when it is classified as held for sale and

the gain ordss arising from the sale of the assets is classified at income / expense from investing
activities accounts.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
f) Leased assets
i) The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a stimighbasis over the term of the
relevant lease in the consolidated statement of income. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and

arranging an operating lease are adaetthe carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on
a straightline basis over the lease term.

i) The Group as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of owrghip to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Assets
held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease ptsybe corresponding liability

to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate ofenest on the remainingatance of the liability. Financialharges are

included to the consolidated income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straightline basis over the term of the redmt lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a stiagyhasis over the lease term.

g) Inventory

Inventories are recognized the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs comprise purchase cost
and, where applicable and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted evestignd. Net realizable

value is the less marketing, selling and other various expenses to be incurred in order to realize sale.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h)  Impairment

Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is an indication that any of its PPE and
intangible assets may be impaired. If such an indication existsg¢beerable amount of the asset

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the caskgenerating unito which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value usitex a pre
discount rate that reflesturrent market assessments of the time value of money.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or ggsterating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (gggterating unit) is reduced to its recoverateunt.
An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asggtnessing

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that weawld been determined had no impairment

loss been recognized for the asset (egesterating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairmentannually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Whenever the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

For thepurpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the egesherating units or groups of cagénerating units that

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisitiespective of whether other assets or
liabilities are assigned to these units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internalmanagement purposes.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of trgeoashting unit (group of

cash generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (group of cagfenerating units) is less théme carrying amounts of the net assets
assigned to the cagjenerating unit, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
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2.
2.4
h)
)

)

K)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Reserve for employee severance indemnity

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are chasgaa expense in the year in
which the contributions relate to. Payments made to the Social Security Institution of Turkey and
Turkish Republic Retirement Fund are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where
the Group©6s o elplang aré éqoivalent ta thase arising m a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan. The Group pays contributions to the Social Security Institution of Turkey on
a mandatory basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contritavehedn

paid. The contributions are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the period to which the
empl oyeesd service relates.

For defined benefit plans and other lelegm employment benefits, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using thagrojected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date. TR®mMpanyrecognizes the service cost of the previous period as expense at
the earlier of the dates below:

a) The date of the change or reduction inplan, and

b)  The date of the recognition of the related restructuring costs (see: TAS 37) or the benefits
deriving from the termination of the employment contract,

The retirement benefit obligation recognized donsolidated statement of financial positio
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for any unrecognized past
service cost. There is no funding requirement for defined benefit plans. The Group recognizes
actuarial gains and losses in titbercomprehensive incom

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimatan be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the managementds best estimate of
the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and for which their existence will be
confirmedonly by the occurrence or naccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
entirely within the control of the Group are treated as contingent assets or liabilities.

A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow ofuess embodying
economic benefits is remote. If the possibility of transfer of assets is probable, contingent liability is
recognized in the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant acounting policies (continued)
k)  Contingent assets and liabilitiegcontinued)

A contingent asset is disclosmconsolidated financial statemenisghen the possibility of an inflow

of economic benefits to the entity is probable. If it has become virtaailain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial
statements of the period in which the change occurs

)] Related parties
Parties are considered related to the Company if;
- A person oa close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
- Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
- Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

- Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reporting entity.

- The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group.
- The entity and the company are members of the same group.

- One entity is amssociate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

- Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

- One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and tither entity is an associate of the
third entity.

- The entity is a postmployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the @psoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

- The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

- A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management persehof the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

m) Revenue

The Group has applied TFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under TAS 18 and TAS 11. The details
of accounting policies under TAS 18 and TAS 11 are disclosed separately if they are different from
those under TFRS 15 and the impact of changes is disclosed in Note 2.3.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with aramsi@reludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

For the period ended 31 December 2017 (Acompar:
significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the customer, recovery of the
consideration was probable, the associated costs and possibheofethe goods and services could

be estimated reliably, there was no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the
amount of revenue could be measured reliably. Revenue was measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receilatand represented amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. Service revenues
were recorded at the time services were rendered

39



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statementsriginally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
m)  Revenue(continued)

i) Fixed line revenues

Revenues from fixetine telecommunication services like network access, local usage, domestic and
international long distance and infrastructure leases are recognized on an accrual basis as services
are provided.

Connection fees that are assessed aadistre recognized as revenue. Connection fees for activities
that are an i mprovement to or an extension of
goods or services to the customer are determined as not distinct and no separate revenue is
recaynized. For distinct connection fees in a bundle, revenue recognized is measured based on their
standalone selling prices. The staatbne selling prices of connection fees are estimated based on
expected cost plus a margin approach. Distinct connecties &re immediately recognized as
revenue when connection services are provided and the cost of connection is also recognized
immediately as an expense.

Revenues from sale of indefeasible right of use contracts, which are long term capacity/line rental
arrangements, are accounted over the term of the contract.

ii) Mobile revenues

Revenues generated from mobile telecommunication services such as outgoing and incoming traffic,
roaming revenues, revenues from value added services and monthly fees wiécbgmized at the

time services are rendered. With respect to prepaid outgoing revenues, the Group generally collects
cash in advance by selling scratch cards to dealers and distributors. In such cases, the Group does
not recognize revenues until the sufisers use the service and present such amounts under deferred
revenues in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group recognizes content revenue based on the agreement between the Group and the content
providers. As the Group is the primary obligoi the service, the revenue received from the
subscribers is presented on gross basis and the portion paid to the content providers is recognized as
operating expense.

iii) Equipment sale revenues

Revenues from sales of phone device, modem and other ketgquipment are recorded as revenue
when control over a product or service is transferred to a customer.

For bundled packages, the Group accounts for individual products and services separately if they are
distincti i.e. if a product or service is sepalgtidentifiable from other items in the bundled package

and if a customer can benefit from it either on its own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer. The consideration is allocated between distinct products aed seevi

bundle based on their staatbne selling prices. The staatbne selling prices are determined based

on the list prices at which the Group sells those products and services separately. For items that are
not sold separately the Group estimatesmidtlone selling prices using the expected cost plus a
margin approach. Equipment revenues are presented in other revenues. Cost of products and services
are recognized as expense when related revenue is recognized.

iv) TV revenues

Revenues from TV subsptions are charged to contract customers on a monthly basis. Revenues
are invoiced and recorded as part of a periodic billing cycle, and are recognized as the services are
provided. Payperview revenue is recognized when the movie is rented. Advertiswenue is
recognized as the commercials are aired.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
m)  Revenue(continued)

V) Subscriber acquisitioncosts

Subscriber acquisition costs include commissions and premiums incurred for acquisition and
retention of subscribers.

The Group capitalizes these commission and premiums as incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer and if they are exped to be recovered. Subscriber acquisition costs are amortized
consistently during the subscriber life cycle and subscriber retention costs are amortized consistently
during the renewal period and amortization expense is recognized in marketing,ddistridnution
expenses.

vi) Significant financing component

To estimate the transaction price in a contract, the Group adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the time value of money if that contract contains a significant financing component.
Significant financing component exidgfsthe timing of paymerst agreed to by the parties to the
contract (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer.

I ndefeasi ble right of aup are ddjudter o significamtnfihancing t s o f
component. For bundled contracts where the control of equipment is transferred to the customer
upfront but collection is made in installments, no significant financing component is recognized
based on materialityonsiderations.

n)  Income from investing activities and expense from investing activities
Income from investing activities are comprised of incomes from scrap and property, plant and
equipment sales.
Expense from investing activities are comprised of tossales of property, plant and equipment
sales.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
0) Financial income and financial expense
The Groupbs finance income and finance costs ir

interest income;

interest expense;

transaction cost;

coupon payments of bond;

gainsand losses on hedging instruments recognized in profit or loss;
foreign currency gains or losses on financial asart financial liabilities.

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The Oeffective interest rated is the rate that
receipts through the expected life of the ficiahinstrument to:

g. the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
h. the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is apphiedjross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not emagiaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become cneqliired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer cradpaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs that cannot be matched with acquisition tagt®n or production of an asset are
recognized in profit or loss by using effective interest rate.

Rediscount, interest and foreign exchange gains and losses arising from trading transactions are
recognized in other operating income and expense.

Accountng for significant financing component is disclosed in detail in Noter)4.(
p)  Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit/(loss) for the period attributable

to ordinary shareholders by the weighted averagaber of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

r Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
the consolidated statement pfofit/ (loss) except to the extent that it relates to a bussne
combination or items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

i) Current tax

Current tax is comprised of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to tax payable or redeivwalbespect of previous years. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any
tax arising from dividends. Prepaid corporation taxes and corporate tax liabilities are offset when
they elate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the consolidated financial statdmge

been calculated on a separatdity basis.

~poooTw
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
r Taxes (continued)

i Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognizeah temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax lggbdite generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred taxs not recognized for:

A Temporary differences on the initial recogni:t
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss;

A Temporary dif f emestsircsabsidiaries,|associatds ahdgoini arrangesénts to
the extent that the Groupbés able to control the
it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

A Tax ab | edifferencapanising onyhe initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available woaillor part
of the asset to be recovered.

The Company and the other consolidated subsidiaries have reflected their deferred tax asset and
liabilities by netting their individual balances; however, there is no netting on a consolidation basis.
Deferred ta is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset realized.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax loses, unused tax credits an deductible temporary
differences to the extent thiais possible that future taxable profits will be available against which

they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized

iii) Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferredth@xGroup takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New
information may beame available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the
period that such a determination is made.

The Group believes that its accrualstiox liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Summary of significant accounting poicies (continued)

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of theGr oup6s ot her components. Al operating
regularly by the Groupbs board of directors to
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financiabitiboris available.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Groupds accounting policies and
for both financial and nofinancial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for
measirement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific

to that asset or liability.

i) Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date-t8honteceivables with no stated
interest rate are measured at the original invomeumt if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
This fair value is determined at initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period for
disclosure purposes.

ii) Derivatives
The fair value of interest rate swaps and forward exchange contradigsed on broker quotes.
Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the
terms and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates for a similar instrument at the
measurement date. Fair valueflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to
take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and counterparty when appropriate.

i) Bills, bonds and notes issued

The fair values of bills, bonds and notes issued are determitiedeférence to their quotedlue
at the measurement date. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of bills, bonds and notes
issued are determined for disclosure purposes only.

iv) Other nonderivative financial liabilities

Other nonderivativefinancial liabilities are measured at fair value, at initial recognition and for
disclosure purposes, at each annual reporting date. Fair value is calculated based on the present value
of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the mastetof interest at the
measurement date

v) Lands

Lands accounted as property, plant and equipment are measuesdlued amount. Revalued
amount for lands is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

u)  Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted as of 31 December 2018

A number of new standards, interpretations of and amendments to existing standards are not effective
at reporting date and earlier application is permitted; howineetsrouphas not early adopted are
as follows.

TFRS 16 Leases

On 16 April 2018, POA issuk the new leasing standard which will replace TAS 17 Leases, TFRS
Interpretation 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, TAS Interpretation 15
Operating LeaséisIncentives, and TAS Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease and consequently changes to TAS 40 Investment Properties.
TFRS 16 Leases eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which distinguishes
between orbalance sheet finance leases anedbafince sheet opeirg leases. Instead, there is a
single, onbalance sheet accounting model that is similar to current finance lease accounting. Lessor
accounting remains similar to current practice. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 Janug 2019, with early adoption permitted provided that an entity also adopts TFRS
16.

The Group is required to adopt TFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019. The Group is assessing the
estimated impact that initial application of TFRS 16 will have on its coraelid financial
statements, as described below.

TFRS 16 introduces a single, -balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a rightf-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representingts obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions faesatnort
leases and leases of laxalue items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current stantdard
lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating.leases

i. Leases in which the Group is a lessee
The Group, recognises a righif-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payment on its consolidated financial

statementsThe rature of expenses related to those leases will now change because the Group will
recognise a depreciation charge for righituse assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.

Previously, the Group recognised operating lease expense on a dinaidlaisis over the term of
the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference
between actual lease payments and the expense recognized.

ii. Leases in which the Group is a lessor

The Group will reassess theaaskification of sutbeases in which the Group is a lessor.

iii. Transition

The Group plans to apply TFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard as astraéiu to the

opening balance of retained earnings recognised at 1 January 2019. Prior period comperative
consolidated financial statements will not be restated.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policiegcontinued)

u) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted as 8fL December 2018

(continued)
TFRS Interpretation 23 i Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments

On 24 May 2018, PO#ssued TFRS Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to

specify how to reflect uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. It may be unclear how tax law
applies to a particular transaction or circumstance, or whether a taxation authbréagcept a
companyodos tax treatment. TAS 12 I ncome Taxes s|
tax, but not how to reflect the effects of uncertainty. TFRS Interpretation 23 provides requirements

that add to the requirements in TAS 12 by sp&if how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes. The Interpretation is effective from 1 January 2019 with earlier
application is permitted. The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial
statementsasulting from the application of TFRS Interpretation 23

Amendments to TFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation

On December 2017, POA has issued amendments to TFRS 9 to clarify that financial assets containing
prepayment features with ney& compensation can now be measured at amortised cost or at fair

value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of
TFRS 9. Under TFRS 9, a prepayment option in a financial asset meets this criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest, which may
include O6reasonable additional compensationé fo
are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 20ill9 earlier application permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact ooditsolidated financial statememesulting from
the application of the amendments to TFRS 9.

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

On December 2017, POA has issued amendments to TAS 28 to clarify that entities also apply TFRS

9 to other financial instruments in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not
applied. These include lortgrm interests that, insubstenc f or m part of the ent
in an associate or joint venture. An entity applies IFRS 9 to suckhéonmginterests before it applies

related paragraphs of TAS 28. In applying TFRS 9, the entity does not take account of any
adjustments to & carrying amount of lonterm interests that arise from applying TAS 28. The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application
permitted

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidatattial statements resulting from
the application of the amendments to TAS 28.

The revisedConceptual Framework

The revisedConceptuaFramework issued on 27 October 2018 by the POA. Qdreeptual
Frameworksets out the fundamental concepts for financegorting that guide the POA in
developing TFRS Standards. It helps to ensure that the Standards are conceptually consistent and
that similar transactions are treated the same way, so as to provide useful information for investors,
lenders and other credis. TheConceptual Frameworkdso assists companies in developing
accounting policies when no TFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction, and more broadly,
helps stakeholders to understand and interpret the Standards. The revised Framework is more
comprehensive than the old dnés aim is to provide the POA with the full set of tools for standard
setting. It covers all aspects of standard setting from the objective of financial reporting, to
presentation and disclosurémr companies that use tB®nceptual Frameworio develop
accounting policies when no TFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction, the revised
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2.
2.4

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary o significant accounting policies(continued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA

The revisedConceptual Framework (continued)

Conceptual Framewoiik effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020,
with earlier application permitted

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by
the IASB but these standards, interpretsiand amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet
adapted/issued to TFRS by the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. Such standards,
interpretations and amendments that are issued by the IASB but not yet issued by the POA are
referred to a IFRS or IAS. The Group will make the necessary changes to its consolidated financial
statements after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018017 Cycle
Improvements to IFRSs

IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS2015 2017 Cycle. The amendments are effective as
of 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The Group does not expect that application of
these improvements to IFRSs will have significant impact on itsflaated] financial statements.

IFRS 3 Business Combinationand IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 3 and IFRS 11 are amendedlarify how a company accounts for increasing its interest in a
joint operation that meets the definition of a business. If a party obtains control, then the transaction
is a business combination achieved in stages and the acquiring party remeasuegdhsly held
interest at fair value. If a party maintains (or obtains) joint control, then the previously held interest
is not remeasured.

IAS 12Income Taxes
IAS 12 is amended to clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (includingrpsym

financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profitse. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income (OCI) or equity.
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

IAS 23 is amendedbtclarify that the general borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing
costs excludes only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under
development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specificallgéimpalifying assets

that are now ready for their intended use or s@eany nonqualifying asset$ are included in that
general pool.
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2.
2.4

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE D)
Summary of significant accounting policiegcontinued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA (continued)

Amendments to IAS 19- Plan Amendment,Curtailment or Settlement

On 7 February 2018, IASB issued Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS
19). The amendments clarify the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
occurs. A company now uses updated actuasslimptions to determine its current service cost and

net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain
or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensiee incom
(OCI). The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier
application permitted

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from
the application of the amendntsrio 1AS 19.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

In October 2018 the IASB issued Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8). The
amendments <clarify and align the definition
consistency in the application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards. Those
amendments are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with
earlier application permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from
the application of the amendmentdA® 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3- Definition of a Business

Determining whether a transaction results in an amseét business acquisition has long been a
challenging but important area of judgement. The IASB has issued amendments to IFRS 3 Business
Combinations that seek to clarify this matter. The amendments include an election to use a
concentration test. This sssimplified assessment that results in an asset acquisition if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of
similar identifiable assets. If a preparer chooses not to apply the catimentest, or the test is

failed, then the assessment focuses on the existence of a substantive phecasgendment applies

to businesses acquired in annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from
the application of the amendments to IFRS 3.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.5 Significant accounting assessments, estimates and assumptions

I n the process of applying the Groupds accounti
judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements (excluding those involving estimations).

i) Operating Lease CommitmeritsGroup as LessorThe Company has entered into a cfoss
occupation agreement with PTT. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks
and rewardsf ownership of its properties subject to the agreement which are leased out on operating
leases.

ii) Income from Sales Campaig@roup makes sales campaigns with suppliers under which they
bundle telecommunication services with equipment supplied by sthgpliers. The Group
management accounts bundled offers as an agent if the sale transaction satisfies the below conditions:

i. Group, has no inventory risk.

j-  Group has no responsibility on technical qualifications of equipment delivered to customers
and resposibility after sale belongs to supplier.

k. Group does not make any modification on the equipment.
I.  Group earns either a fixed rate of commission or zero profit on the transaction.

iif) Prepaid Card Sales AgentPrincipal Analysis:Since TT Mobilis primarly responsible for
providing the service, has credit and inventory risk and determinant in setting prices; starting from
April 2010, TT Mobil recognizes prepaid card incomes on a gross basis.

iv) Commission incomé&he Group renders intermediary collectg@vices regarding handsets sold

by the distributors at the Group exclusive sale channels. Accordingly, the arrangement with the
customer includes both handset principal amount and GSM services. Total considerations have been
collected from the customevgth up to 36 month instalments via GSM bills where each benefit is
clearly identifiable and separable. the Group does not recognize any revenues from the sale of
handsets and acts as an agent since it has no control over price , nor risk on stock r, losveve
collection risk of handset principal amount is on the Group and the distributors collect this amount
from the Group on monthly basis. Apart from the GSM revenues, since customer base and sales
channels are made available to the distributors, thepg=rbarges a commission to those distributors.

This commission income is classified under other revenues and it is recognized when the handset is
delivered to the customer.

v) Content SalesSinceTT Mobil is primarily responsible for providing the serviteas credit and
determinant in setting price$T Mobil recognizes content revenues on a gross basis.

vi) Liabilities within the scope of vendor financirfgor capital expenditures, the Group carries out
vendor financing with some of its suppliers in accordance with the agreements made with banks and
those suppliers. Since the terms are not substantially different with the discounted present value of
the cah flows under the new terms of the liabilities, the Group continues to classify those liabilities
as trade payables.

49



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statementsriginally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

2.
2.5

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Significant accountingassessments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a rhatijtiatment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

- The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment are impaired by estimating the
recoverable amount of the assets whenever tisea@ indication of impairment. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the ca®@merating units. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from thgerastating unit and also

to choe a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows (Note
16).

- The estimates used by the Group in the application of TFRS Interpretation 12 are as follows:

- The Company assesses that approximately 30% of the fonestesrk investments related
to the replacement of the network equipment which are reclassified to intangible assets and
which are then recognized in the financial statements as intangible assets are the contractual
replacements as required by the concesagreement. The Group has provided a provision
amounting to TL 867 (31 December 202 TL 8.035) (Note 21) in the consolidated
financial statements for the foreseen contractual replacements in the future. Aforementioned
provision is the present value thfe contractual replacement expenses as at 31 December
2018 that will be realized in the future. Discount rate used in the provisatgulation is
determined as 290% (31 December 2017: 40%).

- i) Inaccordance with TFRS Interpretation 12, the Comasydetermined the cost of the
investments in intangible assets recognized under the scope of TFRS Interpretation 12 by
adding the profit margin, which is applied in the market for similar construction services, to
the cost of acquiring the related netwaquipment. The estimated profit margin used in
construction services provided in exchange for concession right is 13% (31 December 2017:
13%) for the year ended as of 31 DecembeB2The profit margin of property, plant and
equipment accounted withihé scope of TFRS Interpretation 12 amounting to TL 771.141
(31 December 2017: TL 704.315) (Note 20) is TL 88.715 for the year ended as of 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: TL 81.028).

- A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it islgeotieat a tax benefit will

be realized in the future. If it is probable that a tax benefit will be realized, a deferred tax asset is
recognized on unused tax losses, unused tax credits and other deductible temporary differences. With
the expectation to oever certain part of its tax losses carried forwar@inMobil, the Group has
recognized deferred tax assets on statutory tax losses available for offsetting with future statutory
taxable profits. Every year, the Groupassesses its tax loss carry fards and if there is a material
change in the deferred tax asset recognized in the consolidated financial statements, the deferred tax
assets are also changed (Note 11).

- Assumptions used in the impairment test of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets have been explained in Note 16.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.5 Significant accounting assessments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertaintycontinued)

- For trade receivables, other receivables, other assets and contract assets the Group applies the
simplified approach to providing for expectaedit losses prescribed in TFRS 9, which requires the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group performed the
calculation of ECL rates separately for individual, corporate, public and wholesale customers. The
ECLs wee calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the pasExpasires within
each group were segmented based on common credit risk characteristics such as delinquency status.
Actual credit loss experience was adjusted to reflect different@sde economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data was ¢
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. Future collection performance of
receivables are estimatby considering general economic conditions to incorporate forward looking
information to the expected credit loss calculations.

- Assumptions used by Company in goodwill impairment test are explained in Note 16. The
Group determines the useful life of an etsby considering its future economic benefits. This
evaluation is driven by the Groupbs previous eX
useful life of the asset from technical and commercial perspectives due to changes and developments

in market in order to assess whether additional impairment is required or not.

There are other estimations made by the management during the determination of provisions for
litigations (Note 24).
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3.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has two main segments; fixed line and mobile. Fixed line serviceswadegrby Turk

Telekom, TTNet, Argela, Innova, Sebit, AssisTT and TTINT Group whereas mobile service is
provided by TTMobil. Group management assesses segment performance over earnings before
interest, tax, deprAdustedeEBil d M AdudstedEBITDA is talcutated i on ( f
by adjusting the operating income by i) adding income/expense from investing activities,
depreciation, amortization and impairment expenses and ii) deducting exchange gains/losses, interest
and rediscount income/ expenses amrent accounts presented in other operating income and
expense. Group management usdjsistedEBITDA as it is comparable with other companies in the
sector. As Group management does not monitor Gr
geographial segment reporting is not presented. The segment results and balance sheet items are
presented below:
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Intra -group eliminations and

Fixed line Mobile consolidated adjustments Consolidated
1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January - 1 January -
31 December  31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue 14.177.217 12.803.650 7.567.400 6.695.859 (1.313.717) (1.359.955) 20.430.900 18.139.554
Contributive revenue (*) 12.927.194 11.537.237 7.503.706 6.602.316 1 T 20.430.900 18.139.554
ContributiveadjustedEBITDA (**) 5.836.919 4.787.299 2.598.844 1.664.609 T T 8.435.763 6.451.908
Capital expenditure (***) 2.795.930 2.254.645 1.297.930 977.417 (7.358) (11.227) 4.086.502 3.220.835

*) AContributive revenueodo represents oper at induded m ¢hg coesalitated finaneal statemants. Gfoupananagementpsél mbniass fimanctale r

performance of the segments based on their separate financial statements and because of this there is no change tahfbensstipnatisclosed. However, caitiution of operating segments on the

Groupob6s revenue is presented to give additional information to the readers of the financial

** ACont r adiusiedE BvleTDAO r epr es e nt sadjustegdEBITHA arasgfrom gagsactions veit@mpanies other than those included in the consolidated financial statements.
Group management still monitors financial performance of the segments based on their separate financial statements ahthietere is no change at the segment informaligclosed. However,

contribution of operating segments on the Group6s inaaciakstatanents. s presented to give additional

(***)  Capital expenditures do not include TL 88.715 (31 Decer@b&v: TL 81.028) amounted profit margin which is capitalized on intangible assets that are accounted within the scope of TFRS
Interpretation 12.

53



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM;] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Currency in housands of TurkishLirae i TLO0) wunl es s llotheharenciesaee alsdisadosedrdthousands)

3. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Fixed line contributiveadjustedEBITDA 5.836.91¢ 4.787.29¢
Mobile contributiveadjustedEBITDA 2.598.844 1.664.6089
Adjusted EBITDA 8.435.763 6.451.908
Foreign exchange gains, interest income, discount incol
on current accounts presented in other operating incom 143.539 172.841
Foreign exchange losses, interest income, discount incc
on currentaccounts presented in other operating expefs (416.569) (324.379)
Financial income 1.422.49¢ 722.307
Financial expense)( (7.872.319) (2.525.118)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (3.735.194) (3.019.232)
Consolidated profit/ (loss)before tax (2.022.281) 1.478.327
31 December 2018 Fixed Line Mobile Eliminations Consolidated
Total segment assets 26.745.001 10.058.43C (604.920) 36.198.511
Total segment liabilities (25.643.545) (3.696.824) 595.461 (28.744.908)
31 December 2017 Fixed Line Mobile Eliminations Consolidated
Total segment assets 19.831.444 9.649.583 (332.492) 29.148.53%
Total segment liabilities (21.438.677) (3.477.001) 322.230 (24.593.448)
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Cash on hand 143 298
Cash at banksdemand deposit 799.859 631.227
Cash at bankstime deposit 3.693.827 3.467.65C
Other 707 1.029

4.494.53€ 4.100.204

As of 31 December 2018time deposits are all shedrm, maturing within one month and
denominated in both foreign currencies and TL. The interest rates are bé&@@énand 2,31%
for TL deposits, betweed, 10% and5,00% for US Dollar deposits and betwe&03% and2,53%
for Euro deposits31 December 2017or TL deposits betweeb,00% and15,4%%, for US Dollar
deposits betweed, 10% and4,60%, for Euo deposits betweed05% and2,7746).

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of cash flows is as follows:
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

Cash and cash equivalents 4.494.53€ 4.100.204
Less:restricted amounts

- Collection protocols and ATM collection (341.553) (377.983)
- Other (254.891) (34.117)
Unrestricted cash 3.898.092 3.688.104

As of 31 December 2018demand deposits amounting Ta 341.553(31 December 2017TL

377.983 is restricted due to collection protocols signed with banks for receipts from the subscribers,
under which proceeds are maaeailable to the Group a certain number of days after the cash is
collected As of 31 December 2018, other restricted amounts mainly consist of blocked deposits
related to T¢rk Telekombs derivative financi al

As of 31 December 201&he Groughas bank loans amountitg Euro59.930 (31 December 2017
Euro136.252 which have been committéd banks andhavenot beenutilized yet,having maturity
dates or20 December 2020 respectively.
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5. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Bank borrowings

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Weighted Weighted

average average

nominal nominal

interest  Original TL interest  Original TL

rate (%) amount equivalent rate (%) amount equivalent
Short-term borrowings:
Unsecured TL bank borrowings with fixed interest rate 4,51 51.598 51.598 13,86 65.459 65.459
Interest accruals:
Unsecured'L bank borrowings with fixed interest rates 618 618 1.255 1.255
Short-term borrowings 52.216 66.714
Short-term portion of long-term bank borrowings:
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with fixed interest ré 3,10 16.167 85.054 3,08 40.582 153.072
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with variable interes
rates(*) 4,62 391.736 2.060.886 3,76 288.451 1.088.010
Unsecured EUR bank borrowings with variable interes
rates (**) 1,29 310.007 1.868.725 1,27 238.168 1.075.450
Interest accruals of longterm bank borrowings:
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with fixed interest r¢ 31 163 202 761
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with variable interes
rates (*) 15.344 80.723 18.560 70.007
Unsecured EUR bartkorrowings with variable interest
rates (**) 1.782 10.742 1.823 8.231
Short-term portion of long-term bank borrowings 4.106.293 2.395.531
Total short-term borrowings 4.158.509 2.462.245
Long-term borrowings:
Unsecured TL bank borrowings with fixed interest rate T T T 17,00 14.600 14.600
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with fixed interest ré 3,10 4.720 24.837 3,08 20.870 78.718
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with variable interes
rates (*) 4,62 1.360.641 7.158.194 3,76 1.633.262 6.160.503
Unsecured EUR bank borrowings with variable interes
rates (**) 1,29 613.709 3.699.439 1,27 889.533 4.016.685
Total long-term borrowings 10.882.470 10.270.506
Total financial liabilities 15.040.979 12.732.751

(*) As at31 December 201 8nterest rate varidsetween Libof 0,54% and 3,40%81 December 2t Libor +0,54% and 3,40%

(**) As at 31 December 2018nterest rate varies between Euribor+ %0,28 and %@&M®December 20t Euribor +0,25% and
2,59%
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5.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Bank borrowings(continued)

unl ess

Il otheh ceirencies age alsdiscosegirdthousands)

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities in equivalent bfafe as follows:

DI ARI

ES

31 December 2018

31 December 2017
Upto3 3 months lyearto 2yearsto tr':/la%r% Total Upto 3 months 1lyearto 2yearsto ﬂ':/; c:]res Total
months to 1 year 2years 5 years years 3 months  to 1 year 2 years 5 years years
g;:scured TL bank borrowings with fixed interes o, i i i i 52.216 31.969 34.745 14.600 i | 81.314
Unsecured USD bank borrowings with fixed i 85.217 24837 i i 110.054 15064  138.769 60.908 17.810 i 232.551
interest rates
ﬁ?:;cs‘:r;‘t’egw bank borrowings with variable 229027 1.912.582 2471816 3.910.783 775595 9.299.803  180.176  977.841 1433.414 3.874871  852.218 7.318.520
t’]?gﬁa‘;‘i”;?e'i“m bank borrowings with variable 29.341 1.850.126 1.587.645 1.395.640  716.154 5.578.906 31.017 1052.664 1406.622 1.809.161  800.902 5.100.366
310.584 3.847.925 4.084.298 5.306.423 1491.749 15040.979  258.226 2.204.019 2.915544 5701.842 1653.120 12.732.751
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5. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Bill, bonds and notes issued

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Weighted Weighted
average average
nominal nominal
interest Original TL interest Original TL
rate (%) amount equivalent rate (%) amount equivalent
Short-term portion of long-term bills, bonds and notes
issued:
USD bank borrowings with fixed interest rates 3,75 494.447 2.601.235 T T T
Bill, bonds and notes issued:
USD bank borrowings with fixed interest rates T T T T 6.310 23.800
Short-term bills, bonds and notes issued 494.447 2.601.235 6.310 23.800
Long-term bills, bonds and notes issued:
USD bank borrowings with fixed interest rates 4,88 432.742 2.276.610 4,32 989.578 3.732.588
Long-term bills, bonds and notes issued 432.742  2.276.610 989.578 3.732.588
Total financial liabilities 927.189 4.877.845 995.888 3.756.388

The sales process of the bond issuances amounted to USD 500.000 with 10 years of maturity, and 4,875%
coupon rate based on 4,982% reoffer yield was completed on J4r2014. The bonds are now quoted at
Irish Stock Exchange.

The sales process of thend issuances amounted to USD 500.000 with 5 years of maturity, and 3,75%
coupon rate based on 3,836% reoffer yield was completed on Jir2014. The bonds are now quoted at
Irish Stock Exchange.

The contractual maturities afsued long term bills,dnds and noteis equivalent of TL are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
3 months 1yearto5 Morethan 3months 1lyearto5 More than Total
to 1 year years 5 years Total to 1 year years 5 years
Issued long term
bills, bonds anshotes  2.601.235 _ 2.276.610 4.877.845 23.800 1.870.509 1.862.079 3.756.388
2.601.235 1 2.276.610 4.877.845 23.800 1.870.509 1.862.079 3.756.388

58



(Convenience translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
TI RK TELEKOM] NKKASKNONK KARNKOENT K AND | TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Currency in housands of Turkish Lira@ i T L 0 ) unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are astisciosedh, a
thousands)

6. TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM AND PAYABLES TO THIRD PARTIES
Trade receivables

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Short-term

Trade receivables 7.569.664 6.857.14¢
Other trade receivables 182.899 148.473
Income accruals 628.766 627.510
Allowance for doubtful receivables)( (3.241.202) (2.840.298)
Total short-term trade receivables 5.140.127 4.792.834
Long-term

Trade receivables 128.182 91.197
Total long-term trade receivables 128.182 91.197

Trade receivables generally have a maturity terrflays on average (31 Decemi2&17 60
days).

Income accruals contain contract assetsabaiunted in accordance witkRS 15.
The movement of the allowance for doubtful receivables is as follows:

1 January 208 - 1 January 2017-
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

At January 1 (2.865.174) (2.373.313)
Provision for the year, net (375.602) (466.414)
Change in currency translation differences (426) (571)
At 31 December (3.241.202) (2.840.298)

The Group waits up to 90 days before initiating legal action for overdue receivables. Based on its
previous collection performance from overdue receivables, the Company expects to make significant
collections from its overdue receivables. As3df December 2018nd 2017, the analysis of trade
receivables that were neither past nor due and past due but not impaired is as follows:

Past due but na impaired

Neither past

due nor 30-60 60-90 90 >

Total impaired < 30 days days days days

31 December 2018 5.268.309 3.922.429 350.070 196.995 82.690 716.125
31 December 2017 4.884.031 3.546.112 288.448 157.752 91.438 800.281

Receivables guaranteefithe Group aramounted td’L 37.073(31 December 201 7L 17.232.
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6. TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM AND PAYABLES TO THIRD PARTIES (CONTINUED)
Trade payables

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Short-term

Trade payables 3.268.88C 3.681.26C
Expense accruals 575.902 385.298
Other trade payables 342 T
Total short-term trade payables 3.845.124 4.066.558
The average maturity term of tlapayables is between 30 and @&9s 81 December 202380 and
150 days).

As of 31 December 2018hort term tade payables consists of payabléthin scope of gpplier
finance that amountingL 879.911(31 December 201 7L 937.140(.

7. RECEIVABLES AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE AND OPERATIONAL LEASES

Financial leases:

The Group has no financial lease receivables &4 @ecember 2018nd2017.

Finance lease obligatiorthat the Group has entered into for acquisition of network equipment,
vehicle and a building are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Future PresentValue Future Present Value

minimum of minimum minimum of minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments Interest payments

Within one year 634 3 631 619 2 617
Between one to two years 1.965 2 1.963 1.983 1 1.982
2.599 5 2.594 2.602 3 2.599

Operating leases:

At the balance sheet date, the Group has irrevocable operational leasing commitments on the basis
of the other property rental operations. The maturity dates of these commiaséoliews:
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7. RECEIVABLES AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE AND OPERATIONAL LEASES
(CONTINUED)

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Within one year 8.667 4.358
Between one to two yeaficlusive) 3.114 5.018
In the second to fifth years (inclusive) 2.903 4.849
After fifth year 2.778 342

17.462 14.567

a) The Company has operating lease agreements with respect to leased lines. The revenue from
leased lines for the year ended 3L December 2018mounts to TL466.855(31 December 2017
TL 382.573.

b) Group entered into operating lease agreements with respdmsto stations andental
buildings Total operating lease expense for the year eldde®ecember 2018mounts to TL
479.168(31 December 2017TL 428.53§.

A summary of commitments in relation to base station leases are as follows:
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201

Within one year 336.079 125.467
Between two and five years 610.220 464.405
Later than five years 83.273 69.340

1.029.572 659.212
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8. DUE FROM AND DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

All intra-group transactions and balances including igh@up unrealized profits and losses are
eliminatedfor consolidation purposes and are not disclosed in this note.

Institutions under state control are defined as related parties @¥otownership and the golden
share of the Treasury. State controlled entities are defined as related parties butenaecwith

the exemptiomprovided bythe TAS 24 disclosure requirements, state controlled entities are excluded
from general reporting requirements.

Details of balances and transactions between the Group and other related parBdsiecatnber
2018and2017are disclosed below:

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

Due from related parties(Trade receivablesshort term)

Saudi Telecom Company ("STC") (1) T 22.399
Akbank T.A. k. (2) 4.061 T
Turkiye GarantBankasé A. k. (2) 3.748 T
Té¢rkiye Kk Bankasée AL k. 2.680 T
Other T 1.308

10.489 23.707

Due to related parties(Trade payablesshort term)

STC (1) T 2.326
Akbank T.A. k. (2) 95 T
T¢e¢rkiye Garanti Bankascée 15 T

110 2.326

Due to related parties(Other payablesshort term)
T¢rkiye Kk Bankasée A k. (2 204.792 T

204.792 [

Due to related parties(Other payableslong term)
T¢rkiye Kk Bankasée A. k. (2 170.164 T

170.164 T

1) STC, the shareholdef Oger Telecomis notdefined as related party since 21 December 2018.
2) Akbank T.A. k., Tér kandE ¢ rGlair yaen t K kK \Britch ardashaseholéddk . Levent Yapeél andEé
YonetimiA . flre defined as related parties since 21 December 2018.

As of 31 December 2018&lue toother payables in othehort andong term payables related to
discounted payable as a resulsbaretransferagreement in order faurchasel0,0035% share of
TT Mobilé s | cagtaiteatdwilbe sol d to Groupdbdés customers as p
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8. DUE FROM AND DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
Deposits held by related parties 31 December 201¢
Akbank T. A. k.
Time Deposit 953.905
Demand Deposit 52.737
1.006.642

Deposits held by related parties
T¢rkiye Kk Bankaseée A. k.

Time Deposit 266.728
Demand Deposit 93497
360.225

T¢e¢rkiye Garant i Bankasé A. k.
Time Deposit 1.265
Demand Deposit 66.701
67.966

Transactions with shareholders:

TT Mobil is required under the terms of th& Mobil Concession Agreement, to pay 15% share to

the Treasury (the Treasury Share) of its monthly gross revenue. Besides, the Company and its other
subsidiaries that are operating in the telecommunications sector are required to pay universal service
fund at 1%of their netrevenue®f each yeaand ICTA share at 0,35% of revenues to the Ministry

of Transport, Maritime Affairs and Communications under the law Global Service Act numbered
5369. Also, according to Law numbered 7061 "Legislation on Amendment of i@efax
Legislation and Other Certain LegislatioRl Mobil is required to pay 5% share (radio fee) of its
monthly net revenue to ICTA.

As of 31 December 201&inpaid portion of Treasury Share, universal servicd amd ICTA share

are recorded nder other short term payablaad these expenses are @oted in cost of sales
account

Guarantees provided to related parties:

As of 31 December 2018, guarantees amounting to @6D14and EUR155.735are for financial
liabilities of TT Mobil which are amounted to USD 230.000 and EUR 273.125, and guarantees
amounting to USD 50.000 is given for financial liabilities of TTINT Turkey, and guarantees
amounting to EUR 300 is given for financial liabilities of TTINT Romania, amed to USD16.666

and EUR 300, respectively, by Tirk Telekom.

Transactions with other related parties:

The Company is rendering and receiving international traffic carriage services, data line rent services
to and from STC and sharing advertisenexgenses with STC. For the period ended 1 Jarfary
December 2018otal revenues and expenses incurred in relation to these services amounted to TL
16.984and TL4.457, respectively (31 December 2017: B1968revenue and TI1.732expenses).
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8. DUE FROM AND DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration dfoard ofdirectors and other members of key management were aw$ollo

1 January 1 1 January i
31 December2018 31 December 2017
Shortterm benefits 110.327 127.307
Long-term defined benefit plans 2.365 2.667
112.692 129.974

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Other short term receivable

31 December 201¢

31 December 201’

a

Other short term receivable 62.948 55.044
Deposits and guarantees given 4.486 2.850
Other doubtful receivables 42.759 24.186
Allowance for other doubtful receivables (42.759) (24.186)

67.434 57.894

As of 31 December 2018TL 29.746(31 December 2017TL 37.983 portion of other short term
receivablesconsists of receivables from Ministry of Transport and Communications due to the
expenses made under Universal Service Fund.

As of 31 December 201®ther doubtful provision amounting to TB.289(31 December 201 7L
740) is provided while TL416(31 December 2017L 395 is rewersed.

Other long term receivables

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Deposits and guarantees given 38.480 33.837
38.480 33.837

Other short term payable

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Taxes and duties payable 236.068 270.653
UniversalService Fund (1) 153.969 142.165
ICTA shares 140.205 97.540
Treasury share accruals 120.145 104.466
Other payables (2) 248.570 229.768

898957 844.592

(1) According to the article numbered 5&69 rel:
16 June 2005, Turk Telekom, TTNet and AssisTT will contribute 1% of their net revenues of each

year to the Ministry of Transportation as Universal Service Fund. The contribution is payable by the

end of April of the following year.

(2)As of 31 Decembe2018,amounting to TL 217.719 in other short term payables is comprised of
guarantees given for borrowings of distributors which are utilized in financing of equipment
purchases that willrséaseartofcotmnitntentsaes.oupds cust ome
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9.

10.

11.

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Other long term payables

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Deposits and guarantees received 32.040 34.675
Other @myables 25.388 340.558
57.428 375.233

As of 31 December 2010ther payables in othéang term payableand other payables amounting
to TL 204.861 in other short term payablés related to discounted payable as a result
of shae transferagreement in order fourchasel0,0035% share &fT Mobildé s | camtal.e d

INVENTORIES

The Group has inventory amountingTth 248.852as at31 December 20181 December 201 7L
203.978. Major part of ths balance is composed of modermnputer, tablet, dect phonespble,
cable box an&IM cards.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group calculates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary differences arising
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities as reported under Turkish AgcBtartaards

and their tax base for statutory purposes. These temporary differences are mainly due to the timing
differences of certain income and expense items in statutory and Turkish Accounting Standards
financial statement as disclosed below.

The Groupperpetually reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets and decided to account for
deferred tax assets (resulting frariirk Telekom, TT Mobil, TTNetind TTINT) arising from the
tax losses carried forward based on the estimated taxable profits accorttii@dptrsiness plan.
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2018 lrk Telekom, TT Mobil, TTNetandTlI6 s unr ecogni zed ded
losses that will be utilized upon the existence of a tax base and the expiration dates are as follows:

Expiration years 31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"
2018 b 311.651
2019 675.298 673.466
2020 842.901 841.883
2021 1.482.19¢ 1.526.412
2022 1.387.981 1.281.997
2023 2.762.967 2.700
2024 3.971 2.974
2025 2.195 b
Indefinite 498.647 384.761

7.656.15% 5.025.844

As of 31 December 2018leferred tax assearising from prior year tax lossesoiirk Telekom, TT
Mobil, TTNetandTTINT Group is amounting tdL 1.183.98331 December 201 7L 577.482).

In addition, deferred tax assets over deductibles from taxable income determined aEt68% o
interest to be calculated over cash capital increase amounts which are registered in Turkish Trade
Registry or the interest calculated over the cash capital contributions of the newly established
corporations amounting to TL 136.591 is recognizedt&l December 2018 (31 December 2017:

TL 75.684).

As of 31 December 201&s explained Note 33T Mobil has inestment allowances amounting to
TL 121.145for which deferred tax asset is not recogniZ&d@Pecerber 2017: TL 91.637
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As at31 December 20120% and 22%ax rate is used for the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilitesnipanies established in Turkey
depending on the estimation of on which years temporary differences will reverse (31 Decemb2t%aCGirt 22%).

31 December 2018

Effect of

Net balance at 1 Recognised in  Recognised movements in Deferred tax Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset / (liability) January 2018 profit or loss in OCI exchange rates Net balance asset liability
Deferred tax asset recognized from tax
losses carried forward 577.482 571.772 34.729 - 1.183.983 1.183.983 --
Deferred tax assetrising from capital
increase 75.684 60.907 - - 136.591 136.591 -
Provision for longterm employee benefits 137.772 (8.235) 24.405 -- 153.942 153.942 --
Other short and long term provisions 64.009 (25.383) -- - 38.626 40.915 (2.289)
Universal service fund and other
contributions (24.090) 49.835 -- - 25.745 25.745 --
Provision for unused vacation 18.435 340 -- - 18.775 18.775 --
Provision for doubtful receivables 38.634 4,201 -- - 42.835 43.628 (793)
Other (32.828) (10.648) - - (43.476) 13.764 (57.240)
Derivative instruments (61.455) 51.782 112.006 - 102.333 102.333 --
Income accruals 17.632 19.990 -- -- 37.622 37.834 (212)
Bill, bonds and notes issued 14.499 (31.278) (61.990) - (78.769) -- (78.769)
Temporary differences on property, plant
and equipment / intangible assets (422.148) (31.783) (474.184) 1.164 (926.951) 14.993 (941.944)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) before net
off 403.626 651.500 (365.034) 1.164 691.256 1.772.503 (1.081.247)
Net-off of tax (875.990) 875.990
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 691.256 896.513 (205.257)

: TL 1.242.388.

As of 31 December 2018he total amount of deferred taxeelatedo transactions recognized directlyaquity is TL365.034(31 DecembeR017
TL 1.511).

As of 31 December 2018 t h e

tot al a norecoghised defertedhtax aBmateditp sulssidiaries is T™14.712(31 Decembe017
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11.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

I' TS SUBSI

DI ARI ES

31 December 2017

Net

balance at Effect of

1January  Recognised in Recognised in  movements in Net Deferred Deferred
Deferred tax asset / (liability) 2017 profit or loss OCI exchange rates balance tax asset tax liability
Deferred tax asseecognized from tax losses carried forward 275.356 302.126 - -- 577.482 577.482 --
Deferred tax asset arising from capital increase 38.950 36.734 - -- 75.684 75.684 --
Provision for longterm employee benefits 134.664 (4.716) 7.824 -- 137.772  137.772 --
Other short and long term provisions (9.292) 73.301 - -- 64.009 65.787 (1.778)
Universal service fund and other contributions 23.208 (47.298) - -- (24.090) - (24.090)
Provision for unused vacation 14.941 3.494 - -- 18.435 18.435 --
Provision for doubtful receivables (12.484) 33.752 - -- 21.268 29.340 (8.072)
Other 38.818 (82.911) - - (44.093) 29.436 (73.529)
Derivative instruments (51.210) (3.932) (6.313) -- (61.455) - (61.455)
Income accruals (26.343) (996) - -- (27.339) 3.712 (31.051)
Temporary differences on property, plant and equipment /
intangible assets (366.423) 44.443 -- (526) (322.506) 32.978 (355.484)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) before nefoff 60.185 353.997 1.511 (526) 415.167 970.626  (555.459
Net-off of tax (309.919 309.919
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 415.167 660.707 (245.540
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12. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS, OTHER LIABILITIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

OBLIGATIONS

Other current assets

31 December 201¢

31 December 201"

Intermediary services for collection (*) 109.982 158.437

Value Added Tax ("VAT") and Specii

Communication Tax ("SCT") 106.803 156.415

Advances given (**) 75.781 62.074

TAFICS projects 12.270 25.701

Other current assets 28.977 12.861
333.813 415.488

(*) Intermediary services for collections consist of advances givémeld@roupo its distributors.

(**) Advances given mainlgonsists of advances given to suppliers.

31 December 201¢

31 December 201’

Intermediary services for collection 21.427 36.232
Other norcurrent assets 7 11
21.434 36.243

Other current liabilities

31 December 201¢

31 December 201"

Advances received 10.297 23.911
Other liabilities 25.510 22.416
35.807 46.327

a

The Company acts as an intermediary of TAFICS projects by transferring advances received to the
contractors and supports the management of the prdiegisnditures arising from the projects are
deducted from the advances received at the date of the expenditure. Advances not used are held as
time deposits and the interest earned is credited to the advances received in accordance with the

agreement betweehe parties.

Employee benefit obligations

31 December 201¢

31 December 201}

Payables to personnel 60.633 58.360
Employee's income tax payables 53.067 45.501
Social security premiums payable 52.617 71.851

166.317 175.712
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13. PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED REVENUES
Shortterm prepaid expenses

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Prepaid rent expenses 202.754 203.766
Other prepaid expenses 105.123 139.566
307.877 343.332

Other short ternprepaid expenses consist of prepaid insurance, prepaid commissions, prepaid
advertising and other prepaid expenses.

Long-term prepaid expenses

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Prepaid rent expenses 64.070 45.056
Other prepaid expenses 7.857 23.879
71.927 68.935

Short-term deferred revenues

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Deferred revenues (*) 331.150 139.409
Advances received (**) 121.964 87.455
453.114 226.864

(*) Defered revenues mainly consistsinfoiced but unconsumedinutes of deferred monthly
fixed fee revenues due to the allocation of total consideration in the contract to all products and
servicesunder TFRS 15amdT | NTés i ndefeasible right of wuse

(**) Advances taken mainly relt from the advances taken by the Comp&om the customers.
Long-term deferred revenues

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Deferred revenues (*) 537.281 268.699
Advances received (**) 118.033 98.502

655.314 367.201
(*) Deferredrevenuemai nly result from TTINTO6s indefeasi

(**) Advancestakemai nly result from the adforindeteasiblet aken
right of use contracts.
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14. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

Cetel 11.840 11.840
Other 155 -
11.995 11.840

The Group holds 6,84 % of shares of Cetel as equity investmeoabstrof Cetel is used as a measure
for its fair value since management has insufficient more recent information to measuatutair

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Cash flow hedges and derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps

As of 31 December 201ir value of interest rate derivative transactions amountifig-t84.004

has been recogred under long term financial liabiliti81 December 2017L 117.3890ng term
financial liabilitieg. Unrealized gain on these deiwes amounting to TI29.530(31 December
2017 TL 31.566gain) is recognized in other comprehensive income. Unrealized gain on these
derivativesodo t i me3.85%¢Bl Deeemizen201mMh 3.453g4gin) is kecogdized in
statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount 31 December
Company (US Dollar) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2018 (TL)
29 April i 20 Pay fixed rates and receive floating rates
Tirk Telekom 300.000 May 2014 betweenJune 2016 and June 2024 (76.346)
Pay fixed rates and receive rates between Jur
15 May 201416 2016 and and August 2016, and June 2024 ar
Tirk Telekom 150.000 May 2014 August 2024 (7.658)
(84.004)
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15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cash flow hedges and derivative financial instrument§Continued)

Interest rate swapgContinued)

Fair Value

Notional Amount as at

Amount (US 31 December

Company Dollar) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2017 (TL)
11 April 20121 Pay fixed rates and receive floating rates

Turk Telekom 400.000 30 April 2012 between March 2014 and March 2022 (19.527)
8 April 20137 17 Pay fixed rates and receive floating rates

Turk Telekom 200.000 April 2013 between 19 August 2015 and 21 August 2023 (8.467)
29 April i 20 Pay fixed rates and receive floating rates

Turk Telekom 300.000 May 2014 between June 2016 and June 2024 (80.975)

Pay fixed rates and receivates between June
15 May 201416 2016 and and August 2016, and June 2024 ar
Turk Telekom 150.000 May 2014 August 2024 (8.420)
(117.389)

Cross currency swap transaction

As of 31 December 201fair value of participating cross currency swap transactions amounting to
TL 366.901has been recognized under short term financial liabilities an@00L921has been
recognized under short term financial as¢8ts December 201 7il). Unrealized loss on these
derivatives amounting to T150.79931 De@mber 2017Nil) is recognized in other comprehensive

income.
Fair Value
Notional Amount as at 31
Amount Amendment December 2018
Company (USD) Trade Date Date Terms (TL)
19 September
21 April 2015-9 2018 8
Turk Telekom 500.000 July 2015 Octdber 2018 Pay TL and receive USD at June 2019 105.867
13 April 20161 8 July 2018
Turk Telekom 325.000 3 August 2018 20 July 2018 Pay TL and receive USD at June 2024 60.888
27 March 2018 19 September PayTL and receive EUR at December
Turk Telekom 100.000 (*) 28 March 2018 2018 2025 16.181
12-13
20 July 2018 September Pay TL and receive EUR between
Turk Telekom 94.545 (*) 1August 2018 2018 December 2021 November 2022 17.985
200.921
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15.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

unl es s lloothdr eurremcies are asdiscliosedh,

(CONTINUED)

Cash flow hedges and derivative financial instrument§Continued)

Cross currency swap transactigi€ontinued)

Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount Amendment 31 December
Company (USD) Trade Date Date Terms 2018 (TL)
19 September 2018 Pay TL and receive USBetweerApril
Turk Telekom 150.000 11 Octobe2018 20207 April 2021 (97.552)
27 September 2018
Turk Telekom 100.000 28 September 2018 Pay TL and receive USBEt July 2022 (83.141)
11 October 201812
Turk Telekom 100.000 October 2018 Pay TL and receive USD atduary2021 (72.020)
Turk Telekom 138.000 14 November 2018 Pay TL and receive USD at April 2024 (42.849)
Tirk Telekom 50.000 25 October 2018 Pay TL and receive USD at ApdD25 (30.965)
Pay TL and receive USD at December
Turk Telekom 56.600 13 November 2018 2024 (17.703)
Pay TL and receive USD between May
Turk Telekom 50.000 20 December 2018 2019- November 2020 (2.322)
26 September Pay TL and receive EUR between
Tirk Telekom 45.000 (*) 4 June 2018 2018 November 2018\ovember 2022 (20.349)
(366.901)

(*) Nominal amount of indicated operations are Euro.
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15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest ratederivative instrumentsvhich are not designated as hedge

As of 31 December 201fair value of the interest rate swap transactions which are not designated as
hedge and amounting oL 36.48L is recognized under long term financial ass&ts December

2017 TL 59.006assets). Unrealizddsson these derivatives amounting to Z2.525(31 December

2017 TL 7.609gain) is recognized in profit or loss

Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount (US 31 December
Company Dollar) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2018 (TL)
Pay the difference between floating rate and 4
if floating rate exceeds 4%, between June 201
and June 2021, and receive fixed premium
(0,44%0,575%)
Pay the difference between floating rate and €
if floating rateexceeds 6%, between June 202
Turk 29 Aprili 20 and June 2024, and receive fixed premium
Telekom 300.000 May 2014 (0,39%0,45%) 36.481
36.481
Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount (US 31 December
Company Dollar) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2017 (TL)

Pay the difference between floating rate and 6%
floating rate exceeds 6%, between 19 March 20:
11 April 20127 and 21 March 2022, and receive fixed premium
Turk Telekom 400.000 30 April 2012 (0,24%0,27%) 16.873
Pay thedifference between floating rate and 6% i
floating rate exceeds 6%, between 21 August 20
8 April 2013i 17 and 21 August 2023, and receive fixed premium
Turk Telekom 200.000 April 2013 (0,24%0,27%) 10.454
Pay the difference between floating rate and 4%
floating rate exceeds 4%, between June 2016 ar
June 2021, and receive fixed premium (0,44%
0,575%)
Pay the difference between floating rate and 6%
floating rate exceeds 6%, between June 2021 ar
29 Aprili 20 June 2024, and receive fixed premium (0,39%
Turk Telekom 300.000 May 2014 0,45%) 31.679

59.006
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15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cross Currency swapisstruments which are not designated as hedge (continued)

As of 31 December 201 8air value ofderivative transactioreanounting to T1282.033s recognized

under short term financial liabilitig81 December 2017TL 151.236financial liabilities, 557.712
financial assets)

USD/TL Cross Currency Swaps Instruments

Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount (US Amendment 31 December
Company Dollar) Trade Date Date Terms and Maturity Date 2018 (TL)
11 December
Tirk Telekom 175.000 31 March 2016 2018 Pay TL and receive USD at June 202« (209.585)
(209.585)
USD/EUR Cross Currency Swaps Instruments
Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount 31 December
Company (USD) Trade Date Terms 2018 (TL)
Pay EUR and receive USD between June 201
Tirk Telekom 175.000 30 April 2015 and June 2024 (66.688)
TTINT Pay EUR and receive USD between Decembe
Turkiye 50.000 16 June 2016 2016 and June 2026 (3.802)
Tirk Telekom 45.000 26 October 2018 Pay USD andeceive EUR at June 2024 (1.958)
(72.448)
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15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cross Currency swapisstruments which are not designated as hedge (continued)

ARI ES

e s s lloothdr eurremcies are asdiscliosedh, a

Fair Value
Notional Amount as at
Amount 31 December
Company (USD) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2017 (TL)
Turk 21 April 2015- 9 Pay TL and receive USD between June 2015
Telekom 500.000 July 2015 June 2019 485.887
14 September
Turk 2017 26 Pay TL and receive USD between September
Telekom 100.000 September 2017 2015 and June 2024 13.359
Turk 31 March 2016 Pay TL and receive USD between June 2016
Telekom 350.000 13 April 2016 June 2024 58.466
557.712
Turk Pay EUR and receive USD between June 201
Telekom 175.000 30April 2015 and June 2024 (63.643)
Turk 10 March 2016 Pay EUR and receive USD between June 201
Telekom 380.000 17 March 2016 and November 2020 (73.404)
Turk 14 December Pay TL and receive USD between December
Telekom 50.000 2017 2017 and June 2024 (1.413)
TTINT Pay EUR and receive USD between Decembe
Turkiye 50.000 16 June 2016 2016 and June 2026 (12.776)
(151.236)

Options which are not designated as hedge

As of 31 December 201the Company had also entered ifdeign exchangeption transactions
between6 January 201517 March 2016with a total notional amount &UR 828.431 As of 31
December 2018he option has compldyematured betweef9 Januaryi 31 Januar2018 and gain
on these derivatives amounting to #0.816(31 December 2017TL 143.587gain)is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value

Notional Amount as at

Amount 31 December

Company (EUR) Trade Date Terms and Maturity Date 2017 (TL)
6 January 2015 Foreign exchange optidransactions with

Turk Telekom 490.196 18 June 2015 maturities between June 2015 and June 2024 (37.129)

Foreign exchange option transactions with

10 March 2016 maturities between November 2018 and

Turk Telekom 338.235 17 March 2016 November 2020 (3.687)

(40.816)

Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation

The Company utilized a loan amourgito Euro 150.000 in order to hedge its net investment in a
foreign operation with a Euro functional currency. Foreign exchange gain and/or loss resulting from
the subsidiaryodés net i nvest ment portion of
investment in a foreign operation under equity.
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16. GOODWILL

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Goodwill of TT Mobil 29.694 29.694
Goodwill of Innova 7.308 7.308
Goodwill of Argela 7.942 7.942

44.944 44.944

The Group performs impairment analysis for goodwill and otherauorent asset groups annually
as at 31 December. The Group has performed impairment analysis for all of the identified cash
generating units.

Turk Telekom and TTNET cash generatingnit impairment analysis

For cash generating unit impairment analysis of Turk Telekom and TTNET, total assets and liabilities
are considered as one cash generating unit. Recoverable amount is calculated through 5 years
business plan which is approved bg thanagement.

Discount rate used for the discount of cash flows for the periodedtairate tax woulgayas 22%
are20,8%- 23,7% and between 1P6 - 20,2%for otherperiod(31 December 201 Torporate tax

would pay as 22%is 14,39%% and 14,48% for other period), % expected growth rate and the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) sensitivity asl®b+-1% (31 December 201#1%/ -

1%). Cash flow projections aft@023, TL cash flow estimations are not projected with consideration

of inflation rate of business plan and expected growth rate of the country. As a result of test, no
impairment is identified for the cash generating unit.

TT Mobil cash generating unit impirment test

TT Mobil have been considered as a single cash generating unit and has been tested for impairment
together for goodwill and all other assets. Recoverable amount is calculated through based on 5 years
business plan which is approved by the ngamaent.

Discount rate used for the discount of cash flows for the periodsdtairate tax woulgayas 22%
are22,1% - 25,1%andbetween 18% - 21,5%for otherperiod 31 December 201 Torporate tax
would pay as 22%is 15,27% and 5,36% for otherperiod). Cash flow projections aftef23 are
estimated by usind3% growth rate, considering the inflation rate used in the business plan and
expected growth rate afT Mobil. Company value of T Mobil has been tested at a sensitivity of
WACC terminal growth rate by ¥6/-1% (31 December 20171%/-1%). As a result of the
impairment test, it has been noted that there is no impaiigiglgntified on goodwill arieg on the

TT Mobil acquisition.
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16.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Innova and Argela cash generating unit impairment test

Innova and Argela, are both considered as single cash generatiagdiare tested for impairment

of for goodwill and all of their other assets. Recoverable amount was determined through the usage
value which is calculated based on the 5 years business plan approved by the management. The
estimated value of the projedteash flows consists of the discounted cash flows RBEB Cash

flow projections beyon@023areestimated bysing 7%growth rate, folboth Innova and Argela,
respectively, considering the inflation rate used in the business plan and expected ajooftthe
country. Thediscount raticused in valuation ar25,5%- 28,5% forinnova and 25,% - 29,1%for
Argelafor the periods thatorporate tax woulgay as 22% and between 21,3%4,7% for Innova

(31 DecembeR017 Corporate tax woulghay as 22% is 17 %6 and 17,77% for other period for
Innovg andbetween 21,7% 25,1% for Argela(31 December 201 Torporate tax woulghay as

22% is 20,4% and 20,42% for other perfod Argeld) for other periodsValuation has been tested

at a sensitivity of $%/-1%. For the WACC calculation, technology companies have been taken as a
benchmark for the calculation of the beta coefficient. As a result of the impairment test, no
impairment is identified for the cash generating units and the goodwill arising from the acquisition
of Argela and Innova

TTINT cash generating unit impairment test

TTINT cash generating unit recoverable amount is determined over the usage value diiebrha
calculated based on the sewarars business plan approved by the management. The estimated value
of theprojected cash flows consists of the discounted cash flows2035! The \aluation work has

been carried out based on a seyear business plan scattthe company's lorggrm cash generating
capacity can be measured more accurafgig. WACC rate used in valuation i#9(31 December

2017 7%) and valuation is tested at a sensitivity of +0,8&%. In additiorto this, gross profit
margin rate is tested for sensitivity b§%F+1% andcapex/net sales ratio is tested for sensitivity by
+0,5%/£+0,5%. For the WACC calculation, telecommunication companies are considered
benchmark for the calculation of the beta coefficidsta result of test, no impairment is identified

for the cash generating unit

Sebit cash generating unit impairment test

In cash generating unit impairment analysis for Sebit, total assets and liabilities were considered as
onecash generatingnit. Recoverable amount was determined through the usage value which had
been calculated based on the five years business plan approved by the management. The discount
ratio used for the cash flowsr the periods thatorporate tax woulpayas 22% ar5,6% - 28,6%

and between 21,5%24,9% for other period81 December 201 Torporate tax woulgayas 22%

is 21,886 and 21,93% for other perigdd he estimated value of the cash flows consists of the ones
whichwere discounted untd023. The growth rate for the current and subsequent terms was foreseen
as7% by considering the inflation rate stated in cash flow estimations business plan and the estimated
growth rate of the country. Cash generating unit valuetesisd with+1%/-1% WACC and growth

rate sensitivity of the cash flow81 December 201#1%/-1%). As a result of test, no impairment

is identified for the cash generating unit).
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17. ASSETS HELD FORSALE

As of 31 Decembe018 basedn thedecisionof Boardof Directorsto sell areal estatethis asset
wasclassifiedasheldfor sale.

Asset held for sale fathe years ende81 December 2018nd 2017 is givennet book value TL
37.361.
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The movement of investment property and the related accumulated depreciation for the years ended
31 December 2018nd2017is given below:

1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

Cost

Opening balance 43.012 43.012
As at 31 December 43.012 43.012
Accumulated depreciation

Opening 20.636 18.453
Depreciation charge for the year 218 2.183
As at 31 December 22.818 20.636
Net book value as at 31 December 20.194 22.376

Investment property consists of number of buildiraygd lands mainly occupied by various
corporations.

The Group assesses whether there is any impairment indicator in investment properties. If such
indicator exists the Group compares fair values and carrying values of the investment properties on
an individual asset basis and records identified impairment of the investment properties.

The Group's investment properties consist of number of buildings and lands. In accordance with
balance between cost and benefit principle the fair values of all investnuperipes are not
determined in each year, i nstead selected inve:
In this context, fair values of the investment properties as of the balance sheet date are not presented.
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The movement of PPE and the related accumulated depreciation for the year3leDeéedmber 20181d2017is given below:

Land Buildings Networléte;]r::: Vehicles Furrjitures Other fixed  Construction in Total
. and fixtures assets progress
equipment

Cost

Openning balance, 1 January 2018 526.973 1.781.199  38.740.099 128.031 821.492 245.898 950.365  43.194.057
Transfer - 159.469 733.567 440 241 420 (1.170.379 (276.233
Additions 70.519 75.337 1.267.278 4.089 37.176 7.881 634.984 2.097.264
Revaluation 4.758.000 - - - - - - 4.758.000
Disposal (2.835) (6.305) (610.676) (22.583) (24.677) (698) - (667.774
Foreign currency translation differences 1.956 5.654 373.344 1.331 3.640 1.183 24.432 411.540
Closing balance, 31 December 2018 5.354.613 2.015.354 40.503.612 111.308 837.872 254.684 439.411  49.516.854
Accumulated depreciation

Openningbalance, 1 January 2018 - 1.328.827 31.742.826 121.221 672.757 212.906 - 34.078.537
Transfer - (10.795) (10.379) - (©) - - (21.181)
Depreciation charge for the year - 103.355 1.466.753 2.397 53.037 10.595 - 1.636.137
Disposal - (4.151) (597.731) (22.437) (19.753) (653) - (644.729
Impairment - 6.166 10.133 - - - - 16.299
Foreign currency translation differences - 2.413 191.962 400 2.008 951 - 197.734
Closing balance, 31 December 2018 - 1425815  32.803.564 101.581 708.042 223.799 - 35.262.801
Net book value, 31 December 2018 5.354.613 589.539 7.700.048 9.727 129.830 30.885 439.411  14.254.053

As of 31 December 2018iet book value of leased assets of Group composehiies and land buildings amounting respectively 2.417 TL, 38.090
TL (31 December 2017and andouildings amounting to TR9.753.

The Group does not have any cap#adl borrowing cost on properfglantand equipment31 December 201 7il).
There is no restriction or pledge on the intangible 84 @ecember 2018

For the year ende81 December 2018mpairment on propertyplant and equipment amounting TL 10.133 is recognized in cost of sale8](
December 2017TL50.745, and TL 6.166s recognized in general administrative expen3g&december 2017TL 26.153.
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19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 3 December 2018, revalued amount of lands.B54.613TL which is valued by real estataluation
companies |icensed by Capital Mase ikcarying anBohaftands of  Tur
amounting to TL 4.758.008 recognizedn other comprehensive inconmegt of tax. Had the measurement

of lands basgon their cost, their carryirgmaunt would be TL596.613as at 31December 2018. Valuation
companies that performed thea |l uat i ons are Anreva Kurumsal Gayrin
A . kAtak GayrimenkulDe ] er | eme A. k. , Deijlegil e Ga-BGaAGagemenkuD e
Dejer| ®dmmeXYemanl ék A. k., DejeramGaymameak ulA. IDPe] ebDée
Dejerl eme Ve Danéexkmanl é@ék rA.ekme, Ve zRRayn éXaiyar ki Eméekmak2u.| Kk .
Dejerl eme A.k., DEpes m&degiem&/eknel A. k. 6 Gaimenlally Kur u
Dejerl eme Ve Dhaah@Gayrimankll é B e jJAe ikl. e me Ve May Gaydamenkall i k A
Dejerl eme A. k., DM§gterril ke mga  raine&mkauwmine&| AG&kyr, i Wen k ul
Ve DanékmanlIP&k ma. kGa,yri menk Dlan®reinanl ekme AVk. , Piram
Dejerl ema&mdal Bané&. k. , Vakefl| &Gmgr AmknkuNMi zyon Také
Danékmanl ek A. k.
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19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

I' TS SUBSI

DI ARI ES

Network and . ! o
Land Buildings other Vehicles Furnltu;_es and Other fixed Construction in Total
. ixtures assets progress
equipment

Cost

Openning balance, 1 January 2017 527.656 1.738.540 37.864.996 141.732 796.945 240.249 744.590 42.054.708
Transfer - 21.207 653.038 756 13.122 340 (947.556) (259.093)
Additions 380 25.339 917.331 476 17.845 6.175 1.140.566 2.108.112
Disposal (2.129 (6.845) (898.862) (15.699) (7.991) (1.209) (319) (933.047)
Foreign currencyranslation differences 1.059 2.958 203.596 766 1.571 343 13.084 223.377
Closing balance, 31 Decembez017 526.973  1.781.199 38.740.09¢ 128.031 821.492 245.898 950.365 43.194.057
Accumulated depreciation

Openning balance, 1 January 2017 - 1.178.944 31.181.593 134.139 622.603 202.478 - 33.319.757
Disposal - (2.888) (882.442) (15.699) (6.342) (700) - (908.071)
Depreciation charge for the year - 114.601 1.310.147 2.692 55.581 10.933 - 1.493.954
Impairment - 26.210 50.687 - - - - 76.897
Transfer - 10.806 (8.716) - 80 - - 2.170
Foreign currency translation difference - 1.154 91.557 89 835 195 - 93.830
Closing balance, 31 December 2017 - 1.328.827 31.742.826 121.221 672.757 212.906 - 34.078.537
Net book value, 31 December 2017 526.973 452.372 6.997.273 6.810 148.735 32.992 950.365 9.115.520
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Licence Cu_stomgr Brand Research and Other intangible Subscriber Conce_ssmn Total
relationship Development assets acquisition/retention rights
Ccosts
Cost
Openning balance, 1 January 2018 4.547.210 1.086.949 302.916 374.473 5.704.148 - 3.838.973 15.854.669
Adjustments in accounting polices - - - - - 1.595.042 - 1.595.042
Transfers 1.432 - - 18.617 337.864 - (14.993) 342.920
Disposals - - - - (27.810) - (10.616) (38.426)
Additions (*) 1.163 - - 20.077 624.299 661.273 771.141 2.077.953
Foreign currency translation differences 1.639 68.352 - 1.252 270.347 - - 341.590
Closing balance, 31 December 2018 4.551.444 1.155.301 302.916 414.419 6.908.848 2.256.315 4.584.505 20.173.748
Accumulated amortization
Openning balance, 1 January 2018 1.241.907 980.791 221.435 221.670 3.767.088 - 984.242 7.417.133
Adjustments in accounting polices - - - - - 751.839 - 751.839
Transfers - - - - 93.739 (5.871) 87.868
Disposals - - - - (23.676) - (10.616) (34.293
Amortization chargdor the year 307.896 15.317 40.604 46.967 847.125 480.139 340.612 2.078.660
Impairment - - - - 1.132 - - 1.132
Foreign currency translation differences 563 33.794 - 1.252 97.704 - - 133.313
Closing balance, 31 December 2018 1.550.366 1.029.902 262.039 269889 4.783.112 1.231.978 1.308.367 10.435.653
Net book value, 31December 2018 3.001.078 125.399 40.877 144.530 2.125.736 1.024.337 3.276.138 9.738.095

(*) Additions amounting to TIZ71.141(31 December 2017: TE04.315 comprise itangible assets under scope of TFRS Interpretdon

The Group have capitalized borrowing cost on intangible assets amounted TL 1.512 (31 DecemReB2D.17:

For the year ende8ll December 2018mpairment on intangible assets amounting to TL 1.132 is recognized in general administrative expense (31

December 2017: cost of sales 32.999 general administration expenses Z.892.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the year ende81 December 201 &lepreciation and amortization expense is recognized cost of sales,
saks and ohtribution expensegieneral administration expensasd research and development expenses
respectively amounting to T2.359.908(31 December 2017TL 2.180.672, TL 890.612,(31 December
2017 TL 337.68), TL 443.584(31 December 2017TL 369.572, and, TL 23.909(31 December 2017:
18.520, respectively

Forthe year ended 31 DecemI®€r18, subscriber acquisition and retention costs amountifig 661.273

are capitalized as intangible assaiace those costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer and are expected to be recovered. Amortization expense amountimBt 139 is recognized

in marketing, sales and distrilborh expenses

For initial application of TFRS 15ubscriber acquisition and retention castsounting to TL843.203 are
recognizedas an opening adjustment at 1 January 2018.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Other .
. Customer Research and . . Concession
Licence . . Brand intangible : Total
relationship Development rights
assets

Cost
Openning balance, 1 January 2017 4.544.999 1.050.543 302.916 331.052 4.991.503 3.207.180 14.428.193
Transfers 1.517 - - 11.999 224.784 (18.215) 220.085
Disposals - - - - (90.194) (54.307) (144.501)
Revaluation - - -
Additions - - - 31.210 458.28 704.315 1.193.753
Foreign currency translation differences 694 36.406 - 212 119.827 - 157.139
Closing balance, 31 December 2017 4.547.210 1.086.949 302.916 374.473 5.704.148 3.83.973 15.854.66¢
Accumulated amortization
Openning balance, 1 January 2017 934.279 952.777 180.806 176.337 3.041.259 801.463 6.086.921
Disposals - - - - (88.851) (54.307) (143.1558)
Transfers - - - - (572) (40.601) (41.173)
Amortization charge for the year 307.426 11.702 40.629 47.713 769.443 242.048 1.418.961
Impairment - - - (2.640) 2.892 35.639 35.891
Foreign currency translation differences 202 16.312 - 260 42917 - 59.691
Closing balance, 31 December 2017 1.241.907 980.791 221.435 221.670 3.767.088 984.242 7.417.133
Net book value, 31 December 2017 3.305.303 106.158 81.481 152.803 1.937.060 2.854.731 8.437.536
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Remaining amortization periods after acquisition of significant intangible assets are as follows:

TT Mobil license 10,4 years
TT Mobil brand name 1 year
TTINT customer relationships 6,8 years
TTINT other 11,8 years

On 26 January 2016, TT Moldind TTnet brand names arelrlg anded as fAT¢grk Tel eko
decision of Group management. Following the change, useful [if€ dfobil brand, which was 10,1 years,

is now estimated as 4 years. The effect of this change on expected amortization expense, included in cost of
sales, is as follows:

2019 Later
24972 (94.940

Increasd(decreasein
amortizationexpense

There is naestriction or pledge on thatangible as at 31 December 2488 December 202 nil).

3G license tender

The tender for authorization of IMZO00 / UMTS services has been held28 November 2008 with the
participation of all three GSM operators operating in Turkey.

The license fee (including 18% VAT) amounting to TL 539.332 is paid byobil in April 2009 and
ultimately the Concession Agreement is signed on 30 April 2009.

The net book value of the 3CGcéinse as @1 December 201& TL 249.069 81 December 2017TL
272.792.
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

GSM 900 additional frequency band tender
The tender for the reallocation of unused 900 MHz Frequency Bands had been held on 20 June 2008 and
TT Mobil had obtained C banwith the minimum fee of TL 128 year /channel (excluding VAT).

TT Mobil had been granted 5,5 additional GSM 900 MHz frequency channels as a result of the tender and
ultimately total number of GSM 900 MHz frequency channels has reached to 12 togethmewitkisly
held 6,5 channels.

TT Mobil made TL 14.122 (including VAT) payment as the tender fee for the remaining GSM license
duration and amended license agreement has been signed b&fwbtobil and ICTA on 25 February
20009.

The net book value of the GSM 900 license a3labecember 2018 TL 5.011 31 December 2017TL
5.719

4.5G license tender

Tender of IMT Sevices and Infrastructures Authorization, also known as 4.5G tender in public has been
held in Ankara on August 26, 2015 B9TA. In the IMT Service and Infrastructure Authorization Tender
done by ICTA,TT Mobil has won théollowing packages2x10 MHz baxwidth in 800 MHz frequency for

Euro 380.000, 2x7.6 MHz bandwidth in 900 MHz frequency for Euro 216.819, 2x20 MHz bandwidth in
1800 MHz frequency for Euro 310.000, 2x10 MHz bandwidth in 2600 MHz frequency for Euro 25.859,
1x15 MHz bandwidth in 26D MHz frequency for Euro 22.000.0fal spectrum fee is Euro 954.678. IMT
Authorization period is valid udtB0 April 2029 and will be abl& start rendering services starting from 1
April 2016.900 MHz and services in 1.800 MHz frequency are commenced to beadsdee 1 December
2015.

As of 31 December 2018 net book value of 4.5G license amounts2@8E.733(31 December 2017: TL
2.618.804) in the consolidated financial statements.
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21.

PROVISIONS
Other shortterm provisions

The movement obther shortermprovisions is as follows:
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201

Litigation, ICTA penalty and customer retu

provisions 145.364 433.238

Provision for expected credit losses on [

commitmentg*) 100.809 T
246.173 433.238

(*) Consists of expected credit losses are recognized for the guarantees given for borrowings of
di stributors which are wutilized in financing
customers as part scbmmitment sales.

The movement of provisions is as follows:

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201

As at 1 January 433.238 264.200
Provisions for the period 88.524 237.225
Settled provisions (370.588) (68.166)
Reversals (5.859) (520)
Foreign currency translation difference 49 499
As at 31 December 145.364 433.238

Shortterm provisions for employee benefits

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Short term provisions for employee benefits

Personnel bonus provision 230.191 162.906
230.191 162.906

The movement of provisions is as follows:
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"
As at 1 January 162.906 165.862
Provision for the period 252.453 245.760
Provisions paid (153.578) (201.561)
Reversals (32.641) (46.405)
Foreign currency translation difference 1.051 (750)
As at 31 December 230.191 162.906
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21. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Long termprovisions for employee benefits

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Long term provisions for employee benefits

Defined benefit obligation 795.371 711.040
Unused vacation provisions 111.801 102.353
907.172 813.393

Defined benefit obligation

In accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey, companies are required to maksultmp
payments to employees whose employment is ended due to retirement or for reasons other than
resignation or misconduct. The liability is not funded and adeglyglthere are no plan assets for the
defined benefits as there is no funding requirement.

The retirement pay liability as 8 December 201B sibject to a ceiling of full TL5.434,42(31
December 2017ull TL 4.732,48)per monthly salary for each service year.

In addition to retirement benefits, the Group is liable for certain otherttngemployment benefits
such as businesservice, representation indemnity andijee.

i) The movement of defined benefit obligation is as follows

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201
Defined benefit obligation at January 1 711.040 695.953
Service cost 53.364 42.895
Interest cost 64.738 57.084
Actuarial loss (*) 126.172 40.417
Benefits paid (159.971) (125.713)
Foreign currency translation difference 28 404
As at 31 December 795.371 711.040

(*) As at31 December 2018&ctuarial loss amounting T 126.172(31 December 2017L 40.417 is recognized in other
comprehensive income

i) Total expense recogzed in the consolidated income statement:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Interest cost 64.738 57.084
Service cost 53.364 42.895

Total net cost recognized in the consolidated
statement of income 118.102 99.979

i) Principal actuarial assumptions used:

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’

Interest rate 15,0% 11,0%
Expected rate of ceiling increases 10,00 6,0%
For the years ahead, voluntary employéthdrawal of the Group is 2,36 (31 December 2017
2,57%).
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21. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Long term provisions for employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit obligatior{continued)

I' TS SUBSI DI ARI ES

lloothdr eurremcies are asdiscliosedh,

a

As of 31 December 2018, sensitivanalysis is performed for the significant assumptions of defined

benefit obligation:

Employee
Discount Rate Salary Increase Rate Withdrawal Rate
%0,25 %0,25 %0,25 %0,25
decrease increase decrease increase %0,25 %0,25
Sensitivity Level (%14,75) (%15,25) (%9,75) (%10,25) decrease | increase
Neteffect d defined benefit
obligation 11.327 (14.192) (14.772) 11.866 (5.352) 1.099
Long term employee benefits excluding defined benefit obligation
Themovement ofinused vacatioprovisionsis as follows:
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’
As at 1 January 102.353 87.448
Provision for
the period 61.227 55.603
Provisions paid (10.131) (10.525)
Reversals (42.351) (30.569)
Foreign currencyranslation difference 703 396
As at 31 December 111.801 102.353

Other longterm provisions

31 December 201¢

31 December 201’

Provision for the investments under the scope of T
Interpretation 12

8.167

8.035

8.167

8.035
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22. PAID IN CAPITAL, RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

As of 31 December 2018nd 2017, the shareholders of the Company with their shareholding
percentage are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
% TL % TL
The Treasury 25 875.000 25 875.000
OTAKk - - 55 1.925.00C
Levent YaYoaetimnh.dEk 55 1.925.00C - -
Public Share 15 525.000 15 525.000
Turkish Wealth Fund ("TWF") (*) 5 175.000 5 175.000
3.500.00C 3.500.00C
Inflation adjustment to share capita (239.752 (239.752
3.260.24¢ 3.260.24¢8

* Council of Ministers decided to transfer 6,68% (5% Group B, 1,68% Group D) of the shares of the
Company belonging to the Undersecretariat of Treasury to the TWdslth Fund with regards to

Law on Establishment of Turkish Wealth Fund Management Incorporated and on Amending Certain
Laws numbered 6741 and dated 19 August 2016.

The Company6s s hd.CapitatohtipeiConapany is BL 3.600.000.900, g into
192.500.000.000 Group AAO, 104.999.999.999 Gr o
iDo regi stered shares each with a nominal valu
traded.LYY is the holder of all Group A shares; SVi&the holder of Group B shares representing

5 percent of the share capital of the Company and Group D Shares representing 1.68 percent of the
share capital of the Company; the Treasury is the holder of Group B shares representing 25 percent

of the shareapital of the Company and C Group share (Golden Share).

The Treasury is the holder of the Preferred Stock (Golden Share) as per the law. This share is non
transferable. It provides certain rights to Treasury in order to protect national interestsngegard
economy and security: (a) Any proposed amendmer
the transfer of any registered shares in the Company which would result in a change in the
management control of the Company and (c) the registration dfamsfer of registered shares in

the Companyb6s sharehol dersé | edger can not be r
at either a meeting of the board of directors or the general assembly. Otherwise, such transactions
shall be deemed invdli The holder of the Golden Share, the Treasury, has one member, representing

the Golden Share, among the board of Directors.
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22.

PAID IN CAPITAL, RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

Based on the articlesf association of the Company, the board of the directors of the Company shall
consist of 12 directors.

The board of directors shall be composed of 12 members nominated by the LYY and Treasury as
follows:

(&) The group A Shareholder shall be entitled to nomeiffapersons for election as directors;
(b) Provided that the Treasury as group B shareholder shall hold:

- 30% or more of the shares, the Treasury shall be entitled to nominate 4 persons for election as
independent board members who carry the independeitega as defined in the Capital Market
legislation; or

- 15% or more of the shares (but less than 30% of the shares) the Treasury shall be entitled to
nominate 2 persons for election as independent board members who carry the independence criteria
as defned in the Capital Markets legislation;

- During the calculation of 15 % and 30 % of the Shares mentioned in above paragraphs, the
amount of group B shares and group D shares held by the Treasury shall be taken into account
together.

(c) as long as the Treasumplds 15% or more of the shares (but less than 30% of the shares), the
group A shareholder shall be entitled to nominate 2 persons, who carry the independence criteria
as defined in the Capital Markets legislation, for election as independent board mentbérs
persons for election as Director.

(d) while the Treasury holds the C group privileged share, the Treasury shall be entitled to nominate
a further 1 person for election as director for the C group privileged share.

The chairman of the board of directatsall be nominated by the directors nominated by the group
A shares from among the directors and be elected and removed by the simple majority votes of those
present at the meeting of the board of directors.

The Vice Chairman shall be nominated by the does nominated by the Group B Shares from
among the Directors and be elected and removed by the simple majority votes of those present at the
meeting of the Board of Directors.

The meeting quorum at a board meeting shall be seven of the directors ptbeidie:re shall be

at least one director appointed by the holder of the group A shares and one director appointed by the
holder of the group B shares. If a meeting quorum is not present within half an hour of the time
appointed for the meeting or ceasebe present, the director(s) present shall adjourn the meeting to

a specified place and time not earlier than five business days after the original date .The meeting
qguorum at such adjourned meeting shall consist of half of the number of directors thffinei
(regardless of the nominating share holder) plus one provided that three business days' notice has
been given to all the directors.

Board resolutions shall be passed by a simple majority of the votes of the directors present at such
meeting unlesthe resolution requires a higher majority vote

Number of members and independent board members of the Board of Directors to be nominated by
the Group A B and GroupC Shareholders have been revised by the amendment to the article 8 of
the Articles of Assoiation at on the Extraordinary General Meeting dateddttuary2019(Note

26).
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22. PAID IN CAPITAL, RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

The board of directors shall propose the distribution of themmaxm of t he Company?®6
lawfully available for distribution in each financial year subject to the board of directors making
reasonable provisions and transfers to reserves.

Based on the articles of association of the Company, the Board of Dirgladirby way of a simple
majority of those present at the relevant meeting of the Board propose the distribution of the
maximum of the Company's profits lawfully available for distribution in each financial year subject
to the Board making reasonable psiwns and transfers to reserves and complying with the
conditions set out below.

Provided that it is not against the legislation regarding capital markets, the net profit may not be
distributed, if:

a) the distribution would result in a breach of any covera undertaking given by any Group
Company (Group Companies are defined in the articles of association) to any lender or would, in the
opinion of the simple majority of those present at the relevant meeting of the board of directors, be
likely to cause sch breach within the following 12 months; or

b) the board of directors resolves by way of a simple majority of those present at the relevant
meeting of the board that the distribution is materially prejudicial to the interests of any Group
Company (asdefined in the articles of associationof the Company) having regard to: (i)
implementation of the investment program approved by the board of directors in the business plan
or the budget; or (ii) the trading prospects of the Group Companies (as defithedairticles of
association of the Company) and the need to maintain the sound financial standing of the group
companies.

In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, companies are required to assign legal reserves
before profit appropriations. The ldgaserve consists of first and second legal reserves, allocated

in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is allocated out of last
periodés statutory profits at the ratthepadf 5% pe
in share capital (not indexed to the inflation). The second legal reserve is allocated after the first legal
reserve and dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash dividend distributions

Dividends

The Company©6s 201 7mebashesrocbmpdredtwithdts statitbry netrincame and

TL 1.135.532 was determined as an amount avail
of Directors decided that on 8 February 2018, 2017 net profit in the amount of TL 1.135.532 shall

be set agle, as the extraordinary legal reserved in order to further strengthen the balance sheet
structure under the provisions of the Company's Articlésssbciation. This decision haabjeced

to the Company's Ordinary General Assembasconvened for thegar 2017.

During the year endegll December 2(there is no consalated profit for the year 20160 amount
is determined as available for dividedidtribution
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22. PAID IN CAPITAL, RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

Other reserves
The amounts transferred directly to equity, insteastatement of profit or loss as of the reporting date

as follows:

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’
Gains on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 4.283.816 -
Currencytranslation differences 417.238 218.920
Gains due to change in fair value of financial liability 64.852 )

attributable to change in credit risk of liability '
Share based payment reserve (Note 23) 9.528 9.528
Cash flow hedge reserve (185.382) (88.367)
Reserve for hedge of net investment in a foreign operat (350.099) (211.185)
Losses on change in value of time value of options (351.007) -
Actuarial loss arising from employee benefits (628.350) (526.583)
Difference arising from acquisitiaof subsidiary (1.320.942) (1.320.942)
1.939.654 (1.918.629

Reserves on hedges of net investment in foreign operations

The Company recognizes the differences arising on the translation of monetary items that are associated
with the hedge ofiet investment in a foreign operation in other comprehensive income (Bote 1

Cash flow hedge reserve

The Group entered into interest rate swaps in order to hedge it position against changes in interest rates.
Accordingly, effective fair value changestbése instruments are recognized directly in equitasih flow
hedge reserve (Note 15

Earnings/losseger share

The calculation of the basic earniigssesper share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company is as follows:

1January-31 1 January-31
December 201¢ December 2017

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstan:
during the year

Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holde (1.391.261) 1135.532
of the Company

Basic earnings/ (]l osses) (0,3975) 0,3244

350.000.000.00(  350.000.000.00t
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23.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT

According to the Turkish Council of Ministers decision dated 12 December 2007, which was
published in the Turkish Official Gazette on 26 December 2007, 52.500.000.000 (45%) shares of

Turk Telekom owned by th€reasury, the minority shareholder of Turk Telekom, has been sold as

at 15 May 2008, through an initial public of
corresponding to 15% T¢rk Telekomds shares). Du
been allocated to the employees of Turk Telekom, PTT and small investors together with
5.220.503.800 shares allocated to domestic investors with high purchasing power with discounted
price varying according to the payment terms and application date (cahtpdhe price applied to

the other corporate investors for the remaining shares of 34.980.335.900. The discounts provided to
T¢rk Telekom employees have been considered ac
Payment 0) by the mamaagsdariegthe fastfthat Tigk Tielekdnereceikes

services from its employees. The Group has reflected the fair value of the discounts provided to Ttirk
Telekom employees, amounting to TL 9.528aasxpense in the consolidasdtemenbdf profit

or lossfor yearended 31 December 2008 and credited the same amount into the equity as a share
based payment reserve.

The market price during the IPO TL 4,60

The average price applied to the employees of Turk Telekom TL 4,2937

The number of sharessol t o0 T¢r k Tel ek om6 81164048l oyees (1 ot)
Total benefits provided to the employees TL 9.528

The management of T¢rk Telekom decided that th
investors and domestic investors with high purchasimgep@re not within the scope of IFRS 2 by
considering the fact that;

a) Turk Telekom has not received any benefits (goods and services) in exchange for the
discounts provided these groups to and

b)  The Treasury provided these discounts not as a party astiaghareholder of Turk Telekom
but rather as a State Authority in order to increase the number of small investors as it has been done
in all other privatization enhanced through an IPO.

The fair value of the discounts provided to these groups amounts to approximately TL 34.000 in
2008, at the year of the transaction.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Guarantees received and given by the Group are summarized below:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Original Original
currency TL currency TL
Guarantees received usD 146.157 768.918 148.101 558.621
TL 837.781 837.781 794.884 794.884
Euro 31.190 188.016 37.966 171.434
1.794.715 1.524.939
Guarantees given (*) usb 172.418 907.075 176.395 665.344
TL 523.470 523.470 407.836 407.836
Euro 159.114 959.139 212.114 957.801
Other T T 43 43
2.389.684 2.031.024

(*) Guarantees given amounting to US Dollar 151.8¥0December 201JS Dollar151.500

is related to the guarantee provided to the ICTA by TT Mobil with respect to the TT Mobil
Concession Agreement, guarantees given amounting to Euro 1Z34WMecember 2017Euro

12.84( is related with the guarantee provided for 3G license and guarantees given amounting to
Euro 57.281(31 December 2017Euro 57.28) is related with the guarantee provided for 4.5G
license.

The Companyo6és guarantee, pl e dgledecambdr 20h@nd3L g age (
DecembeR017is as follows:

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

A. GPMs given on behal
personality 2.389.684 2.031.024

B. GPMs given in favor of subsidiaries included in
consolidation 1.531.807 1.163.65%

C. GPMS giverby the Company for the liabilities «
3rd parties in order to run ordinary course of busir 1.278.718 1.985.84¢€

D. Other GPMs T T
i. GPMs given in favor of parent company T T
ii. GPMs given in favor of Company companies no
the scope of B and &bove T T
iii. GPMs given in favor of third party companies r
in the scope of C above T T

Total 5.200209 5.180.525

Based on law 128/1 of Turkish Code of Obligations, the Group has given guarantee to distributors
amounting to TL1.278.718or the financial obligation that would arise during the purchase of devices that
will be sold as commitment sales by the Gro8p December 2017TL 1.985.848%. The guarantees has
giventothebanks 25.489 TL, 215.837 TL, 37.792 TL Ak
T¢rkiye Kk Bankasé A. k. respectively
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Other commitments

The Group has purchase commitments for sponsorships, advertising and insurance services at the
amounting t@®.500USD equivalent t84.196TL (31 December 2017L 91.193) as &81 December
2018 Payments for these commitments are going to be madeyrear period.

The Group has purchase commitments for fixed assetsraimguo 85.565 USD 14.758 Euro and
324.89 TL equivalent tdB64.009TL (31 December 2027L 1.124.637) as &1 December 2018

Turk Telekom concession agreement

The Concession Agreement was enteredbetaveen the Company and ICTA on 14 November 2005
following the privatization of the Company and the resultant reduction in the public shareholding to
less than 50%. The Concession Agreement covers:

-the performance of the telecommunications services wdrighvithin the scope of the Agreement;

-the establishment and operation of necessary telecommunications facilities and the submission of
these facilities to the use of other operators or persons and institutions making a demand as per the
law;

-the marké&ng and provision of telecommunications services.

The Concession Agreement places an obligation on the Company, in the event of terminatien or non
renewal of the Concession Agreement, to transfer all equipment affecting the operation of the system
togethe with all its functions and in good condition, and all immovable properties where such
equipment is installed and which the Company uses, to the ICTA, or to any other institution to be
designated by ICTA, at no cost.

In case ICTA determines that the Compéahas not fulfilled its obligations stemming from the
Concession Agreement and has not corrected the situation within a period granted to it, or that there
is a court decision on bankruptcy or composition against the Company, the Company is granted a
graee period of not less than 90 days commencing from written notification by ICTA, to fulfil its
obligations. Within this grace period, the Company submits a remedy program for its
abovementioned obligations to ICTA. In case ICTA accepts the remedy pro@gamatters in
dispute shall be rexamined at the end of the program provided. If the program is not accepted, then
ICTA may terminate the Concession Agreement upon expiry of the period granted to the Company.

The Concession Agreement places also a numibebligations with respect to delivering services
on the Company in relation to the provision of telecommunications services.

The Consession Agreement requires that the Company shall meet all payments accrued as a result of
the Concession Agreement an@ @stablishment and operation of the telecommunication network

in accordance with the applicable legislation or agreements concluded by the Government of the
Republic of Turkey. These payments specifically includes the permit and utilizatidiorféles se

of frequencies. laddition, the Company is required to pay the ICTA 0,35% of its net sales revenue,

as contribution share towards | CTA6s expenses.
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Tiurk Telekom cocession agreemerftontinued)

Under the Concession Agreement, requests for access in relation to the infrastructure should be met
to the extent technically possible and without discrimination. The Company is further required to
publish reference accesstainterconnection offers approved by the ICTA.

The Concession Agreement also contains an obligation on the Company to provide universal
services. According to article 6 entitled ARevV:«
Law N0:5369, the Qmpany declares the amount of 1% of its net sales revenue to the Ministry of
Transport, Maritime Affairs and Communications until the end of April of the following year and

the company inform up to the following month. This amount shall be transferreah withisame

period to the account of the central accounting department of the Ministry and shall be registered as
revenue in the budget under the name of HARevent

The tariffs to be charged by the Company are subject to the approval of the ICTA unless expressly
provided to the contrary in any regulation issued by the ICTA.

The content of customer bills is governed by relevant laws and regulations. It is possibleeta

separate invoice for each service, as well as to issue one single invoice for more than one service
rendered to a subscriber. The cost of each service shall be demonstrated separately, in the event of
preparation of one single invoice for more tloare service. A detailed bill is sent to the subscribers

upon request, to the extent technically possible and subject to the payment of a fee.

Other provisions of the Concession Agreement provide for the confidentiality of communications
and the establishemt of effective methods to answer customer complaints.

TT Mobil GSM and IMT-2000/lUMTS concession adreement and IMT Authorization
Certificate

Regarding to Gsm and IMZ000/UMTS concession agreement and IMT Authorization Certificate,

the Company shall pvide fixed guarantee by cash and/or letter of bank guarantee amounting to 6%

of the Companyo6s Licence f ee anadatTIrMobillldes mtf use
fulfill its contractual obligations, ICTA will have the right to record as remethhese guarantees.

Concession Agreement for Licensing of Establishment and Operation of GSMB00 Digital
Cellular Mobile Telephone System

A concession agreemet was entered into between TT Mobil
Concessi on Agraaeanmme00d which replacedladd siliperseded the previous GSM

1800 license agreements in place in relation to Aycell and Aria. After GSM 900 Frequency Band
bidding done by ICTAor20J un e , 2008, agreement wal§Mabikarrang
ConcessioPAgr eement 0) was rearranged after the Aut
Infrastructures made by ICTA on 26 August 2015.

TheTT Mobil concession agreement covers the establishment, development and operation of a GSM
1800 network and delivery of theystem to the Authority or the establishment to be designated by
the Authority at the end of the contracted term as being in an operating condition.

Pursuant to th& T Mobil Concession Agreemenk,T Mobil was granted to use 75 channels in the
1800 MHz band and 12 channels in the 900 MHz band. The term dfTthdobil Concession
Agreement is 25 years from 11 January 2001.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINU ED)

Concession Agreement for Licensing of Establishment and Operation of GSB00 Digital
Cellular Mobile Telephone System (continued)

TT Mobil may apply to the ICTA for renewal between dates 24 and 6 months before theT@nd of
Mobil Concession AgreemenCTA may renew the license ofT Mobil by evaluating the renewal
request according to legislation on that date.

In the event of expiry or nerenewal, TT Mobil is under an obligation to transfer the network
management centre, being the central operation units of the GSM 1800 system, gateway
switchboards and central subscription works systems (including all kinds of technical hardware),
together with all equipmeraffecting the operation of the system and the immovable properties used
by TT Mobil to the ICTA or to the establishment to be designated by ICTA at no cost.

TT Mobil is also committed to renew the network in line with technological improvements and
intemational agreements and maintain the adequacy of the network by means of technology until the
end of the agreement.

License fees were paid prior to the issuance of the concession agreement.

TT Mobil provided a performance bond in the amount of US Dollar 151BDMobil, additional

to that bond, provided performance bond amounting TL 760 corresponding to 6% of bidding amount
after GSM 900 Additional Frequency Band bidding by ICTA on 20 June 2008I&the operator

is understood to not perform its contractual obligations, the Authority shall record and confiscate the
final guarantee as income.

TheTT Mobil Concession Agreement provides that the license may be transferred with the approval
of the ICTA and within the terms of the Authorization Ordinance. However, no transfer may be made
to an entity which already has a GSM 900 or GSM 1800 license in Turkey, or to related parties of
such an entity, to the companies or subsidiaries which is owned orgethrssmehow by
shareholders of entity or to the management of such entity and their first and second blood relatives
and relative affinities. In cases such issues are determinate; GSM 1800 license given to them by
ICTA is cancelled.

Regarding transfer ofhares regulation clauses at the date of the transaction will be applied. The
approval of the Competition Authority is also required for any change of control, being a transfer of
the shares.

Fund payable to the Treasury

TT Mobil will pay an amount equal th5% of the gross sales on a monthly basis to the Treasury,
except for the default interest imposed on their subscribers for their late payments, indirect taxes,
financial obligations such as charges and fees, and the accrual amounts accounted fog reportin
purposes.

Contribution share to the ICTA

TT Mobil shall pay 0,35% of the annualretal es t o the | CTA as contrib
expenses, latest on the last working day of April of the following year.

Coverage area

TT Mobil has guaranteed anddertook to cover (up to 2 Watt outdoors) at least 50% of the
population of Turkey within three years after 11 January 2001 and at least 90% of the population of
Turkey within five years after 11 January 2001. However, the localities where there anaress t
10.000 inhabitants shall not be taken into consideration. This coverage area refers to the area to be
covered byT'T Mobil alone, and will nobe contributed by national roaming. Upon request of the
ICTA, yearly utmost two settling areaball be cover with priority by TT Mobil. TT Mobil has
completed its related liabilities with respect to coverage at 31 December 2004.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Agreement for Licensing oEstablishment and Operation of GSM1800 Digital
Cellular Mobile Telephone System (continued)

Service offerings

TT Mobil agrees and undertakes to provide the services specified within the frame of GSM
memorandum of understanding applied by GSM associatahmding, but not limited to the services
specified by GSM license agreement (call forwarding, barring of outgoing and incoming calls,
technical assistance for subscribers and free call forwarding to police and other public emergency
services).

Service quéty

TT Mobil will comply with the telephone service quality standards set down in the International
Tel ecommunicat-Toph UecommémddtJi ons in the GSM
These standards require blocking rate of the licensed indoworketo be 5% and the call failure

rate not to be more than 2%.

Tariffs

TT Mobil may freely determine its tariffs provided that these tariffs are not contrary to the regulations
of the ICTA

Emergencies

TT Mobil will take the necessary measures with priority in order to satisfy the requirements and the

needs of subscribers and users in emergencies, provided that the public authorities and enterprises

will have priority in the case of health and security emergsmmi fire and other disastefd. Mobil
has to provide at least two base stations for the use of Ministry of Transport, Maritime Affairs and
Communications in emergency.

Investment plans

TT Mobil pursuant to the relevant regulation, until the first day of December everyTyieltobil
will present its investment plan for the following calendar years to the ICTA. These plans will be
valid for 3 years and will contain information about the dynamimand forecasts, and number and

locations of the exchange stations, base stations and base control stations to be established, the period

of operation, and the investment costs. Within 120 days of receipt of the investment plan, the ICTA
will approve the ompliance of plans to the articld' ®f the agreement. Investment plan will be
presented so as to inform the ICTA after the requirements arising from the dtttiné agreement

are met.

National roaming

TT Mobil may enter into contracts with oth@dnsed GSM networks in Turkey for national roaming
purposes. Roaming contracts and the financial clause of the contracts has to be presented to ICTA
before signature procedures completed.

Suspension of operations

If deemed necessary for public securityl arational defense in case of war, general mobilization,
etc. the Authority may temporarily or permanently suspend all or a pam optrational activities

of TT Mobil and may directly operate the network. The period of suspension as above will be added
to the term of the license and the income of such a period, if any, will beldigNtobil.
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Agreement for Licensing of Establishment and Operation @&SM-1800 Digital
Cellular Mobile Telephone System (continued)

Termination of the agreement by the ICTA
The ICTA may cancel the license or terminate the Agreement for the following reasons;

i) A final judgment of the competent courts for insolvency dfMobil or its composition with
creditors,

i) Determination of the failure &fT Mobil to perform its contractual obligations hereunder and
to remedy its default in a reasonable period of time granted,

iii)  Determination thal T Mobil extends its activities beyond theduencies allocated hereunder
or other frequencies that may be allocated by the ICTIN t®Mobil for use in the GSM 1800 System,
and failure ofTT Mobil to cease such activities in a reasonable period of time granted,

iv)  Failure of TT Mobil to pay the license fees hereunder.

However, that except for point (iv) abovE] Mobil will be given the opportunity to fulfill its
obligations within a period not less than 90 days of written notice by the ICTA. During this period
of time, TT Mobil will furnish to the ICTA a corrective action program for fulfillment of its
obligations. If this program is accepted by the ICTA, the points of disagreement will be revised at
the end of the program. If this program is not acceptable, the ICTA may terminAigréeenent at

the end of the time period providedT® Mobil

Upon termination of the Agreemefii] Mobil shall transfer all of the GSM 1800 system equipment
to the ICTA without any remuneration.

Insurance

TT Mobil will maintain adequate all risk insurance for the telecommunication facilities and services
established and operated until the end of the license term.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Ageement of the Establishment and Operation of IMT2000/UMTS Infrastructures and
Provision of Services

The Concession Agreement with ICTA has been signed on 30 April 2009 and Avea has been granted
with 3G license for an amount of Euro 214.000 excluding VAie term of the license is 20 years
effective from the signature date of the Agreement. 3G services have been launched on 30 July 2009.
The contract (Athe Avea Concession Agreement o)
IMT Services and Infxstructures made by ICTA on 26 August 2015.

According to this Agreement;

1 TT Mobils hal | provide subscribersdé and userso6 11
to public security institutions and other public institutions, and to direct those calls to the
centers requested by the said institutions, free of charge bearing sl cost

1 TT Mobil shall keep at least 2 units of IMAD00/UMTS mobile base stations to be used in
emergency situations under the request of the Ministry of Transport and Communication.

1 Within the first 5 years by the signature of the AgreemEnhtVobil shall oltain the approval
of the ICTA for each assignment ®1 Mobil shares in ratio exceeding 10% to persons and
entities other than the current shareholders and subsidiaries of the current shareholders. Any
type of share assignment leading a change in theat@itf T Mobil shall be subject to the
approval of the ICTA.

1 TT Mobil has granted a bank lettef guarantee amounting to 12@4vhich is 6% of the
license fee, for to act as final guarantee. ShouldTh®obil is understood to not perform its
contractualobligations; ICTA shall record and confiscate the final guarantee as income. In
such confiscation of final guarantee as income is realig€d\Vobil shall grant new final
guarantee within 30 days. Should the new final guarantee not granted within tpersadl
the Agreement might be terminated.

1 During the term of the AgreemefiiT Mobil shall each year submit its investment plan related
to the subsequent calendar year, till 1 December to the ICTA. This plan shall be prepared for
three years and shalldlude such information as the number, location, coverage areas,
investment costs with respect to exchange centres, base stations and control stations to be
established, as well as the realization rat.i
of deviation, if any.

1 TT Mobil will pay an amount equal to 15% of the gross sales on a monthly basis to the
Treasury, except for the default interest imposed on their subscribers for their late payments,
indirect taxes, financial obligations such as charges f®es, and the accrual amounts
accounted for reporting purposes.

1 TT Mobil shall pay 0.35% of the annual rsztles to the ICTA as contribution share to the
| CTAGOS expenses, |l atest on the | ast working

Coverage Aredbligations:

Following the signature of the Agreement, Mobil shall have under coverage the population within
the borders of;

- metropolitan municipalities within 3 years,
- all the municipalities of all provinces and districts within 6 years,

- all theresidential locations having a population of more than 5.000 within 8 years,
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Agreement of the Establishment and Operation of IMT2000/UMTS Infrastructures and
Provision of Serviceqcontinued)

Coverage Area Obligationqcontinued)
- residential locations having a population of more than 1.000 within 10 years.

These are the areas which are to be coveredTbiobil alone and this obligation shall not be
fulfill ed through roaming.

TT Mobil should maintain service quality in accordance with ICTA regulations, ETSI (European
Telecommunications Standards Institute) standards and ITU (International Telecommunication
Union) standards, decisions and recommendations dpydTU.

Upon request of the ICTA, yearly utmost two settling areas shall be covered with priofify by
Mobil.

If there is any delay in fulfillment of the coverage area obligations, except the force major conditions,
an administrative fine shall tzpplied within the frame of Relevant Legislation. If there is any delay

in fulfillment of the coverage area obligations for a period of more than two years, then the
Agreement might be terminated by the KT

The Investments for hardware and software beinged in the electronic communications network

Except for the investments made in the lease of place, towers, piles, pipes, containers, channels,
energy transfer lines and similar infrastructure plants; eachlyie®tobil shall fulfill the following
requirements for its investments related to electronic communications network (hardware, software
etc.);

a) To procure at least 40% of such investments from vendor companies employing a R&D center
established in Turkey and engaged in developing R&D projeceddtian with the information and
communication technologies provided at least 200 engineers functioning in such company in the first
year after the signature of the Agreement, at least 300 engineers in the second year and at least 500
engineers for the thd and subsequent years or from vendor companies employing a R&D center
with at least 150 engineers functioning in the first year after the signature of the Agreement, at least
250 engineers in the second year and at least 350 engineers for the thibsemguent years
however such company to employ also a Technical Assistance Centre with at least 50 engineers in
the said first year, at least 100 engineers in the second year and at least 150 engineers in the third and
subsequent years.

A vendor company myanot establish the R&D center and Technical Assistance Centre together with
another vendor company; but may establish with a company, organization or institution resident in
Turkey. The vendor company shall have at least 50% share of such centersg&aizton or
institution resident in Turkey shall not employ other R&D centers and Technical Assistance Centers
that have been established together with other vendor companies functioning in information and
communication technologies area.

The university associates may also be employed part time, as engineers to be employed by the vendor
company. The number of the university associates may not exceed 5% of the total number of
engineers stated above.

TT Mobil is obliged to perform its invesents regarding the electronic communications network by
auditing and determining whether vendor companies comply with the foregoing terms and
conditions.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Ageement of the Establishment and Operation of IMT2000/UMTS Infrastructures and
Provision of Serviceqcontinued)

The Investments for hardware and software being used in tleebnic communications network
(continued)

b)  To procure at least 10% of suictvestments from the vendors in quality of Small and Medium
Sized Entities and established in Turkey for the purpose of product and system development.

All the independent software and hardware units to be used in the netwbrkdbil shall have
open irterface connections with each other.

ICTA may perform audits regarding the execution of this obligation or may commission another
organization or institution to perform such auditing when deems necessary. The costs to arise from
such audits shall be paig BT Mobil.

ShouldTT Mobil is understood to procure goods and services through methods against the foregoing
terms and conditions, an administrative monetary penalty shall be appliddMvobil up to 1% of
its turnover of the previous calendar year.

Shauld TT Mobil not perform the said obligations, a penalty as 40% of total amount of its
investments in the network (hardware, software etc.), except for the investments for lease of place,
towers, piles, pipes, containers, channels, energy transfer lida#aitar infrastructure plants, shall

be applied separately 1@ Mobil for each year. This clause is valid for the first three years following

the signature date of the AgreemeAnnual periods start with the signing of the concession
agreement.

Termination of the Agreement by ICTA:

The Authority might terminate the Agreement for the following reasons;
- A bankruptcy or bank rTu pabibgivendyethetudidiai acthotities, d e c i s

- TT Mobil not performing some of its contractu@iligations and not correcting such breach
in the given period,

- TT Mobil operating under the frequencies other than the ones allocated to itself by ICTA,

- Termination ofTT Mobil Concession Agreement
- TT Mobil not performing national roaming obligatistated in the contract

In such circumstances, ICTA giv&3 Mobil the opportunity to fulfill its obligations within 90 days

after the written notice. In cagél' Mobil cannot fulfill all the obligations within this period, the
Agreement will be terminatealy ICTA. The license fee or any other fee is not reimbursable in case

of a termination of agreement. In the case of cancellation of agreement by TTTMopbil will

alienate all data and documents which constitute system, software affecting the rursyisipof
(including tower, beam, blare, container, channel, energy transmission lines, antenna etc), stated and
in the usage of T Mobil to ICTA or to the entity ICTA enounces by making sure that there is no
pledge, mortgage, levy and related legal blockagethem and they are free of cost and works free

of problems.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Concession Agreement of the Establishment and Operation of [IMT2000/UMTS
Infrastructures and Provision of Services (continued)

The Investments for hardware and software being used in the electronic communications network
(continued)

The contTiTMaebi Cq rfid hsesi on Agreement 0) was rearran
Tender for IMT Services and Infriagctures made by ICTA on 26 August 2015.

TT Mobil has been authorized to provide IMT service and Limited Use Authorization Certificate
on 27 October 2015.

According to the Authorization Certificgte

i TT Mobil shall provide emergency call services in line with the regulations of ICTA, free of
charge bearing all costs and comply with the regulations of ICTA in relation to this matter.

1 TT Mobil shall keep at least 2 mobile base stations so as to be used fooviseop of IMT
services upon the Ministryds reqguest, in the

1 Within the first 5 years by the signature of the AgreemEhtVobil shall obtain the approval
of the ICTA for each assignment 1 Mobil shares in ratio exceedjrl0% to persons and
entities other than the current shareholders and subsidiaries of the current shareholders. Any
type of share assignment leading a change in the contiial Mobil shall be subject to the
approval of the ICTA.

1 TT Mobil has granted a b# letter of guarantee amounting to Euro 57.300 which is 6% of the
total fee, for to act as final guarantee. Should be understoodiThdobil to not perform its
contractual obligations; ICTA shall record and confiscate the final guarantee as income. In
such confiscation of final guarantee as income is realiz@dMobil shall grant new final
guarantee within 30 days. Should the new final guarantee not granted within the said period,
the Authorization might be terminated by ICTA.

1 TT Mobil will pay an amount equal to 15% of the gross sales on a monthly basis to the
Treasury, except for the default interest imposed on their subscribers for their late payments,
indirect taxes, financial obligations such as charges and fees, and the acapuatsam
accounted for reporting purposes.

1 TT Mobil shall pay the administrative fee at the rate and in the way determined by ICTA in
accordance with the applicable law.
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Certificate of Rights and Obligations regarding the Installation and Operation of IMT
Infrastructure and Provision of IMT Services (continued)

Coverage Area Obligations:

Following the authorization[ T Mobil shall put at least

1 95% of Tur k ewjtinsBygaspul ati on

1 90% of the population in each province and district within 8 years

1 99% of highways, high speed and very high speed train routes and tunnels longer than 1 km
within 3 years

1 95% of divided highways within 6 years
1 90% of conventional train roes within 10 years
under coverage. Additionally, following the authorizati®dii, Mobil shall put at least

1 99% of highways, high speed and very high speed train routes and tunnels longer than 1 km
added after the first year within 2 years of its enteirihg service

95% of divided highways added after the fourth year within 2 years of its entering into service

90% of conventional train routes added after the eight year within 2 years of its entering into
service

under coverage.

Areas covered by'T Mobil pursuant to the IMI2000/UMTS Concession Agreement shall be
deemed to be also covered under this authorization on condition that the service quality criteria set
forth in the respective article are satisfied. Additionally, areas coverelTbylobil under tlis
authorization for the purpose of provision of IMT services shall be deemed to be covered in the
determination of the coverage obligation of INTO0/UMTS services.

Coverage obligation shall be fulfilled ByT Mobil on its own and not through nationakroing.
However, TT Mobil shall be entitled to share radio access network in the areas under the coverage
obligation.

Maximum two settlements per year shall be primarily brought ByMobil under coverage upon
| CTAG6s request and tandadde determimed fossech aréas.e qual i ty s

In the event that the fulfilment of coverage obligation is delayed for any reason other than force
majeure events, administrative fine shall be applied pursuant to the applicable law. In the event that
the fulfilment ofthe coverage obligation is delayed for more than two (2) years, the Authorization
might be terminated by ICTA.
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Certificate of Rights and Obligations regarding the Installation and Operation of IMT
Infrastructure and Provision of IMT Services (continued)

Service quality obligation:

TT Mobil shall ensure data download at minimum 2 Mbps in the areas subject to coverage obligation
at a probability of 95% per user. Theatters related to the inspection of this obligation shall be
determined by ICTA.

These data transmission speeds are minimum values and ICTA shall determine service quality
obligations required to be ensured Bl Mobil taking into account ETSI standard§J standards,
decisions and recommendation, our national development targets, technological improvements and
user requirements.

Sharing the Radio Access Network:

On condition that the provisions of the applicable law are not breathedlobil may installand

operate the radio access network to be installed for the provision of IMT services together with other
operators authorized to provide IMT services and further, lease necessary transmission lines from
authorized operators in order to materialize theneations within the radio access network.

This right shall not remove the obligations BT Mobil under the authorization and shall not
constitute a reason for ndulfilment of such obligationsTT Mobil shall not avoid fulfilling its
obligations undethe authorization due to reasons arising from the sharindvobil shall, in the

case of sharing, be obliged to take all measures required to prevent any interruption of services it
provides under the authorization.

In all settlements having a populati@ss than 10.000;T Mobil shall, following the authorization,

be obliged to:

a) install antenna facilities to be installed under the authorization (excludibgiloiing antenna
facilities) in such manner that facilitates active sharing of radio acestsgork with other
operators and share such facilities with the operators,

b) In the event that there exists any antenna facilities installed by other operators at the settlements
in question following the authorization for the antenna facilities to be nimstglled byTT
Mobil under this authorizatior T Mobil shall use such antenna facility by active sharing of
radio access network.

Following this authorization, the antenna facilities newly installed under-2000/UMTS
Concession Agreements shall also be subject to the obligation prescribed by this paragraph.

TT Mobil shall be obliged to actively share radio access network in teeranfacilities to be newly
installed under this authorization in order to cover highways, high speed railways and divided
highways following the authorization. Following this authorization, the antenna facilities newly
installed under IMT2000/UMTS Concssion Agreements shall also be subject to the
aforementioned obligation
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Certificate of Rights and Obligations regarding the Installation and Operation & IMT
Infrastructure and Provision of IMT Services (continued)

Investments and communication services related to the hardware and software used in the network

Except investments made for property lease, tower, pole, pipe, container, conduit, power
transmission lines and similar infrastructur@; Mobil shall, following the authorization, be obliged
to provide:

a) At least 40% of its investments and communication services related to the network (such as
hardware, software);Within two (2) years, from gligr companies established in Turkey as to
develop R&D projects in the field of information and communication technologies, employing at
least 500 engineers and 100 researchers; within four (4) years, from supplier companies having a
R&D center, employindg00 engineers and 250 researchers, or within two (2) years, from supplier
companies established in Turkey as to develop R&D projects in the field of information and
communication technologies, employing at least 350 engineers and 100 researchersveittiralso

two (2) years from supplier companies having a Technical Assistance Center employing at least 150
engineers, within four (4) years from supplier companies having R&D center employing 350
engineers and 250 researchers and within four (4) years fqgplier companies having a Technical
Assistance Center employing at least 150 engineers.

b) At least 10% of its investments from products produced in Turkey and from SMEs established
to develop products and systems in Turkey.

Up to 60 within 2 years anguo 150 within 4 years following the authorization, of the personnel of

TT Mobil employed in the status of researcher at the R&D center establisiied Mpbil for the

purpose of developing R&D projects in the field of information and communication teghe®

shall be taken into account under the obligation related to the number of the researchers set forth in
the subparagraph (a) of this paragraph provided that such center is organized as an independent unit
underTT Mobild s or gani z a tofthe centerrare anndd GyE Modilr e s

Teaching staff of universities who work péirme at R&D centers under the applicable law or while
working at universities carry out academic studies requested by the supplier@hdobil may

be included in the rearchers to be employed by the supplier antiioMobil at R&D centers. The
number of teaching staff may not excess 10% of total number of researchers referred to in this
subparagraph (a).

A supplier company may establish R&D and technical assistance<é&rgether with institutions

or bodies, except other suppliers, established in Turkey, which operate in the field of information
and communication technologies and do not have a R&D or technical assistance center established
with other suppliers. The sulgr companies must hold at least 50% of the shares of such centers.

All independent software and hardware units to be usedToyobil in the network shall be
interconnected through explicit interfaces.

TT Mobil shall be obliged to materialize its inte®nts and communication services relating to the
network (such as hardware, software) by checking and verifying whether or not the supplier
companies and Small Entities (ASMEOo) ful fil t
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24.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Certificate of Rights and Obligations regarding the Installation and Operation of IMT
Infrastructure and Provision of IMT Services (continued)

Investments and communication services related to the hardware and software used in the network
(continued)

TT Mobil shall be obliged to supply its investments and communication services relating to the
network (hardware or software such as base statmatghsng, router), except investments relating

to property lease, tower, pole, container, channel, power transmission lines and similar facilities,
from the products determined to be domestic product under the Law No 4734 and applicable law at
least by 30%within the first year, at least by 40% within the second year and at least by 45% within
subsequent years following the authorization. Such items among the products supplied by the
supplier companies and SMEsT® Mobil, which are determined to be doniegtroducts shall be

taken into account under this obligatidi. Mobil contemplating that it will not be able to fulfil its
obligations set forth in the this paragraph due to the availability condition of the products determined
to be domestic productsyply capacity of the producers and other conditions shall apply to ICTA
indicating the reasons, no later than six (6) months before the expiry of the obligation period. ICTA
may reduce or terminate the obligation for the respective period if it deenssagce

Additional to the obligation in the paragraph above; investments specified in the paragraph above,
to be measured for periods of 4 years, following the authoriz&fidviobil shall be obliged to supply

from the products determined to be domestidpob under the Law No 4734 and applicable law a
minimum average of 30% in the first 4 years, 40% in the second 4 years and 45% in the third 4 years.
Such items among the products supplied by the supplier companies and SMBESItdIl, which

are determinetb be domestic products shall be taken into account under this obligétidvobil
contemplating that it will not be able to fulfil its obligations set forth in the this paragraph due to the
availability condition of the products determined to be dormgstbducts, supply capacity of the
producers and other conditions shall apply to ICTA indicating the reasons, no later than six (6)
mont hs before the expiry of the obligation per
taken, may reduce or termieahe obligation for the respective period if it deems necessary.

Whether or not the obligations under this article have been fulfilled shall be evaluated with the
obligations ofTT Mobil under the IMT2000/UMTS Concession Agreement

Cancelation of Authadzation
ICTA may terminate the Authorization Certificate for the following reasons;
- A bankruptcy or bank rTu pdbidgivendyethetudidiai acthotities, d e c i s

- TT Mobil not performing some of its contractual obligations and not correcting such breach
in the given period,

- TT Mobil operating under the frequencies other than the ones allocated to itself by ICTA and
not ceasing these operation within the given period,

- Termination of one of TMobilb s Concessi on Agreements signed

- TT Mobil not performing its obligations stated in the article related to confidentiality of the
communication, national security and public order

In such circumstances, ICTA giv&3 Mobil the opportunity to fulfill its obligations within 90 days
after the written notice. In cagél' Mobil cannot fulfill all the obligations within this period, the
Authorization Certificate will be terminated by ICTA.
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24. COMMITMENT S AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Certificate of Rights and Obligations regarding the Installation and Operation of IMT
Infrastructure and Provision of IMT Services (continued)

The Temination of the Authorization Certificate by ICTA (continued)

The license fee or any other fee is not reimbursable in case of a termination of agreement. In the case
of cancelation of agreement by ICTA, TT Mobil will alienate all data and documents edmistitute

system, software affecting the running of system (including tower, beam, blare, container, channel,
energy transmission lines, antenna etc), stated and in the usage of TT Mobil to ICTA or to the entity
ICTA enounces by making sure that thereaspledge, mortgage, levy and related legal blockages

on them and they are free of cost and works free of problems.

Legal proceedings of Turk Telekom

Disputes between the Company and Municipalities

For contribution to the infrastructure investment and wmipality share, municipalities filed against
the Company and as a1 December 2018otal provision including the nominal amount and legal
interest charge which is amounting to $1.059(31 December 201 7L 50.258 is recognized.

Disputes between the Group and the ICTA

The Company has filed various lawsuits against ICTA. These lawsuits are related with the sector
spedfic and tariff legislations and legislations with respect to the other operators in the market. The
sectorspecific disputes generally stem from the objections with respect to the provisions of
interconnection legislation, legislation with respect todehemunication services and infrastructure.

As of 31 December 2018L 37.35%rovision provided for ICTA penalties and amounts to be repaid

to customers due to ICTA resolutior&l(December 201 7L 23.131).

TT Mobil ds Treasury Share investigation

Law numbered 7061 ALegislation on Amendment of
Legi sl at i on onthe ®fficiapGazette nusnbeeed 30261 on 5 December 2017. According

to mentioned Law, the provisional clause was added to Telegraph and Telephone Law numbered
406, which regulates restructuring provisions on contribution share to universal servigkutiontr

share to authority expenses, administrative fee, radio fee, penalty fee and ancillariesuhdezof

dispute or under examination. In regard to the provisional clause, the Company has decided to utilize

the restructuring provisions regarding seey share, contribution share to universal service,
contribution share to authority expenses, administrative fee, radio fee, penalty fee and ancillaries
thereof which are the subject of finalized investigations

The Company, applied for restructuring onJ2éhuary 2018 and terminated all the disputes, relating
the subject, by waiving/accepting. Within the scope of restructuring provisions, total amount
calculated in this context is TL 312.18&hich includes TL 210.463 principal and TL 101.718
interest (basd on Domestic ProduceriPc e | nUWFE)X Payménfs wermade in six equal
installments (plus deferred payment interest) in-tmanth periods beginning in January 20IBe

last installment was paid on 30 November 2018

The Ministry of Customs and Tradeadministrative fine

The Ministry of Customs and Trade conducted an audit at TT Mobil over the value added services
that are provided to the subscribers and as a result of this inspection, an administrative fine amounting
to TL 138.173 was imposed against Mobil based on the allegation that distant sales rules were
disregarded.
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24. COMMITMENT S AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
The Ministry of Customs and Trade administrative fingcontinued)

Upon such administrative fine, applications were filed respectively for the settlement first and then
for the abolishment of the said administrative action with The Ministry of Trade. Olicajgm for

the abolishment of administrative fine was refused, and the settlement was rejected by TT Mobil in
the course of settlement. A cancelation case has been initiated with stay of execution request
regarding the penalties claimed.

According to maagement decision, as of 31 December 2018 the Company has recognized no
provision in the consolidated financial statements that has been made for fulfillment of the obligation
to the extent that it is not probalifeat a material outflow of resources embindyeconomic benefit

will have occurred.

Other issues

Provision has been provided the consolidated financial statements for the probable court cases
against the Group based on the | awyersé assessm
to 56.946 TL as at31 December 20181 December 2017L 47.668). For the rest of the cases,

Group lawyers commented that basis of those cases are not realistic and should be appealed.
Therefore, no provision has been provided for these cases.

25. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Other explanations

31 Non-cash flows 31
December Foreign exchange | Other non-cash | December
2017 Cash flows | Acquition movement changes 2018
Financial liabilities 16.489.139 (3.454.010) 1.040.703 6.134.272 (291.280) 19.918.824
Obligations under finance leases (Note 2.599 (826) -- 821 - 2.594
Derivative financial instruments (Note 1! 309.441 (1.572) -- -- 425.069 732.938
Total liabilities from financing activities 16.801.179 (3.456.408) 1.040.703 6.135.08 133.789 20.654.356
iOt her outflows of cashd in net cash used in op
Restricted cash amount is disclosesh Not e 4. Aot her outfl ows of ¢
financi al activities represents change-cashn ot he
itemso in adjustments to reconcile net sprofit

change in TFRS Interpretation 12.

Capitalized subscriber acquisition and retentions costs amounting to 661.273 TL are disclosed in
APurchases of property, pl ant, equi pment and i
flows.
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26.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Turk Telekom's Board of Directors resolved in accordance with Clause 7 of Articles of Association
of Turk Telekom and paragraph 3 of Clause 31 of Capital Markets Law that, subject to completion
of all the necessary procedures in accordance with the relevant legislation, and in particular the
legislation of the Capital Markets Board, one or more foreign currency and / or Turkish Lira
denominated debt capital market instruments shall be issueseageanithout being offered to the
public within one year from the approval of the Capital Markets Board, in the structure of a
conventional Eurobond and/or sukuk up to a total amount of USD 500 Million or its equivalent
(including the equivalent of USD 50Million). As of 7 January, within this resolution scope,
necessary approval application has been made to the Capital Market Board.

Number of members and independent board members of the Board of Directors to be nominated by
the Group A B and GroupC Shareholders have been revised by the amendment to the article 8 of
the Articles of Association at on the Extraordinary General Meeting dated 25.01A2@bedingly;

The board of directors shall be composed of nine (9) members nominatedShatbleolers
(a) the Group A Shareholder shall be entitled to nominate five (5) persons for election as Directors;
(b) provided that the Treasury and Turkish Wealth Fund, as Group B Shareholders shall hold:

- 30% or more of the Shares, the Treasury shall b#ezhto nominate three (3) persons for election
as Independent Board Members who carry the independence criteria as defined in the Capital
Markets legislation; or

- 15% or more of the Shares (but less than 30% of the Shares) the Treasury shall bet@ntitled
nominate two (2) persons for election as Independent Board Members who the carry the
independence criteria as defined in the Capital Markets legislation;

- During the calculation of 15 % and 30 % of the Shares mentioned in above paragraphs, the amount
of Group B Shares and Group D Shares held by the Treasury and Turkish Wealth Fund shall be taken
into account together.

(c) As long as the Treasury and Turkish Wealth Fund holds 15% or more of the Shares (but less than
30% of the Shares), the Group A s#f#older shall be entitled to nominate one (1) person, who carry
the independence criteria as defined in the Capital Markets legislation, for election as Independent
Board Members and five (5) persons for election as Director.

(d) while the Treasury holdee C Group Privileged Share, the Treasury shall be entitled to nominate,
a further one (1) person, for election as Director for the C Group Privileged Share.
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lloothdr eurremcies are asdisclioseddh,

27. REVENUE
1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201’
Mobile 7.534.284 6.638.683
Broadband 5.532.70C 4.899.033
Fixed voice 2.603.183 2.603.435
Corporate data 1.690.211 1.492.41¢
International revenue 926.220 639.019
IFRIC 12 revenue 771.141 704.315
Tv 305.669 228.135
Other 1.067.492 934.518
20.430.90C 18.139.554

28. OPERATING EX PENSES

1 January 2018-
31 December 201¢

1 January 2017-
31 December 201"

Cost of sales-{ (11.249.445; (10.029.082
Marketing, sales and distribution expensgs ( (2.409.985) (2.404.461)
General administrative expenseks ( (1.784.341) (1.706.962)
Research and development expenses ( (147.779) (124.737)

(15.591.550 (14.265.242°
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29. EXPENSES BY NATURE

1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"

Personnel expenses (3.018.853) (2.861.189)
Taxes (2.004.943) (1.635.517)
Domestic interconnection (1.270.446) (1.202.488)
Repair and maintanance expenses (836.017) (721.877)
TFRS Interpretation 12 related fixed assets addit

and capex provision expenses (682.426) (623.288)
Advertisement expenses (637.419) (597.423)
International interconnection (636.511) (425.480)
Utilities (578.716) (407.888)
Rent expenses (562.822) (500.661)
Cost of sales and cost of equipment sales

technology companies (502.519) (468.631)
Other expenses (1.125.684) (1.801.568)
Total operating expenses (excluding depreciation

and amortization expense) (11.856.356 (11.246.010
Depreciation, amortization (3.717.763) (2.906.444)
Impairment expenses (17.431) (112.788)
Total operating expenses (15.591.550; (14.265.242°
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30. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES

lloothdr eurremcies are asdiscliosedh,

1 January 2018-
31 December 201¢

1 January 2017-
31 December 201°

Interest and discount gains 140.221 127.972
Rental income 35.616 26.743
Indemnity income 21.649 31.048
Foreign exchange gains 3.318 44.869
Other 30.565 60.491
Other operating income 231.369 291.123
Foreign exchange losses (298.763) (135.723)
Litigation provision compensation and pene

expenses (92.345) (248.852)
Interest expenses on employee benefit obligat

(Note 21) (64.738) (57.084)
Interest and discount losses (34.399) (72.195)
Other (2.229) (27.116)
Other operating expense- (492.474) (540.970)

31. INCOME /(EXPENSE) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1 January 2018-
31 December 201¢

1 January 2017-
31 December 201’

Gain from scrap sales 105.503 112.307
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment 24.785 18.091
Income from investing activites 130.288 130.398
Losses from sales on property, plant and equipme (12.960) (5.610)
Expense from investing activites) (12.960) (5.610)
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32. FINANCIAL INCOME / (EXPENSE)

1 January 2018- 1 January 2017-

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"
Gain on derivative instruments 444713 420.785
Interest income on bank deposits and delay charg 270.547 181.787
Foreign exchange gains 575.308 119.389
Gains on change in faialue of bills, bonds and not:
issued 131.538 T
Other 393 346
Financial Income 1.422.499 722.307
Foreign exchange losses (5.821.839) (1.510.419)
Interest expense (1.050.389) (563.762)
Loss on derivative instruments (884.451) (393.165)
Other (115.640) (57.772)
Financial expenses (7.872.319) (2.525.118)
Financial expenses, net (6.449.820) (1.802.811)

33. TAXATION ON INCOME

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201"
Corporate tax payable:
Current corporate tax provision 22.725 651.405
Prepaid taxes and funds ( (16.260) (627.061)
Tax payable 6.465 24.344

1 January 2018-

1 January 2017-

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201
Tax expense:
Current tax expense:
Current income tax expense (22.725) (671.216)
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous \ 2.245 (25.576)
Deferred income (Note 11) :
Deferred tax income 651.500 353.997

631.020 (342.795)

As of 31 December 2018eferred tax expensemountirg to TL 365.034(31 December 2017TL

19.810 incomeé are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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33.

TAXATION ON INCOME (CONTINUED)

The Company and its subsidiaries located in Turkey are subject to taxation in accordance with the
tax regulations and the legislation effective in Turkey where the Group companies operate. Corporate
tax returns are required to be filed by the twefifth day of the fourth month following the balance
sheet date and taxes must be paid in one installment by the end of the fourth month.

In Turkey, corporate tax rais 22% as of 31 December 2018 (2020%). However, ecording to

the Article 91 of the Law numb r e d Ledistatlon dnAmendment of Certain Takegislation

and OtherCertain Legislation which waspublished on th®fficial Gazettenumbered 3026&n 5
December 2017And according to the provisional clause 10 added to the Corporate Tax Law
numbered 520; corporate taxate forthe taxation periods of 2018, 2019 and 2028nwended to

22%, which would later be applied as 20% at the end of these pefiadag these period§ouncil

of Ministers is entitled to decrease the corporate tax rate of 22840

The tax legislation mvides for a temporary tax of 22% (202D%) to be calculated and paid based

on earnings generated for each quarter for the period ended 31 December 2017. The amounts thus
calculated and paid are offset against the final cotpotax liability for the yearWith the
amendmento the Law corporaterateis setto 22% for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020.

In Turkey, the tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a
consolidated tax return. Thereforgovision for taxes, as reflected in the consolidated financial
statements, has been calculated on a sepantityg basis.

Corporate tax losses can be carried forward for a maximum period of five years following the year
in which the losses were incurte@he tax authorities can inspect tax returns and the related
accounting records for a retrospective maximum period of five years.

Dividend payments made to resident and-resident individuals, neresident legal entities and
corporations resident in Tkey (except for the ones exempt from corporate and income tax), are
subject to an income tax of 15%.

Dividend payments made from a corporation resident in Turkey to a corporation also resident in
Turkey are not subject to income tax. Furthermore, incaxéstnot calculated in case the profit is
not distributed or transferred to equity.

The dividend income (excluding the participation certificates of investment funds and profit shares
derived from the share certificates of investment trusts) derivedtig®from the participation in

the capital of another resident entity is exempt from corporate tax. Furthermore, 75% of the income
derived by entities from the sale of participation shameg real estates (immovable property)
preferential rights, founds' shares and redeemed shares which are carried in assets at least for two
years is exempt from caopate tax as of 31 December 20H®wever, according to trnendmerg

by Law numbered 7061, this rateeduced from 75% to 50%ith regard to immovablerpperties

andtax declarations starting from 2008l be calculatedusing50%for immovable properties

In order to be able to benefit from the exemption, the relevant income should be kept under a fund
account in the liabilities and should not be withvdnafrom the enterprise for 5 years. The sales
amount should be collected by the end of the second calendar year following the year of sale.
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33. TAXATION ON INCOME (CONTINUED)

The reconciliation between taxpense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by applicable
tax is as follows:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 201¢ 31 December 201
Profit before tax (2.022.281) 1.478.327
Tax at the corporate tax rate of (22%) 444,902 (295.665)
Tax effects of:
- expenses that are not deductible in determi
taxable profit (42.663) (36.023)
- tax rate difference of subsidiaries 2.999 744
- deferred tax asset recognition from cash ca|
increase 60.907 36.734
- deferred tax asset recognize@érecognizedfrom
previous years' tax losses carried forward
subsidiaries 113.845 43.825
- the effect of increasing corporate tax ratio from 9
to %22 T (22.190)
- adjustments and tax losses of subsidiariesubject
to deferred tax 51.030 (70.220)
Tax expense for the year 631.020 (342.795)

Investment Incentives

TT Mobil has obtained investment incentive certificates from the Turkish government authorities in
connection with certain major capigtpenditures, which entitle TT Mobil, among other things, to:

a) A 100% exemption from customs duty on machinery and equipment to be imported,
b)  Aninvestment allowance of 100% on approved capital expenditures,

The investment allowance indicated in (b) abowaeiductible from current or future taxable profits

for the purposes of corporation tax; however, such investment allowances are subject to a
withholding tax. At 31 December 28linvestment allowancesmount to TL9.542.3182017: TL
7.633.79). Unrecognied defered tax asset is TIL21.1452017:TL 91.637.

The Law foresaw that the taxpayers that have investment allowance rights obtained under the scope
of the previous provisions valid before 24 April 2003 and the provisions of the amended article 19
of the Income Tax Law (amended with Law No 4842) that were effective until 31 December 2005
would be able to utilize their investment allowance rights only for their income generated in the years
2006, 2007, and 2008.

However on 15 October 2009, the Constitnal Court decided to cancel the phrases which abolish
the investment allowances after 2008 and limit the use of investment allowance incentive allowance
with the years 2006, 2007 and 2008. The annulment decision is effective after being published in the
Official Gazette no 27456 datedJ&nuary 2010. Accordingly, TT Mohihay utilize those unused
incentive in the future.
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34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk policies of the Group are managed centrally with the support of a committee. All Group
companies meet their cash needs determined in msspians approved by their boards, by using
credits or capital increase with guidance of the central management. The Group may choose long or
short term financing according to their financing needs and market assumptions.

The Groupds r i sé&s amdesigngdearidentify ang analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to determine appropriate risks limits and controls, and to observe commitment to these limits.
Risk management policies and systems are constantly under review to reflect chang@g irothep 6 s
activities and market conditions.

The Group audit committee oversees how mahnage me
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework

in relation to the risks fax by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role

by internal audit.Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Financial risk factors

The Groupobés principal financi al i nstruments col
cash and shotterm deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds for

t he Group©bs o0 pe mtarest raterisk. Ehe @roup lwas Var@uk gther financial assets

and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Groupmdisk, finan
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The board reviews and agrees to policies for
managing each of these risks.

Credit risk
Receivables

Trade Receivables Other receivables

Related Third Related Third Deposits and Derivative
31 December 2018 Parties Parties Parties Parties banks _Instruments Other
Maximum credit risk exposed to as at the reporting date
(A+B+C+D+E) 10.489 5.268.309 T 105.914 4.494.393 237.402 T
- Guaranteed portion of the maximum risk T 37.073 T 1 1 T
A. Carrying amount of financial assets not overdue or not impair¢ 10.489 3.922.429 T 105.914 4.494.393 237.402
B. Carrying amount of financial assets with rediscussed conditiot
that are considered overdue or impaired if not rediscussed
C. Carrying amount of financial assets overdue but not impaired T 1.345.880 T 1 [ 1 T
-Amount secured via guarantees T T [ 1 T 1 1
D. Carrying amount of assets impaired T T T 1 1 T T
-Overdue (gross book value) T (3.241.202) [ (42.759) [ 1 [
-Impairment §) T 3.241.202 T 42.759 T T T

T T T T T

E. Off balance sheet items with credit risk T 1
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Receivables

Trade Receivables Other receivables

Related Third Related Third Deposits and Derivative
31 December 2017 Parties Parties Parties Parties banks Instruments Other
Maximum credit risk exposed to as at the reporting date (A+B+C+D+ 23.707 4.884.031 T 91.731 4.099.906 616.718 1
- Guaranteed portion of the maximum risk T 17.232 T T T 1 1
A. Carrying amount of financial assets not overdue or not impaired 23.707 3.546.112 T 91.731 4.099.906 616.718 T
B. Carrying amount of financial assets with rediscussed conditions th
are considered overdue or impaired if not rediscussed T T [ T T T 1
C. Carrying amount of financial assets overdue but not impaired T 1.337.919 1 T T 1 1
-Amount secured via guarantees T T 1 1 T 1 T
D. Carrying amount of assets impaired T T T T T 1 1
-Overdue (gross book value) T 2.840.298 [ 24.186 T 1 1
-Impairment ¢) T (2.840.298) 1 (24.186) T 1 1
E. Off balance sheet items with credit risk T T [ 1 T 1 T

Financi al |l osses due to Groupds r ecimplementng es and

agreement clauses related to financial assets by a customer or other party constitutes credit risk.

When determining the credit risk exposure as at the balance sheet date, items like guarantees
received, which increase the credit worthinesgehaot been considered. The aging for assets
overdue but not impaired for has been provided in Note 6.

As of 31 December 2018hemaximum credit risk Company exposure is reflected by presenting all
financial assets from carrying amount on consolidated balance sheet.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is uncertainty to cover future financial obligations.

The Group©ds o0bjnabdance ketwees cutremt assetd and liabilities through close
monitoring of payment plans and cash projections.

The Group manages current and ldagn funding by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities, reserve borrowing facilities and loagreements with suppliers through continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of financial assets and
liabilities.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summari zes the mat u3 Ddcembgr of i | €
2018and2017based on contractual undiscounted payments (includingegitpayments not due
yet).
Total
contract
based cash Less than

Contract based maturities as at 31 outflow 3 months 1to5years Morethan 5
December 2018 Book value (I+11+I11+1V) () 3 to 12 months (1) [(L1)) years (1V)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and bills,bonds

and notes issued 19.918.824  23.245.870  315.164 7.088.059 14.985.281 857.366
Obligations under finance leases 2.594 2.599 158 476 1.965 T
Trade payables 3.845.124 3.845.124 3.732.338 112.786 T T
Other payables (*) 1.417.484 1.452.543 1.190.109 T 262.434 T
Related parties 110 110 110 T T T
Derivative financial liabilities (net) 732.938 737.926 79.697 364.471 325.707 (31.949)
Total
contract
based cash Less than
Contract based maturities as at 31 outflow 3 months 1to 5years More than 5
December 2017 Bookvalue (I+1+111+1V) () 3 to 12 months (1) (D) years (V)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and bills, bonds

and notes issued 16.489.139  19.062.316  253.002 2.717.940 12.493.807  3.597.567
Obligations under finance leases 2.599 2.602 154 465 1.983 T
Trade payables 4.066.558 4.066.870 3.739.500 327.370 T T
Other payables (*) 1.300.601 1.322.274  947.043 T 375.231 T
Relatedparties 2.326 2.326 1 2.326 T T
Derivative financial liabilities (net) 309.441 309.441 6.069 23.766 104.747 174.859

(*) Other payable#temincludes other payables, employee benefit obligations and other current
liabilities. Taxes and other payables contained within employee benefit obligations and advances
contained withirother current liabilities are excluded.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk
Foreign Currency Risk

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

TL TL

Equivalent  US Dollar Euro GBP Other Equivalent Usb Euro GBP Other
1. Trade receivables 315.683 22.861 28.884 3 15.201 248.843 25.209 34.052 T T
2a. Monetary financial assets (Cash and banks accounts included) 3.286.197 336.639 250.863 17 2.040 2.023.846 366.988 141.646 T T
2b. Normonetary financial assets T T T T T T T T T T
3. Other 108.766 922 17.232 T 29 111.129 5.452 20.056 T T
4. Current assets (1+2+3) 3.710.646 360.422 296.979 20 17.270 2.383.818 397.649 195.754 T T
5. Trade receivables T T T T T 1.660 440 T T T
6a. Monetary financial assets 36.481 6.934 T T T 59.006 15.643 T T T
6b. Nonmonetary financial assets T T T T T T T T T T
7. Other T T T T T 677 2 149 T T
8. Non-current assets (5+6+7) 36.481 6.934 T T T 61.343 16.085 149 T T
9. Total assets (4+8) 3.747.127 367.356 296.979 20 17.270 2.445.161 413.734 195.903 T T
10. Trade payables 2.044.960 302.973 70.387 T 19.113 1.629.635 327.159 87.558 50 3
11. Financial liabilities 6.707.528 917.725 311.789 T T 2.419.330 354.105 239.991 T T
12a. Monetary other liabilities 9.561 201 1.411 T T 14.929 199 3.140 T T
12b. Nonrmonetary other liabilities T 7 T T [ 7 T 7 T 7
13. Shortterm liabilities (10+11+12) 8.762.049  1.220.899 383.587 T 19.113 4.063.894 681.463 330.689 50 3
14. Trade payables T 7 7 T T T T 7 T T
15. Financial liabilities 13.159.080 1.798.103 613.709 T T 13.988.494 2.643.710 889.533 T T
16 a. Monetary other liabilities 85.271 16.095 99 T T 216.834 31.252 21.914 T T
16 b. Nonmonetary other liabilities T 7 7 T T T T 7 T T
17. Longterm liabilities (14+15+16) 13.244.351 1.814.198 613.808 T T 14.205.328 2.674.962 911.447 T T
18. Total liabilities (13+17) 22.006.400 3.035.097 997.395 T 19.113  18.269.222 3.356.425 1.242.136 50 3
19. Net asset/(liability) position of off balance sheet derivative
instruments (19a19b) 10.070.310  1.824.600 78.180 T T 3.614.894 1.605.000 (540.140) T T
19a. Total asset amount hedged 1 T 1 T T 1 T T T T
19b. Total liability amount hedged (10.070.310) (1.824.600) (78.180) T T (3.614.894) (1.605.000) 540.140 T T
20. Net foreign currencyasset/(liability) position (3-18+19) (8.188.963 (843.141) (622.236) 20 (1.843) (12.209.167) (1.337.691) (1.586.373) (50) 3)
21. Net asset/(liability) position of foreign currency monetary items
(IFRS 7.B23) (=1+2a+5+6&d0-11-12a14-15-16a) (18.368.039 (2.668.663) (717648 20 (1.872) (15.935.867) (2.948.145) (1.066.438) (50) 3)
22. Fair value of FX swap financial instruments (448.013) (85.159) T 1 1 365.659 96.943 T 1 T
23. Hedged amount of foreign currency assets 1 T T 1 1 T 1 T 1 T
24. Hedgedamount of foreign currency liabilities (10.070.310) (1.824.600) (78.180) 1 1 (3.614.894) (1.605.000) 540.140 1 T
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency riskcontinued)

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly with respect to the financial liabilities and trade
payables. Foreign currency denominated borrowings are stated in Note 5.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasompalslyible change in the US Dollar and Euro
exchange rate, with al/l other variables held consH
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities):

31 December 2018 Profit/Loss Other comprehensiveincome
Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency

Appreciation of USD against TL by 10%:

1- USD net asset/liability (1.398.652) 1.398.652 T T
2- Hedgedportion of USD risk {) (*) 287.143 (196.188) 98.573 (70.465)
3- USD net effect (1+2) (1.111.509) 1.202.464 98.573 (70.465)

Appreciation of Euro against TL by 10%:

4- Euro net asset/liability (422.151) 422.151 T T
5- Hedged portion oEuro risk ¢) 186.468 (156.462) (52.525) 19.659
6- Euro net effect (4+5) (235.683) 265.689 (52.525) 19.659

Appreciation of other foreign currencies
against TL by 10%:

7- Other foreign currency net asset/liability (245 245 T T
8- Hedgedportion of other foreign currency)( T T T T
9- Other foreign currency net effect (7+8) (245 245 T T
Total (3+6+9) (1.347437) 1.468.38 46.048 (50.806)

(*)Including the fair value differences of cross currency, interest rate amgipption contracts.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

31 December 2017 Profit/Loss Other comprehensive income
Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency

Appreciation of USD against TL by 10%:

1- USD net asset/liability (1.137.335) 1.137.335 T T
2- Hedged portion of USD risk) 55.277 (86.024) (11.895) 11.895
3- USD net effect (1+2) (1.082.058) 1.051.311 (11.895) 11.895

Appreciation of Euro against TL by 10%:

4- Euro net asset/liability (472.427) 472.427 T T
5- Hedged portion of Euro risk)( 55.520 (55.520) T T
6- Euro net effect (4+5) (416.907) 416.907 T T

Appreciation of other foreign currencies
against TL by 10%:

7- Other foreign currency net asset/liability (25) 25 T T
8- Hedged portion of other foreign curreney ( T T T T
9- Other foreign currency net effect(7+8) (25) 25 T T
Total (3+6+9) (1.498.990) 1.468.243 (11.895) 11.895
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk

The value of a financial instrument will fluctuate asaresudthfanges i n mar ket prices.
rate risk is primarily attributable to its borrowings.

The interesbearing financial liabilities have variable interest rates, whereas the interest bearing financial
assets have a fixed interest rate andréuttash flows associated with these financial instruments will not
fluctuate in amount. The Group is subject to interest risk due to financial liabilities and finance lease
obligations. Policy of the Group is to manage this risk through fixed and var@bseborrowings. In order

to cover for these risks, the Group has ententglinterest rate swaps (Note)15

The interest rate risk table is presented below:

31 December 201¢ 31 December 201°

Financial instruments with fixed interest rate

Financial assets 3.693.827 3.467.65C
Financial liabilities (5.040.115) (4.070.254)
(1.346.288) (602.604)
Effect of hedging (7.546.710 (5.687.597)
(8.892.99% (6.290.201)
Financial instruments with variable interest rate
Financial liabilities (14.878.70% (12.418.885
Effect of interest rate swaps 7.546.71C 5.687.597
(7.331.999 (6.731.288)
If the base point of denominated interest rates for financial instruments with variatdetirage was higher
0, 25 %, with al/l ot her variables hel d cotwsuldbeat , t he
lower by TL6.529(31 December 201 7L 6.640 andinterest rate was lowd),25%, with all other variables
held constant, the Groupdos itwald beehigheeldy dl6.229(8lax and

December 2017TL 6.185 as of31 December 2017

On the other side because of hedging, if the base point of interest rate higher/lowere@wsftyould be
higher by TL57.004(31 December 20 TL 40.85§, if the base point of interest rate lower 0,25%, equity
would be lower by TI57.858(31 December 201 7L 41.472.

Explanation on the presentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair values

The below table summarizes the carrying and fair
consolidated financial statements.

Due to their shofterm naure, the fair value of trade and other receivables represents their book value. The
fair value of borrowings with fixed interests is obtained by calculating their discounted cash flows using the
market interest rate effective at the reporting date. Tirevidue of foreign currency denominated
borrowings with variable interests is obtained by discounting the projected cash flows using estimated
market interest rates.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Explanation on the pesentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair values (continued)

Carrying amount Fair value
31 December 201¢ 31 December 2017 31 December 201¢ 31 December 2017

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4.494.536 4.100.204 4.494.536 4.100.204
Trade and other receivables

(including related parties) 5.384.712 4.999.469 5.384.712 4.999.469
Financial investments (*) 11.995 11.840 *) *)
Derivative financial assets 237.402 616.718 237.402 616.718
Financial liabilities

Bank borrowings 15.040.979 12.732.751 15.039.834 12.731.473
Bills, bonds and notes issued 4.877.845 3.756.388 4.877.845 3.828.882
Financial leasing liabilities 2.594 2.599 2.594 2.599
Trade payables and other liabilities

(includingrelated parties) (**) 5.262.718 5.369.485 5.262.718 5.369.485
Derivative financial liabilities 732.938 309.441 732.938 309.441
(*) Groupds share in Cetel is carried at cost. I

(**) Trade payables and other liabilities iteroludestrade and other payables, employee benefit obligations
and other liabilities contained within other current liabiliti®axes and other payables contained within
employee benefit obligations and advanoastained within other current liabilities are excluded.

Fair value hierarchy table

The group classifies the fair value measurement of each class of financial instruments according to the
source, using the thrdevel hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Marke price valuation techniques for the determined financial instruments traded in markets
(unadjusted)

Level 2: Other valuation techniques includes direct or indirect observable inputs

Level 3: Valuation technigues does not contains observable market inputs
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Explanation on the presentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair values (continued)

Fair value hierarchy table as3it December 2018 as follows:

Fair Value Measurement

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant Significant

Markets Observable Inputs  Unobservable

Date of Valuation Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value:
Derivative Financial Assets:
Cross currency swaps 31 December 2018 200.921 T 200.921 T
Interest rate swaps 31 December 2018 36.481 T 36.481 T
Financial liabilities measured at fair value:
Bills, bonds and notes issued 31 December 201¢ 4.877.845 4.877.845 T )
Derivative Financial Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps 31 December 2018 84.004 T 84.004 T
Cross currency swaps 31 December 2018 648.934 T 648.934 T
Other financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Bank loans 31 December 2018 15.039.834 T 15.039.834 T
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Explanation on the presentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair val¢esntinued)

Fair value hierarchy table as3it December 201ig as follows:

Fair Value Measurement

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant Significant

Markets Observable Inputs  Unobservable

Date of Valuation Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value:
Derivative Financial Assets:
Cross currency swaps 31 December 2017 557.712 T 557.712 T
Interest rate swaps 31December 2017 59.006 T 59.006 T
Financial liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative Financial Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps 31 December 2017 117.389 T 117.389 T
Cross currency swaps 31 December 2017 192.052 T 192.052 T
Other financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Bank loans 31 December 2017 12.731.473 T 12.731.473 T
Bills, bonds and notes issued 31 December 2017 3.828.882 3.828.882 T T

Capital management policies

The primary obj eapitaimaragemdnt igtcheasur&that itnmiditains a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of chaagesoimic
conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or
return capital to shareholders. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years2017 ad 2018
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